From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Diamond, Susan (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC);

Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Melgar, Myrna (CPC); Aaron Jon Hyland - HPC; Black, Kate (CPC); Diane Matsuda; Foley,
Chris (CPC); Jonathan Pearlman; Richard S. E. Johns; So, Lydia (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES OPENING OF SAN FRANCISCO'S FIRST
HOUSING PROGRAM FOR TRANSGENDER ADULTS

Date: Thursday, January 23, 2020 11:14:43 AM

Attachments: 01.23.20 Trans Home SF on Washington St.-Final.pdf

Jonas P. lonin,

Director of Commission Affairs

Planning Department;City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309,Fax: 415-558-6409

jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
www.sfplanning.org

From: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Sent: Thursday, January 23, 2020 11:14 AM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES OPENING OF SAN
FRANCISCO’S FIRST HOUSING PROGRAM FOR TRANSGENDER ADULTS

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, January 23, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

#%+* PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES OPENING OF
SAN FRANCISCO’S FIRST HOUSING PROGRAM FOR
TRANSGENDER ADULTS

With one out of every two transgender San Franciscan having experienced homelessness,
Trans Home will provide safe and supportive housing with comprehensive wraparound
services and pathways to permanent housing

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today celebrated the opening of the first
transitional housing program for transgender and gender nonconforming adults in San
Francisco and in the country—Trans Home on Washington Street. Mayor Breed hosted a press
conference and conducted a ribbon cutting of the new Trans Home along with St. James
Infirmary, the Office of Transgender Initiatives, the Mayor’s Office of Housing and
Community Development (MOHCD), Larkin Street Youth Services, TAJA Coalition,
community leaders, and City officials.

“Housing affordability and homelessness continue to impact our most marginalized
communities, including our trans community members, who are eighteen times more likely to
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, January 23, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

*#% PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES OPENING OF
SAN FRANCISCO’S FIRST HOUSING PROGRAM FOR
TRANSGENDER ADULTS

With one out of every two transgender San Franciscan having experienced homelessness,
Trans Home will provide safe and supportive housing with comprehensive wraparound services
and pathways to permanent housing

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today celebrated the opening of the first
transitional housing program for transgender and gender nonconforming adults in San Francisco
and in the country—Trans Home on Washington Street. Mayor Breed hosted a press conference
and conducted a ribbon cutting of the new Trans Home along with St. James Infirmary, the
Office of Transgender Initiatives, the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development
(MOHCD), Larkin Street Youth Services, TAJA Coalition, community leaders, and City
officials.

“Housing affordability and homelessness continue to impact our most marginalized
communities, including our trans community members, who are eighteen times more likely to
experience homelessness,” said Mayor Breed. “Increasing housing production and ensuring
equity across our City is my top priority, which is why I am so proud to open San Francisco’s
first Trans Home on Washington Street. This new program will provide trans people with the
safety and support they as they find a permanent home in San Francisco.”

Trans Home, located at 1033 Washington Street, will provide safe and supportive housing, as
well as wraparound services, to 13 transgender and gender nonconforming (TGNC) adults
annually. Residents can stay in Trans Home for up to one year, or longer if needed, as they work
with housing navigators to obtain permanent housing. Residents have begun moving into the
building, which will initially provide housing to eight adults. Once the third-floor units open this
spring, the house will serve 13 residents. The three-story building has 13 bedrooms, three
kitchens, shared living space, case management and an onsite resident advisor, and space for
group workshops and therapy.

The home is part of San Francisco’s new Our Trans Home SF program, which will support low-
income TGNC community members find or keep their housing through rental subsidies, housing
navigation, and case management. Mayor Breed has prioritized funding the program in the City
Budget with $2.3 million over the next two years through MOHCD and the Office of
Transgender Initiatives. Our Trans Home SF will provide rental subsidies for at least 55
households.
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In September 2019, MOHCD awarded $1.15 million annually for the next two years to St. James
Infirmary and Larkin Street Youth Services to implement the new initiative. St. James Infirmary
will manage Trans Home on Washington Street, refer eligible applicants to the subsidy program,
and provide ongoing housing stability navigation and case management. Larkin Street Youth
Services will manage the disbursement of financial assistance of the subsidy program and
provide St. James Infirmary with program management support.

This unique and vital program will provide the TGNC community much-needed housing
stability. One out of every two transgender San Franciscans have experienced homelessness and
TGNC people are 18 times more likely to experience homelessness.

“St. James Infirmary is honored to be the leader in the Our Trans Home SF initiative partnering
with Mayor Breed and the community to address the housing crisis that is having a devastating
impact on trans people of color across the Bay Area,” said Toni Newman, Executive Director of
St. James Infirmary. “As a Black trans-led nonprofit, we are hitting the ground running to
provide housing to our community and lead the country in developing solutions for and by our
community. We have no time to waste if we are going to address the root issues that are keeping
our community in poverty and on the streets. We thank Mayor Breed and the Office of
Transgender Initiatives for their support in resourcing our community so we flourish and thrive.”

“Skyrocketing housing and rental markets paired with systemic discrimination has formed an
unrelenting barrier between the trans community and housing stability,” said Clair Farley,
Director of the Office of Transgender Initiatives. “We know that there are significant barriers to
accessing housing programs for trans and gender nonconforming communities. In fact, 70% of
transgender people have faced harassment in shelters across the country. That is why this
program plays an essential role in addressing San Francisco’s homelessness crisis, and ensures
that everyone has a safe place to call home.”

“San Francisco has long been a City that embraces and supports diversity, but our housing
shortage makes sustaining that ever more difficult, and the trans community is among the most
susceptible to housing insecurity” said MOHCD Acting Director Dan Adams. “We are proud to
partner with Saint James Infirmary and Larkin Street Youth Services to manage and operate the
new Trans Home, a groundbreaking approach to housing security that ensures our trans
community members at risk of homelessness have a place to call home.”

St. James Infirmary is hosting an orientation to the Trans Home SF program, where TGNC
community members can learn about the program and enroll on-site. The orientation will take
place at 12:00pm on Wednesday, January 29, in the Koret Auditorium of the San Francisco Main
Public Library, at 101 Larkin Street. Interested participants should sign up for the orientation
here.

For more information on San Francisco’s trans housing efforts, please visit:
http://ourtranshomesf.org/
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
annually. Residents can stay in Trans Home for up to one year, or longer if needed, as they
work with housing navigators to obtain permanent housing. Residents have begun moving into
the building, which will initially provide housing to eight adults. Once the third-floor units
open this spring, the house will serve 13 residents. The three-story building has 13 bedrooms,
three kitchens, shared living space, case management and an onsite resident advisor, and space
for group workshops and therapy.

The home is part of San Francisco’s new Our Trans Home SF program, which will support
low-income TGNC community members find or keep their housing through rental subsidies,
housing navigation, and case management. Mayor Breed has prioritized funding the program
in the City Budget with $2.3 million over the next two years through MOHCD and the Office
of Transgender Initiatives. Our Trans Home SF will provide rental subsidies for at least 55
households.

In September 2019, MOHCD awarded $1.15 million annually for the next two years to St.
James Infirmary and Larkin Street Youth Services to implement the new initiative. St. James
Infirmary will manage Trans Home on Washington Street, refer eligible applicants to the
subsidy program, and provide ongoing housing stability navigation and case management.
Larkin Street Youth Services will manage the disbursement of financial assistance of the
subsidy program and provide St. James Infirmary with program management support.

This unique and vital program will provide the TGNC community much-needed housing
stability. One out of every two transgender San Franciscans have experienced homelessness
and TGNC people are 18 times more likely to experience homelessness.

“St. James Infirmary is honored to be the leader in the Our Trans Home SF initiative
partnering with Mayor Breed and the community to address the housing crisis that is having a
devastating impact on trans people of color across the Bay Area,” said Toni Newman,
Executive Director of St. James Infirmary. “As a Black trans-led nonprofit, we are hitting the
ground running to provide housing to our community and lead the country in developing
solutions for and by our community. We have no time to waste if we are going to address the
root issues that are keeping our community in poverty and on the streets. We thank Mayor
Breed and the Office of Transgender Initiatives for their support in resourcing our community
so we flourish and thrive.”

“Skyrocketing housing and rental markets paired with systemic discrimination has formed an
unrelenting barrier between the trans community and housing stability,” said Clair Farley,
Director of the Office of Transgender Initiatives. “We know that there are significant barriers
to accessing housing programs for trans and gender nonconforming communities. In fact, 70%
of transgender people have faced harassment in shelters across the country. That is why this
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
Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Melgar, Myrna (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: Today"s hearing Item 4: 1630 Clay St

Date: Thursday, January 23, 2020 11:14:31 AM

Attachments: 2019-016849CND.pdf

Commissioners,

It has been brought to my attention that the above referenced Condo Conversion item on your Consent
Calendar failed to provide hard copies of the case report for distribution. It was posted and made available
electronically. If you feel you need more time to review we can certainly continue the matter.

Please let me know.

Thank you,

Jonas P. lonin,
Director of Commission Affairs

Planning Department|City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309]Fax: 415-558-6409

jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
www.sfplanning.org

From: Son, Chanbory (CPC) <chanbory.son@sfgov.org>

Sent: Thursday, January 23, 2020 9:43 AM

To: lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>

Cc: Silva, Christine (CPC) <christine.silva@sfgov.org>; Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
<josephine.feliciano@sfgov.org>

Subject: RE: Today's hearing Item 4: 1630 Clay St

Sorry, forgot attachment.

From: Son, Chanbory (CPC)

Sent: Thursday, January 23, 2020 9:41 AM

To: lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>

Cc: Silva, Christine (CPC) <christine.silva@sfgov.org>; Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
<Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org>

Subject: Today's hearing Item 4: 1630 Clay St

Jonas,

This item is on the consent calendar today. The packet electronic version was linked to the calendar and
published on our supporting document page, but the hard copy was not sent to the commissioner. Please see
attached.

Thank you,
Chanbory Son, Executive Secretary
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- 1650 Mission St.
Executive Summary Sute 400
. a . e e . San Francisco,
Condominium Conversion Subdivision Ch B4103.247
Reception:
HEARING DATE: JANUARY 23, 2020 415.556.5378
CONSENT CALENDAR Fax:
415.558.6409
Record No.: 2019-016849CND Planning
Project Address: 1630 Clay Stret Information:
Zoning: RM-3 (Residential-Mixed, Medium Density) 415.558.6377
65-A Height & Bulk District
Block/Lot: 0620/007
Project Sponsor: Rosemarie MacGuinness
SirkinLaw, APC
388 Market Street, Suite 1300
San Francisco, CA 94111

Property Owner: ~ Michael Wong;
Jeffery James Williams;
Daniel Gerstein;
Lana Joy Bowen and Viktor Loptkin;
Deborah Brewer; and
Teri X. Peterson
1630 Clay Street
San Francisco, CA 94109
Staff Contact: Carolyn Fahey — (415) 575-9139
Carolyn.Fahey@sfgov.org

Recommendation: ~ Approval with Conditions

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The project proposes to convert a four-story, six-unit building into residential condominiums. No
alterations to the building are proposed other than those that result from the Department of Building
Inspection’s Physical Inspection Report.

REQUIRED COMMISSION ACTION

The project requires Planning Commission approval pursuant to Sections 1332 and 1381 of the Subdivision
Code to allow the condominium conversion of five to six residential unit buildings. Findings must be made
that the proposal is consistent with the General Plan and the Subdivision Code.

ISSUES AND OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

. Public Comment & Outreach. The Department has not received any letters or phone calls
regarding the project.

www.sfplanning.org
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RECORD NO. 2019-016849CND
1630 Clay Street

Executive Summary
Hearing Date: January 23, 2020

. Existing Tenant & Eviction History. All units are occupied by owners who intend to purchase
their units. All prospective owners have signed under penalty of perjury that no evictions have

occurred on the subject property on or after May 1, 2005.

Residential Unit Description.

Unit | Square-Feet | Bedrooms
1 672 1
2 635 1
3 678 1
4 635 1
5 678 1
6 635 1
. Six-Year Rental History.
Unit Duration Occupants Rent ($) Reason for Termination
1 Dec 2014-Present Michael Wong Owner occupied N/A
1 June 2014-Nov 2014 Vacant N/A N/A
1 Jan 2012-May2014 Michelle Fait $2850 Unknown
2 Nov 2015-Present Jeffery James Owner-occupied N/A
Williams
2 July 2011-Oct 2015 Brian J. Price Owner-occupied N/A
3 Nov 2013-Current Daniel Gerstein Owner-occupied N/A
3 Jul 2007-Sep 2013 Allegra Heyligers Owner-occupied Sold unit
4 Nov 2014-Present Lana Joy Bowen, Owner-occupied N/A
Viktor Lopatkin
4 Jul 2014-Oct 2014 Vacant N/A N/A
4 Feb 2009-Jun2014 Aya Uehara $2566 Unknown
5 May 2019-Present Deborah Brewer Owner-occupied N/A
5 Oct 2014-Apr 2019 Wendy Chan Owner-occupied N/A
5 June 2014-Oct 2014 Vacant N/A N/A
6 Jul 2013-Present Teri X. Peterson Owner-occupied N/A
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The project was determined not to be a project under CEQA Guidelines Sections 15060(c) and 15378 because
there is no direct or indirect physical change in the environment.

BASIS FOR RECOMMENDATION

The Department finds that the Project is, on balance, consistent with the Housing Element of the General
Plan in that the existing supply of housing will be maintained, the condominium subdivision application
is subject to the restrictions of the Subdivision Code, and the subdivision will allow for home ownership
opportunities for San Francisco residents. Additionally, the eight priority planning policies set forth by

SAN FRANCISCO
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Executive Summary RECORD NO. 2019-016849CND
Hearing Date: January 23, 2020 1630 Clay Street

Planning Code Section 101.1 are met. Furthermore, the project meets the requirements for condominium
conversion under the California State Map Act and the San Francisco Subdivision Code.

ATTACHMENTS:

Draft Motion — Condominium Conversion Authorization
Exhibit A — Maps and Context Photos
Exhibit B — Project Sponsor Submittal
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Planning Commission Draft Motion
HEARING DATE: JANUARY 23, 2020

Record No.: 2019-016849CND
Project Address: 1630 Clay Stret
Zoning: RM-3 (Residential-Mixed, Medium Density)
65-A Height & Bulk District
Block/Lot: 0620/007
Project Sponsor:  Rosemarie MacGuinness
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

Carolyn Fahey - (415) 575-9139
Carolyn.Fahey@sfgov.org

Staff Contact:

ADOPTING FINDINGS RELATING TO A CONDOMINIUM CONVERSION SUBDIVISION OF A
FOUR-STORY, SIX-UNIT BUILDING INTO RESIDENTIAL CONDOMINIUMS, PURSUANT TO
THE GENERAL PLAN AND SUBDIVISION CODE SECTIONS 1386 AND 1396.4, WITHIN AN RM-3
(RESIDENTIAL - MIXED, MEDIUM DENSITY) ZONING DISTRICT AND A 65-A HEIGHT AND
BULK DISTRICT.

PREAMBLE

On September 10, 2019, Rosemarie MacGuinness, (hereinafter “Project Sponsor”) filed Application No.
10149 (hereinafter “Project”) with the Department of Public Works, Bureau of Street Use and Mapping for
Planning Department (hereinafter “Department”) review to allow the Condominium Conversion
Subdivision of a four-story, six-unit building into residential condominiums at 1630 Clay Street (hereinafter
“Project Site”), Lot 007 in Assessor’s Block 0620, within an RM-2 (Residential-Mixed, Medium Density)
Zoning District and a 65-A Height and Bulk District. The subject building is considered a legal use as the
Report of Residential Building Record indicates that the legal authorized occupancy and use is a six-unit
dwelling.

The project was determined not to be a project under CEQA Guidelines Sections 15060(c) and 15378 because
there is no direct or indirect physical change in the environment.

www.sfplanning.org

1650 Mission St.
Suite 400

San Francisco,
CA 94103-2479

Reception:
415.558.6378

Fax:
415.558.6409

Planning
Information:
415.558.6377
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Draft Motion RECORD NO. 2019-016849CND
January 23, 2020 1630 Clay Street

On January 23, 2020, the San Francisco Planning Commission (hereinafter “Commission”) conducted a
duly noticed public hearing at a regularly scheduled meeting on Condominium Conversion Subdivision
Application No. 2019-016849CND.

The Planning Department Commission Secretary is the custodian of records; the File for Case No. 2019-
016849CND is located at 1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, California.

The Commission has heard and considered the testimony presented to it at the public hearing and has
further considered written materials and oral testimony presented on behalf of the applicant, Department
staff, and other interested parties.

MOVED, that the Commission hereby approves the Condominium Conversion Subdivision requested in
Application No. 2019-016849CND based on the following findings:

FINDINGS

Having reviewed the materials identified in the preamble above, and having heard all testimony and
arguments, this Commission finds, concludes, and determines as follows:

1. The above recitals are accurate and constitute findings of this Commission.

2. Project Description. The Project proposes the conversion of a four-story building with six dwelling
units to residential condominiums.

3. Site Description and Present Use. The Project Site is located on the north side of Clay Street in the
Nob Hill neighborhood between Polk and Larkin Streets. The lot contains a four-story building
with six dwelling units. The Project Site is located within an RM-2 (Residential-Mixed, Medium
Density) Zoning District and a 65-A Height & Bulk District. A maximum of five dwelling units are
permitted at the Project Site with Conditional Use Authorization. As there are six legal dwelling
units on the Project Site, one existing dwelling units is considered legal nonconforming as to
density.

4. Surrounding Properties and Neighborhood. The Project Site is located within an RM-2 Zoning
District and the Nob Hill neighborhood. The surrounding properties, and neighborhood as a
whole, are zoned for residential mixed use. The neighborhood is characterized by three- to five-
story buildings with five to fifteen dwelling units and consistent pattern of rear yard open space,
excepting corner lots which tend to be higher density with less open space.

5. Public Outreach and Comments. The Department has not received any letters or phone calls in
support of, or in opposition to the project.

6. Subdivision Code Compliance

SAN FRANCISCO
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Draft Motion

RECORD NO. 2019-016849CND

January 23, 2020 1630 Clay Street

SAN FRANCISCO

Section 1396, Article 9 of the Subdivision Code of the City and County of San Francisco
sets forth the following rules and regulations for condominium conversions:

A. Units may be converted to condominiums so long as they meet the requirements of
the Expedited Conversion Program per the Subdivision Code. An exception is
provided for two-unit buildings where both units are owner-occupied for one year.

B. The following categories of buildings may be converted to condominiums:

i.  Buildings consisting of four units or less in which at least one of the units has
been occupied continuously by one of the owners of record for six years prior
to the annual April 15" triggering date for conversions and owners of record
had a fully executed agreement for an exclusive right of occupancy on or
before April 15, 2013.

ii.  Buildings consisting of six units or less in which at least three of the units have
been occupied continuously by three of the owners of record for six years prior
to the annual April 15t triggering date for conversion and the owners of
record had a fully executed agreement for an exclusive right of occupancy on
or before April 15, 2013.

The Subdivision Code requires that the Planning Commission hold a public hearing to review
condominium conversion subdivisions containing five to six units for consistency with the General
Plan and applicable provisions of the Subdivision Code where at least one unit is residential. The
Code calls for a sales program which promotes affirmative action in housing, a non-transferable
tenant right of first-refusal to purchase the unit occupied by the tenant and various relocation
requirements, including the right to a $1,000 relocation payment.

The Subdivision Code further provides for a recorded offer of a lifetime lease for all tenants as a
condition of final map approval, and requires that no less than 40 percent of the units as represented
through the owning or renting tenant of each unit either have signed Intent to Purchase forms or
be in a position of accepting the offer for such a lifetime lease. The Code prohibits any increase in
rents while the conversion application is pending before the City.

Section 1386, Article 9 of the Subdivision Code of the City and County of San Francisco requires
that the Planning Commission disapprove the Tentative Map if it determines that vacancies in the
project have been increased, elderly or permanently disabled tenants have been displaced or
discriminated against in leasing units, evictions have occurred for the purpose of preparing the
building for conversion, or the subdivider has knowingly submitted incorrect information (to
mislead or misdirect efforts by agencies of the City in the administration of the Subdivision Code).
In the evaluation of displacement of elderly tenants, the Commission shall consider any such
displacements over the preceding three years and the reasons for the displacement.
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Draft Motion RECORD NO. 2019-016849CND
January 23, 2020 1630 Clay Street

b. The applicant requests Planning Department review of a Condominium Conversion
Subdivision Application to allow for the conversion of the multi-unit building.

c. Asrequired by Section 1396.4 of the San Francisco Subdivision Code, at least three of the
units have been owner occupied continuously by one or more of the owners of record for
six years prior to the annual April 15 triggering date for this proposed conversion and the
owners of record had a fully executed agreement for an exclusive right of occupancy on or
before April 15, 2013.

d. Tenants in the subject building were notified of their right-of-first refusal to purchase the
unit they occupy, as required by the Subdivision Code, and of other rights to which they
are entitled under provisions of the same Code.

e. A search of the Rent Board database did not show any tenant petitions or eviction notices
filed with the Rent Board in the last 5 years.

7. General Plan Compliance. The Project is, on balance, consistent with the Objectives and Policies
of the General Plan:

HOUSING ELEMENT

Objectives and Policies

OBJECTIVE 2:
RETAIN EXISTING HOUSING UNITS, AND PROMOTE SAFETY AND MAINTENANCE
STANDARDS, WITHOUT JEOPARDIZING AFFORDABILITY.

Policy 2.4:
Promote improvements and continued maintenance to existing units to ensure long term
habitation and safety.

Property owners are required to correct outstanding code violations identified in a Physical Inspection Report
issued by the Department of Building Inspection (DBI). All work must be completed and a DBI Certificate
of Final Completion must be issued prior to DPW approval.

OBJECTIVE 3:

PROTECT THE AFFORDABILITY OF THE EXISTING HOUSING STOCK, ESPECIALLY RENTAL
UNITS.

Policy 3.3:

SAN FRANCISCO
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Draft Motion RECORD NO. 2019-016849CND
January 23, 2020 1630 Clay Street

Maintain balance in affordability of existing housing stock by supporting affordable moderate

ownership opportunities.

Conwversions of rental stock to condominiums help achieve affordable homeownership, providing a category
of housing stock for moderate income housing needs. Through the Expedited Conversion Program, properties

are eligible to convert from rental units to ownership status so long as owner-occupancy requirements are

met.

8. Planning Code Section 101.1(b) establishes eight priority-planning policies and requires review of

permits for consistency with said policies. On balance, the project does comply with said policies
in that:

A. That existing neighborhood-serving retail uses be preserved and enhanced and future

SAN FRANCISCO

opportunities for resident employment in and ownership of such businesses be enhanced.

The proposal would have no adverse effect upon existing neighborhood-serving retail uses as it is a
change in form of residential tenure.

That existing housing and neighborhood character be conserved and protected in order to
preserve the cultural and economic diversity of our neighborhoods.

The proposal is a change in form of residential tenure and would not alter the existing housing and
neighborhood character of the vicinity.

That the City's supply of affordable housing be preserved and enhanced,

The proposal is a change in form of residential tenure, and would not affect the City’s supply of affordable
housing.

That commuter traffic not impede MUNI transit service or overburden our streets or
neighborhood parking.

The proposal is a change in form of residential tenure and would not affect public transit or neighborhood
parking.

That a diverse economic base be maintained by protecting our industrial and service sectors
from displacement due to commercial office development, and that future opportunities for
resident employment and ownership in these sectors be enhanced.

The proposal is a change in form of residential tenure and would not involve the industrial or service
sectors of the City.

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 5
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January 23, 2020 1630 Clay Street

F. That the City achieve the greatest possible preparedness to protect against injury and loss of
life in an earthquake.

The proposal is subject to inspection by the Department of Building Inspection and will be required to
make any code required repairs, including those related to life safety issues, prior to the recordation of
the final condominium subdivision map.

G. That landmarks and historic buildings be preserved.

The proposal is a change in form of residential tenure and would not affect landmarks or historic
buildings.

H. That our parks and open space and their access to sunlight and vistas be protected from
development.

The proposal is a change in form of residential tenure and would not affect public parks or open space.
9. The Project is consistent with and would promote the general and specific purposes of the Code
provided under Section 101.1(b) in that, as designed, the Project would contribute to the character

and stability of the neighborhood and would constitute a beneficial development.

10. The Commission hereby finds that approval of the Condominium Conversion Subdivision would
promote the health, safety and welfare of the City.

SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 6
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DECISION

That based upon the Record, the submissions by the Applicant, the staff of the Department and other
interested parties, the oral testimony presented to this Commission at the public hearings, and all other
written materials submitted by all parties, the Commission hereby APPROVES Condominium
Conversion Subdivision Application No. 2019-016849CND.

Protest of Fee or Exaction: You may protest any fee or exaction subject to Government Code Section 66000
that is imposed as a condition of approval by following the procedures set forth in Government Code
Section 66020. The protest must satisfy the requirements of Government Code Section 66020(a) and must
be filed within 90 days of the date of the first approval or conditional approval of the development
referencing the challenged fee or exaction. For purposes of Government Code Section 66020, the date of
imposition of the fee shall be the date of the earliest discretionary approval by the City of the subject
development.

If the City has not previously given Notice of an earlier discretionary approval of the project, the Planning
Commission’s adoption of this Motion, Resolution, Discretionary Review Action or the Zoning
Administrator’'s Variance Decision Letter constitutes the approval or conditional approval of the
development and the City hereby gives NOTICE that the 90-day protest period under Government Code
Section 66020 has begun. If the City has already given Notice that the 90-day approval period has begun
for the subject development, then this document does not re-commence the 90-day approval period.

I hereby certify that the Planning Commission ADOPTED the foregoing Motion on January 23, 2020.
Jonas P. Ionin

Commission Secretary

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

ADOPTED: January 23, 2020

SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 7
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Conditions of Approval, Compliance, Monitoring, and Reporting
PERFORMANCE

1.

Validity. The authorization and right vested by virtue of this action is valid for three (3) years from
the effective date of the Motion. The Department of Building Inspection shall have issued a
Building Permit or Site Permit to construct the project and/or commence the approved use within
this three-year period.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 415-575-6863,
www.sf-planning.org

Expiration and Renewal. Should a Building or Site Permit be sought after the three (3) year period
has lapsed, the project sponsor must seek a renewal of this Authorization by filing an application
for an amendment to the original Authorization or a new application for Authorization. Should
the project sponsor decline to so file, and decline to withdraw the permit application, the
Commission shall conduct a public hearing in order to consider the revocation of the
Authorization. Should the Commission not revoke the Authorization following the closure of the
public hearing, the Commission shall determine the extension of time for the continued validity of
the Authorization.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 415-575-6863,
www.sf-planning.org

Diligent Pursuit. Once a site or Building Permit has been issued, construction must commence
within the timeframe required by the Department of Building Inspection and be continued
diligently to completion. Failure to do so shall be grounds for the Commission to consider revoking
the approval if more than three (3) years have passed since this Authorization was approved.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 415-575-6863,
www.sf-planning.org

Extension. All time limits in the preceding three paragraphs may be extended at the discretion of
the Zoning Administrator where implementation of the project is delayed by a public agency, an
appeal or a legal challenge and only by the length of time for which such public agency, appeal or
challenge has caused delay.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 415-575-6863,
www.sf-planning.org

Conformity with Current Law. No application for Building Permit, Site Permit, or other
entitlement shall be approved unless it complies with all applicable provisions of City Codes in
effect at the time of such approval.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 415-575-6863,
www.sf-planning.org

SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 8
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SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

CEQA Categorical Exemption Determination

PROPERTY INFORMATION/PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Project Address Block/Lot(s)

2145-2151 Powell St 0052002

Case No. Permit No.

2020-000614CND

[] Addition/ [[] pemoilition (requires HRE for ] New
Alteration Category B Building) Construction

Project description for Planning Department approval.
3 Units Condo Conversion, Mixed Use

STEP 1: EXEMPTION CLASS

The project has been determined to be categorically exempt under the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA).

[l

Class 1 - Existing Facilities. Interior and exterior alterations; additions under 10,000 sq. ft.

O

Class 3 - New Construction. Up to three new single-family residences or six dwelling units in one

building; commercial/office structures; utility extensions; change of use under 10,000 sq. ft. if principally
permitted or with a CU.

O

Class 32 - In-Fill Development. New Construction of seven or more units or additions greater than
10,000 sq. ft. and meets the conditions described below:

(a) The project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all applicable general plan
policies as well as with applicable zoning designation and regulations.

(b) The proposed development occurs within city limits on a project site of no more than 5 acres
substantially surrounded by urban uses.

(c) The project site has no value as habitat for endangered rare or threatened species.

(d) Approval of the project would not result in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or
water quality.

(e) The site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services.

FOR ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING USE ONLY

Class

SIS E: 415.575.9010

SAN FRANCISCO Para informacién en Espafiol llamar al: 415.575.9010
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Para sa impormasyon sa Tagalog tumawag sa: 415.575.9121






STEP 2: CEQA IMPACTS
TO BE COMPLETED BY PROJECT PLANNER

Air Quality: Would the project add new sensitive receptors (specifically, schools, day care facilities,

|:| hospitals, residential dwellings, and senior-care facilities within an Air Pollution Exposure Zone? Does the
project have the potential to emit substantial pollutant concentrations (e.g., backup diesel generators,
heavy industry, diesel trucks, etc.)? (refer to EP _ArcMap > CEQA Catex Determination Layers > Air Pollution
Exposure Zone)

Hazardous Materials: If the project site is located on the Maher map or is suspected of containing
hazardous materials (based on a previous use such as gas station, auto repair, dry cleaners, or heavy
manufacturing, or a site with underground storage tanks): Would the project involve 50 cubic yards or
|:| more of soil disturbance - or a change of use from industrial to residential?

if the applicant presents documentation of enrollment in the San Francisco Department of Public Health
(DPH) Maher program, a DPH waiver from the Maher program, or other documentation from
Environmental Planning staff that hazardous material effects would be less than significant (refer to
EP_ArcMap > Mabher layer).

Transportation: Does the project involve a child care facility or school with 30 or more students, or a
|:| location 1,500 sq. ft. or greater? Does the project have the potential to adversely affect transit, pedestrian
and/or bicycle safety (hazards) or the adequacy of nearby transit, pedestrian and/or bicycle facilities?

Archeological Resources: Would the project result in soil disturbance/modification greater than two
D (2) feet below grade in an archeological sensitive area or eight (8) feet in a non -archeological sensitive
area? If yes, archeo review is requried (refer to EP_ArcMap > CEQA Catex Determination Layers >
Archeological Sensitive Area)

Subdivision/Lot Line Adjustment: Does the project site involve a subdivision or lot line adjustment
I:l on a lot with a slope average of 20% or more? (refer to EP_ArcMap > CEQA Catex Determination Layers >
Topography). If yes, Environmental Planning must issue the exemption.

Slope = or > 25%: Does the project involve any of the following: (1) square footage expansion greater
|:| than 500 sq. ft. outside of the existing building footprint, (2) excavation of 50 cubic yards or more of
soil, (3) new construction? (refer to EP_ArcMap > CEQA Catex Determination Layers > Topography) If box is
checked, a geotechnical report is required and Environmental Planning must issue the exemption.

Seismic: Landslide Zone: Does the project involve any of the following: (1) square footage expansion
|:| greater than 500 sq. ft. outside of the existing building footprint, (2) excavation of 50 cubic yards or more
of soil, (3) new construction? (refer to EP_ArcMap > CEQA Catex Determination Layers > Seismic Hazard Zones)
If box is checked, a geotechnical report is required and Environmental Planning must issue the exemption.

Seismic: Liquefaction Zone: Does the project involve any of the following: (1) square footage

|:| expansion greater than 500 sq. ft. outside of the existing building footprint, (2) excavation of 50 cubic
yards or more of soil, (3) new construction? (refer to EP_ArcMap > CEQA Catex Determination Layers >
Seismic Hazard Zones) If box is checked, a geotechnical report will likely be required and Environmental
Planning must issue the exemption.

Comments and Planner Signature (optional):

FRaGEREEE: 415.575.9010
SAN FRANCISCO Para informacién en Espafiol llamar al: 415.575.9010
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Para sa impormasyon sa Tagalog tumawag sa: 415.575.9121






STEP 3: PROPERTY STATUS - HISTORIC RESOURCE
TO BE COMPLETED BY PROJECT PLANNER

PROPERTY IS ONE OF THE FOLLOWING: (refer to Property Information Map)

D Category A: Known Historical Resource. GO TO STEP 5.

|:| Category B: Potential Historical Resource (over 45 years of age). GO TO STEP 4.

|:| Category C: Not a Historical Resource or Not Age Eligible (under 45 years of age). GO TO STEP 6.

STEP 4: PROPOSED WORK CHECKLIST
TO BE COMPLETED BY PROJECT PLANNER

Check all that apply to the project.

1. Change of use and new construction. Tenant improvements not included.

2. Regular maintenance or repair to correct or repair deterioration, decay, or damage to building.

3. Window replacement that meets the Department’'s Window Replacement Standards. Does not include
storefront window alterations.

4. Garage work. A new opening that meets the Guidelines for Adding Garages and Curb Cuts, and/or
replacement of a garage door in an existing opening that meets the Residential Design Guidelines.

5. Deck, terrace construction, or fences not visible from any immediately adjacent public right-of-way.

6. Mechanical equipment installation that is not visible from any immediately adjacent public
right-of-way.

7. Dormer installation that meets the requirements for exemption from public notification under Zoning
Administrator Bulletin No. 3: Dormer Windows.

O|0o|co|d(od

8. Addition(s) that are not visible from any immediately adjacent public right-of-way for 150 feet in each
direction; does not extend vertically beyond the floor level of the top story of the structure or is only a
single story in height; does not have a footprint that is more than 50% larger than that of the original
building; and does not cause the removal of architectural significant roofing features.

[l

Note: Project Planner must check box below before proceeding.

|:| Project is not listed. GO TO STEP 5.

|:| Project does not conform to the scopes of work. GO TO STEP 5.

|:| Project involves four or more work descriptions. GO TO STEP 5.

|:| Project involves less than four work descriptions. GO TO STEP 6.

STEP 5: CEQA IMPACTS - ADVANCED HISTORICAL REVIEW
TO BE COMPLETED BY PROJECT PLANNER

Check all that apply to the project.

D 1. Project involves a known historical resource (CEQA Category A) as determined by Step 3 and
conforms entirely to proposed work checklist in Step 4.

2. Interior alterations to publicly accessible spaces.

3. Window replacement of original/historic windows that are not “in-kind” but are consistent with
existing historic character.

4. Fagade/storefront alterations that do not remove, alter, or obscure character-defining features.

5. Raising the building in a manner that does not remove, alter, or obscure character-defining
features.

O(O|0)0 (O

6. Restoration based upon documented evidence of a building’s historic condition, such as historic
photographs, plans, physical evidence, or similar buildings.

SIS E: 415.575.9010
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7. Addition(s), including mechanical equipment that are minimally visible from a public right -of-way
and meet the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation .

8. Other work consistent with the Secretary of the Interior Standards for the Treatment of Historic
Properties (specify or add comments):

9. Other work that would not materially impair a historic district (specify or add comments):

(Requires approval by Senior Preservation Planner/Preservation Coordinator)

10. Reclassification of property status. (Requires approval by Senior Preservation

Planner/Preservation
|:| Reclassify to Category A |:| Reclassify to Category C
a. Per HRER or PTR dated (attach HRER or PTR)

b. Other (specify):

Note: If ANY box in STEP 5 above is checked, a Preservation Planner MUST sign below.

O

Project can proceed with categorical exemption review. The project has been reviewed by the
Preservation Planner and can proceed with categorical exemption review. GO TO STEP 6.

Comments (optional):

Preservation Planner Signature:

STEP 6: CATEGORICAL EXEMPTION DETERMINATION
TO BE COMPLETED BY PROJECT PLANNER

O

No further environmental review is required. The project is categorically exempt under CEQA.
There are no unusual circumstances that would result in a reasonable possibility of a significant
effect.

Project Approval Action: Signature:

If Discretionary Review before the Planning Commission is requested,
the Discretionary Review hearing is the Approval Action for the project.

Once signed or stamped and dated, this document constitutes a categorical exemption pursuant to CEQA Guidelines and Chapter
31of the Administrative Code.

In accordance with Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code, an appeal of an exemption determination can only be
filed within 30 days of the project receiving the approval action.

Please note that other approval actions may be required for the project. Please contact the assigned planner for these approvals.

SIS E: 415.575.9010
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STEP 7: MODIFICATION OF A CEQA EXEMPT PROJECT

TO BE COMPLETED BY PROJECT PLANNER

In accordance with Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code, when a California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA) exempt project changes after the Approval Action and requires a subsequent approval, the
Environmental Review Officer (or his or her designee) must determine whether the proposed change
constitutes a substantial modification of that project. This checklist shall be used to determine whether the
proposed changes to the approved project would constitute a “substantial modification” and, therefore, be
subject to additional environmental review pursuant to CEQA.

PROPERTY INFORMATION/PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Project Address (If different than front page) Block/Lot(s) (If different than
front page)

2145-2151 Powell St 0052/002

Case No. Previous Building Permit No. New Building Permit No.

2020-000614CND

Plans Dated Previous Approval Action New Approval Action

Modified Project Description:

DETERMINATION IF PROJECT CONSTITUTES SUBSTANTIAL MODIFICATION

Compared to the approved project, would the modified project:

O | Resultin expansion of the building envelope, as defined in the Planning Code;

Result in the change of use that would require public notice under Planning Code
Sections 311 or 312;

Result in demolition as defined under Planning Code Section 317 or 19005(f)?

Is any information being presented that was not known and could not have been known
at the time of the original determination, that shows the originally approved project may
no longer qualify for the exemption?

O |0l d

If at least one of the above boxes is checked, further environmental review is required.

DETERMINATION OF NO SUBSTANTIAL MODIFICATION

[J | The proposed modification would not result in any of the above changes.

If this box is checked, the proposed modifications are categorically exempt under CEQA, in accordance with prior project
approval and no additional environmental review is required. This determination shall be posted on the Planning Department
website and office and mailed to the applicant, City approving entities, and anyone requesting written notice. In accordance
with Chapter 31, Sec 31.08j of the San Francisco Administrative Code, an appeal of this determination can be filed within 10
days of posting of this determination.

Planner Name: Date:
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Commission Affairs

San Francisco Planning Department

1650 Mission Street, Suite 400 San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415.575.6926 | www.sfplanning.org

San Francisco Property Information Map


http://www.sfplanning.org/
http://propertymap.sfplanning.org/

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Diamond, Susan (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC);
Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Melgar, Myrna (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: Mr.C"s Support Letters

Date: Thursday, January 23, 2020 11:13:19 AM

Attachments: Mr.C"s Support Letters (19).pdf

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

From: Chris Callaway <chrislcallaway@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2020 3:49 PM

To: Hicks, Bridget (CPC) <Bridget.Hicks@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>

Subject: Mr.C's Support Letters

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.
Hi Bridget,

Here are 19 more support letters we received from members of the community that attended one
of the open houses we held on Jan 16th, 18th, and 21st.

Look forward to seeing you tomorrow!
Thanks,
Chris Callaway, CEO

Mr.C's
415-802-6160
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Mr.C’s

Dear Bridget Hicks and Members of the Planning Commission,

I'am a resident of Hayes Valley and would like to voice my overwhelming support of
Mr.C’s endeavors to bring a cannabis dispensary to 500 Laguna. I would personally love
to have easy and safe access to cannabis Wlth]n the nelghborhood and welcome MrCs

: w1th open arms.
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Mr.C’s

Dear Bridget Hicks and Members of the Planning Commission,

I am a resident of Hayes Valley and would like to voice my overwhelming support of
Mr.C’s endeavors to bring a cannabis dispensary to 500 Laguna. I would personally love :
to have easy and safe access to cannabis within the neighborhood and welcome Mr.C’s L B

with open arms.

I believe Chris Callaway is committed to créating a safe, warm and welcdnﬁng e
dlspensary that will add much needed hghtmg, security, and economlc stlm tio:






A
In..‘-

Mr.C’s

Dear Bridget Hicks and Members of the Planning Commission,

I work in Hayes Valley and would like to voice my overwhelming support of Mr.C’s
endeavors to bring a cannabis dispensary to the Laguna/Hayes retail corridor. I would
personally love to have easy and safe access to cannabis within the neighborhood and

welcome Mr.C’s with open arms.

I believe Chris Callaway is committed to creating a safe, warm and ‘welcoﬂinjng’
dispensary that will add much needed lighting, security, and economic stimulatio
businesses like ours. It's a shame to see beautiful storefronts like this sit vacant fo
long in our city. It really effects the quality of life for residents, ' o

business owners. ; Ly e

o

I hope you will appro{ie this applicatiéﬁ without dela

~ Kind Regardé}f :






Mr.C’s

Dear Bridget Hicks and Members of the Planning Commission,

I'work in Hayes Valley and would like to voice my overwhelming support of Mr. C s f ;

endeavors to bring a cannabis dispensary to the Laguna/Hayes retail corridor. I would - o
personally love to have easy and safe access to cannabis within the neighborhood and 4 |
welcome Mr.C’s with open arms. : : :

busmess owners.






Mr.C’s

Dear Bridget Hicks and Members of the Planning Commission,

I'work in Hayes Valley and would like to voice my overwhelming support of Mr.C's

endeavors to bring a cannabis dispensary to the Laguna/ Hayes retail corridor. I would o
personally love to have easy and safe access to cannabls within the neighborhood and

welcome Mr.C’s with open arms.

- business owners.

- I‘th¢ you w111 approve this
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Dear Bridget Hicks and Members of the Planning Commission,

I'am a resident of Hayes Valley and would like to voice my overwhelming support of
Mr.C’s endeavors to bring a cannabis dispensary to 500 Laguna. I would personally llove
to have easy and safe access to cannabis within the neighborhood and welcome Mr.C’s

with open arms.

I believe Chris Callaway is committed to creating a safe, warm and wel mmg -
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Dear Bridget Hicks and Members of the Planning Commission,

I am a resident of Hayes Valley and would like to voice my ovzrwhehning support of ~} ' o

Mr.C’s endeavors to bring a cannabis dispensary to 500 Laguna. I would personally love

°y

to have easy and safe access to cannabis within the ne1ghborhood and welcome Mr.C’s
with open arms. " 2

Ibelieve Chris Callaway is committed to creatmg a safe"

the neighboring businesses. It’ sa shame beautiful storefronts like this s
long in our c1ty :






Mr.C’s

Dear Bridget Hicks and Members of the Planning Commission,

. F f

I am a resident of Hayes Valley and would like tb voice my overwhelming support of ;
Mr.C’s endeavors to bring a cannabis dispensary to 500 Laguna. I would personally love
to have easy and safe access to cannabis within the neighborhood and welcome Mr.C’s

with open arms.

I believe Chris Callaway is committed to creating a safe, warm and welcomin,
dispensary that will add much needed lighting, security, and economic st
the neighboring businesses. It’s a shame beautiful storefronts like this si
long in our city. : e : L

Thope you will approve
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Thope you will approve this application

Kind Regards,















































From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

To: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: Declaration of Benafsha Irani regarding 617 Sanchez Street
Date: Thursday, January 23, 2020 11:11:53 AM

Attachments: Benafsha Irani declares Document.pdf

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

From: Sue Hestor <hestor@earthlink.net>

Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2020 4:25 PM

To: Myrna Melgar <melgar.myrna@gmail.com>; Kathrin Moore <Mooreurban@aol.com>; Joel
Koppel <jkoppel@ibew6.org>; Johnson, Milicent (CPC) <milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank
(CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions
Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>

Subject: Declaration of Benafsha Irani regarding 617 Sanchez Street

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

#16 on 1/23 calendar is 617 Sanchez St DR.

There are 2 DRs. By Benafsha Irani, owner of adjacent 619 Sanchez. By Brian
Higginbotham, owner of 616 Sanchez across street.

Attached declaration by Benafsha Irani, owner of adjacent 1906 2-story home. It was already
provided to Plan Dept and to Edmonds - architect for proposed 617 Sanchez project.

Please read this sworn declaration.

Sue Hestor

———————— Forwarded Message --------
Subject:Signed Declaration of Benafsha Irani regarding 617 Sanchez Street


mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/

Benafsha Irani declares:

Joerg Rathenberg and | purchased the property at 619 Sanchez Street in 1998 It was our home until July
2010, when Joerg took a new job with the company office in Menlo Park. We moved to nearby Palo Alto to
send our daughter to a public school,

Starting in 2004, | had built a successful business in San Francisco, and my office and my professional
activities have remained in San Francisco until today. We plan to move back to cur home at 619 Sanchez
as soon as our daughter graduates from high school in a few years.

In addition, a side note, Jay and SonHui Duncanson, after building their 615 Sanchez mega mansion,
never really lived there. They spend the majority of their time at their home at 19500 Sweetwater Springs
Road, Guerneville, CA 85446.

On June 13, 2018 Joerg was contacted at his work email by real estate agent Marco Carvajal at
Vanguard Properties . Joerg is not on the 619 Sanchez deed - property tax is in Benafsha's
name. But Carvajal had Joerg's name and work email, which is not published anywhere. Jay
Duncanson, owner of 615 Sanchez, had Joerg's work email, but did not know that the deed was in
Benafsha Irani's name. The June 13 email is included below *'.

On June 14 |, [Benafsha] called Marco to see what the June 13 email was all about.

Marco informed me that the house at 617 Sanchez was being purchased by a couple.

The wife would like to purchase our home at 619 Sanchez as well to build a large house across both

lots. Marco informed me that | have lived "long enough” at 619 Sanchez and it was time for me to leave. |
informed him that | was not interested and hung up.

| received a call the next day from SonHui Duncanson, the wife of the 615 Sanchez owner. She Iinformed
me that they now plan to sell 615 Sanchez and that this is the best time to sell because the market is so
high. | informed her that someone was planning to buy 617 Sanchez and asked If she knew anything
about it. SonHui told me she had heard from Victoria Minas * An LLC was planning to purchase 617
Sanchez for $2.5M. SonHul suggested that | should sell 619 Sanchez as well, since this would be good
for me. |informed SonHui that | had no such interest.

The following day. on June 15, | received a call from Marco again. He wanted to know if | would
reconsider my decision. | informed him that my decision still stood. | further informed him that | just found
oul that the owners of 615 Sanchez were planning to sell and maybe that would be the right house for his
chient. Marco sakd he was aware of it and had seen 615 Sanchez, but the client's wife wanted to
purchase 617 Sanchez and my house at 619 Sanchez sinca she dees not like 615 Sanchez.

Marco also let me know that his clients will be building a big house at 617 Sanchez, which would block our
view and reduce our property value. That construction would force me to sell later at a lower price. So it
would be best that | get cut and sell 619 Sanchez now.

615 Sanchez and 617 Sanchez were both sold by Vanguard Pro_Perties by the same real estate agent
Roy Nolan. Please see attached photos of the Sold Fiyers below b3

SonHui Duncanson has continued to try and contact me via text messages. On Nov. 24, 2018, right
after 63157 Sanchez was sold, On Oct. 25, 2019, after | filed for DR on 617 Sanchez - see text messages
below ™",

| declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration was
ex ed in ?ﬁ Francisco. California on January 21, 2020.

P

Benafsha Irani






EXHIBITS AND FOOTNOTES

1) Marco Carvajal works for Vanguard agent Frank Nolan

2) Email from Marco Carvajal of June 13, 2018:

From: Joerg Rathenberg <jrathenberg@lexmachina.com>
Sent: Wednesday, June 13, 2018 8:38:29 PM

To: birani@hotmail.com

Subject: Fwd: 619 Sanchez Street, San Francisco

---------- Forwarded message -------—-

From: Marco Carvajal <marco@vanguardsf.com>

Date: Wed, Jun 13, 2018 at 12:22 PM

Subject: 619 Sanchez Street, San Francisco

To: "jrathenberg@lexmachina.com" <jrathenberg@lexmachina.com>

Hi Joerg,

A very established client of mine called me this morning and expressed serious interest in purchasing your building at 619 Sanchez. She’'d be
Willing to pay a premium considering its not on the market.

I'd love to meet and talk about what it would take to have you consider an offer.

Best,

Marco Carvajal | Realtor

cell 415.699.7484

marco@vanguardsf.com | www.marcosellssf.com

Vanguard Properties | 2501 Mission Street, San Francisco, CA 94110

3) Victoria Minas is the wife of John Fusco, owner of 617 Sanchez, who died 6 months after the
marriage

4) Pictures of real estate flyers front: Just sold 617 Sanchez, Just listed 615 Sanchez
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5) Pictures of real estate flyers back: Just sold 617 Sanchez, Just listed 615 Sanchez
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6) Text message from SonHui Duncanson to Benafsha Irani on November 24, 2018

New iMessage Cancel
To: Sunhee and Jay Duncanson | @
Read 8/4/18

Nov 24, 2018, 10:30 AM

Hi Benafsha,

Hope you guys had a wonderful
Thanksgiving!

We had a quiet one... &>

| wanted to let you know that we
sold the house in San Francisco!
Talk soon. Big hugs, s





7) Text message from SonHui Duncanson to Benafsha Irani on October 25, 2019:

Fri, Oct 25, 8:02 PM

Hi Benafsha,

Hope you guys are not effected by
the fire...

| know we haven't seen or talked for
a long time but | think of you often,
and | think of you as a good
friend...stay safe!

Take care you! SonHui

o [ A) i)

- V y U Sh. 79 SN M| -~






Date:Tue, 21 Jan 2020 23:49:46 +0000
From:Benafsha Irani <birani@hotmail.com>
To:Winslow, David (CPC) <david.winslow@sfgov.org>, Sue Hestor <hestor@earthlink.net>,

Robert Edmonds <robert@edmondslee.com>

CC:Ajello Hoagland, Linda (CPC) <linda.ajellohoagland@sfgov.org>, Brian Higginbotham

<sfod415@outlook.com>

Hello Everyone,

Attached is my declaration regarding 617 Sanchez Street, San Francisco CA 94114.
Hard signed copy is being delivered tomorrow am to David Winslow, 1650 Mission
4th floor.

Thank you.

Regards,

Benafsha


mailto:birani@hotmail.com
mailto:david.winslow@sfgov.org
mailto:hestor@earthlink.net
mailto:robert@edmondslee.com
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Diamond, Susan (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC);
Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Melgar, Myrna (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC); Winslow, David (CPC)

Subject: FW: Discretionary Review (Jan 23rd) - For Your Consideration

Date: Thursday, January 23, 2020 11:11:11 AM

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

From: Dorothee Gutierrez Fisher <dorotheefisher@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2020 11:09 PM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: Matt Fisher <fishlim@gmail.com>

Subject: Discretionary Review (Jan 23rd) - For Your Consideration

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Re: Permit Number 2019.0605.2567, 2019-003900DRP
To whom it may concern,

We are next-door neighbors of 1526 Masonic Avenue and will be presenting
tomorrow (Thursday) at the Discretionary Review regarding the two-story 735 sq. foot
artist studio proposed to be built in the backyard. We apologize for reaching out this
late, but we’re new to this process.

We are supportive of artists and fully endorse the development of this structure
within the plentiful building envelop. However, the Hurbuts have declined this
option and are applying for a Variance to build it in their backyard. We ask that you
decline the Variance tomorrow, given that they can build this project in their building
envelop without impacting their home.

The house at 1526 Masonic Avenue was designed by architect Bernard Maybeck and
is historically significant. It sits on a double lot and has an extra long yard. The
residents (Hurlbuts) would like to build an artist studio for their pottery and boat
restoration hobbies in their backyard. The proposed structure measures 20’-4” high x
41°’-3” wide x 21°-0’ deep. However, the Hurlbuts are uphill from us, so this would
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actually measure 26’ tall from our stance. It would also sit right on our property line.
This structure would loom over our property and have a substantial impact on the
enjoyment of our home and the shared Mid-block Open Space, which is already
impacted by the 40-unit apartment building behind our property.

If you plan to approve the Variance, we ask you please to consider approving it with
conditions. We want the Hurlbuts to be successful, but think that this could be done
in a better way. We have already proposed these modifications back in November
and met with them again this week to see if they’d reconsider the modifications.

Unfortunately, they are not open to these reasonable changes. If the Variance is
approved, we ask for the following conditions to be part of the approval:

1. Most importantly, a set back from our property line.

oIn the Discretionary Review, David Winslow recommends landscape
screening to mitigate the visual impact, and we completely agree.
However, the structure is built right on the property line which
prevents screening.

o We ask for a set back of 6’ - 10’ for landscaping that could
accommodate 15’ high trees needed for proper screening.

o This would reduce the impact on the Mid-block Open Space and cut off
less light to our property.

2. Limit the height to 12" maximum

o The structure measures 20’-4” high, but has the impact of a 26’ high
building, given that we’re downhill from the Hurlbuts.

o There should be enough room on the first story to meet their needs for a
pottery and boating studio. We ask that they keep the studio to be
single story with a 12’ height max.

o The 2nd story is only used to store boats and does not need to be this
tall. At a minimum, we ask that the height of the roof is reduced.

3. Keep existing trees

o The Hurlbuts state that no trees will be removed for this project,
however, their current plans don’t show the most important tree for
screening, a 25 foot pittosporum. This tree would have to be removed
if the structure were built where it is.

o We ask that you keep existing trees so that there is as little impact on



the mid-block open space as possible and improves screening.

4. Separate approval for Accessory Dwelling Unit

o While this is currently designed as an artist studio, we worry that it will
inevitably become an Accessory Dwelling Unit without proper
approvals.

o We ask that there are separate approvals for converting this studio into
an Accessory Dwelling Unit or creating this non-living space into a
livable unit (e.g. adding a kitchen, moving in the in-laws, etc)

oMany houses in the area have enough space in their backyard to create
an ADU; we ask that there would be a separate approval should they
make this a livable space.

Again, we are very supportive of the Hurlbuts having an artist studio, but think this
can be done in a better way. Given that the Hurlbuts are asking to build where
they’re not supposed to, they should be building in a way to lessen the impact to
neighboring property and be more open to modifications.

We ask that you please consider these modifications should you approve the
Variance. Thank you for your consideration.

Kind regards,

Matt & Dorothee Fisher
1524 Masonic Avenue




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

Subject: FW: 1526 Masonic Avenue - Discretionary Review Hearing January 23, 2020

Date: Thursday, January 23, 2020 11:09:54 AM

Attachments: 2020-01-22 DR Obijection.pdf

Jonas P. Ionin,
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

From: icatalyst <icatalyst@earthlink.net>

Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2020 4:57 PM

To: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>

Cc: Winslow, David (CPC) <david.winslow@sfgov.org>

Subject: 1526 Masonic Avenue - Discretionary Review Hearing January 23, 2020

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

Jonas Ionin:

Please see attached letter objecting to the construction of a loft or cottage in the rear of 1526 Masonic.
Please provide this to the Commissioners in advance of the meeting scheduled for 1:00 tomorrow (1/23/20).
Thank you very much.

David Bassan AIA
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D AV I D B A S S A N Al A

January 22, 2020

To: San Francisco Planning Department Commissioners

Re: 1526 Masonic Avenue, San Francisco
Discretionary Review Application

Case: 2019-003900DRP

Permit: 2019.0605.2567

Dear Commissioners:

| have been a resident of 1520 Masonic on and off for many decades, having lived there continuously from
1968 to 1983, and then again from 2013 to the present.

I am writing to express my objection to the planned addition of a new structure in the rear yard of 1526
Masonic Avenue.

1. Gargantuan Apartment Building Behind Site:

Unlike most residential neighborhood blocks in San Francisco, this particular block has an unusual
characteristic that has not been sufficiently identified or addressed. In the lot immediately behind the
Maybeck house at 1526 Masonic is a gargantuan, blockbuster apartment building.

Although the submittal documents in your packet do refer to it as an apartment building at 555 Buena
Vista Avenue West, the documents are technically incorrect in describing it as an 8-story building (on
Sheet A0.2). Because there are 8 stories of apartments OVER a garage level, the actual height of the
structure is 9 stories.

Thus, the sheer size and scale of this structure has not been properly represented, evaluated or
understood.

In addition to being completely out of scale with any other building on this block - or indeed, on any
other nearby block in the neighborhood - this apartment behemoth completely dwarfs and overwhelms
every other building in its vicinity. It also occupies its entire site, with minimal setbacks at the side
yards and, most significantly, at the rear yard.

By occupying its entire site and dwarfing all other buildings in its vicinity, this gargantuan apartment
building must radically alter any notion of a “mid-block open space” for this block.

While the Planning Code addresses most typical conditions, it does not take into account the particularly
overwhelming character of this particular apartment building on all its neighbors.

This 9-story tall, 2-lot wide structure casts a disproportionately long shadow over its neighbors’ yards to
the West in the morning, and it completely overwhelms even the largest trees that are situated near it,
dwarfing even the Monterey Cypress in the yard immediately behind my own.

The result of the overwhelming and forbidding presence of this hulking structure is to make what little
mid-block open space remains all that much more precious - not only to the owners of the individual

1520 MASONIC AVENUE, SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94117
TEL. 415.471.0266 icatalyst@earthlink.net





1526 Masonic Avenue Discretionary Review
January 22, 2020
Page 2

parcels that abut that site, but to all the parcels on the entire block, including the parcel where | live.

While the proposal by the Hurlburts to build an additional structure in their rear yard - a woodworking
“loft” that will effectively be a potential additional residential unit - may comply with the letter of a
variance, it does not comply with the intent of the Planning Code to preserve the mid-block open space
for the beneficial enjoyment of all neighboring parcels.

Just as the Hurlburts enjoy the benefits of their neighbors’ 45% open space in their respective rear yards
- and it should be noted that their neighbors have abided by the Planning Code’s requirements to limit
yard rear additions to preserve 45% of their rear yards as open space - so too should the Hurlburts be
obliged to abide by the same consideration of their neighbors’ open space.

2, Impact on Open Space

It should also be noted that it was highly disingenuous for the Project Sponsor - through the writing of
the Authorized Agent Jeremy Paul - to state on the Response to Discretionary Review that “The proposed
cottage does not create any significant impact on the mid-block open space.” It will make a huge impact
on what little precious open space has remained since the construction of the 9-story apartment block
behind 1526 Masonic, which occurred long after the construction of either the Maybeck house or the
other adjacent single family homes (approximately 1905).

3. Benefit of Other Location

It was also disingenuous for the Project Sponsor to object to building such a structure “way forward next
to the home in a manner which would inappropriately impact this Maybeck without any real benefit,” for
two reasons.

First, there would be a real benefit - it would preserve the mid-block open space not only for the benefit
of the DR requestor to the North, but also for all the residents of this block.

Second, since this Maybeck structure is a private residence, and not open to the public, the rear
elevation is invisible to all (except perhaps a few residents of the 9-story blockbuster apartment
building). Historically, the Planning Commission has been concerned about the impact on any public
view from the street; views of buildings that are concealed or hidden from the street are not relevant.

For all the reasons stated above, | object to the construction of a “woodworking loft” or “Cottage” or
any such additional structure at the rear of the 1526 Masonic parcel and strongly urge you, the
Commissioners, to reject this application.

Very truly yours,

David Bassan AlA






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

Subject: FW: 2019-000650DRP 617 Sanchez - request for continuance

Date: Thursday, January 23, 2020 11:09:43 AM

Commissioners,
Please be advised of the continuance request from the Supervisor’s Office.

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

From: Bintliff, Jacob (BOS) <jacob.bintliff@sfgov.org>

Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2020 5:41 PM

To: lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>

Cc: Winslow, David (CPC) <david.winslow@sfgov.org>

Subject: 2019-000650DRP 617 Sanchez - request for continuance

Dear Jonas and Commission Affairs team,

I’'ve been in touch with the DR filers and their representative, Sue Hestor, regarding their desire for a
continuance of 2019-000650DRP 617 Sanchez scheduled for tomorrow’s hearing. Dave Winslow has
confirmed with the project sponsor that they are amendable to this, and so I’'m writing to request
that this item be proposed for continuance to a date at least a month out (no sooner than 2/20).
This is to allow time for the Supervisor’s office to convene a session between the two parties to try
and find resolution before going to Commission.

| hope this request finds you all well, and please be in touch about this or anything else. Thank you!
Jacob

Jacob Bintliff

Legislative Aide

Office of Supervisor Rafael Mandelman

City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 284
San Francisco, California 94102

(415) 554-7753 | jacob.bintliff@sfgov.org

Pronouns: he, him, his
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

Date: Thursday, January 23, 2020 11:08:10 AM

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
Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2020 11:08 PM

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
Dear Mr. lonin,

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

Subject: FW: 2019-006042CUA|1560 Wallace - revised draft motion

Date: Wednesday, January 22, 2020 3:35:15 PM

Attachments: 1560 Wallace - Draft Motion Revised on 01222020.pdf

Commissioners,
Attached is an errata sheet for the above referenced consent item.

Jonas P. lonin,
Director of Commission Affairs

Planning Department;City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309|Fax: 415-558-6409

jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
www.sfplanning.org

From: Liang, Xinyu (CPC) <xinyu.liang@sfgov.org>

Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2020 3:00 PM

To: lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>

Cc: Sucre, Richard (CPC) <richard.sucre@sfgov.org>

Subject: 2019-006042CUA| 1560 Wallace - revised draft motion

Hi Jonas,

Please see the revised draft motion for 1560 Wallace Ave. The edit is on Page 7 of the Planning Code
Section 101.1(b) findings. The project is currently on the consent calendar for tomorrow. Please let
me know if would need anything else from me. For now, | will let the applicant know that the project
will remain on the consent calendar.

Thank you for your help!

Xinyu Liang, AICP, Planner

Southeast Team, Current Planning Division

San Francisco Planning Department

1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415.575.9182 | Fax: 415-558-6409

Website | Hours of Operation | Property Information Map
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SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Planning Commission Draft Motion
HEARING DATE: JANUARY 23, 2020

Record No.: 2019-006042CUA

Project Address: 1560 WALLACE AVENUE

Zoning: PDR Light Industrial Buffer (PDR-1-B) Zoning District
40-X Height and Bulk District

Block/Lot: 4829/026

Project Sponsor: Vadim Podrobinok

1344 Jackson St. #107
San Francisco, CA 94109

Property Owner: ~ Ken Bloch

2655 Van Ness Avenue

San Francisco, CA 94124
Staff Contact: Xinyu Liang — (415) 575-9182

xinyu.liang@sfgov.org

ADOPTING FINDINGS RELATING TO A CONDITIONAL USE AUTHORIZATION PURSUANT TO
PLANNING CODE SECTIONS 121.9 AND 303, TO ALLOW SUBDIVISION OF A PARCEL THAT IS
EQUAL TO OR GREATER THAN 10,000 SQUARE FEET INTO ONE OR MORE SMALLER PARCELS
IN THE PDR-1-B ZONING DISTRICT, FOR THE PROJECT INVOLVING A LOT SUBDIVISION OF
A 14,600 SQUARE FEET LOT INTO TWO LOTS AND NEW CONSTRUCTION OF A ONE-STORY,
APPROXIMATELY 4,600 SQUARE FEET, INDUSTRIAL WAREHOUSE ON THE VACANT LOT AT
1650 WALLACE AVENUE, LOT 026 IN ASSESSOR’S BLOCK 4829, WITHIN THE PRODUCTION,
DISTRIBUTION AND REPAIR LIGHT INDUSTRIAL BUFFER (PDR-1-B) ZONING DISTRICT AND
A 40-X HEIGHT AND BULK DISTRICT, AND ADOPTING FINDINGS UNDER THE CALIFORNIA
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT.

PREAMBLE

On July 9, 2019, Vadim Podrobinok on behalf of Ken Bloch (hereinafter "Project Sponsor") filed Application
No. 2019-006042CUA
“Department”) for a Conditional Use Authorization for a lot subdivision of a 14,600 square feet lot into two

(hereinafter “Application”) with the Planning Department (hereinafter
lots and new construction of a one-story, approximately 4,600 square feet, industrial warehouse on the

vacant lot (hereinafter “Project”) at 1560 Wallace Avenue, Block 4829 Lot 026 (hereinafter “Project Site”).

The Project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) as a Class 3 categorical
exemption.

On January 23, 2020, the San Francisco Planning Commission (hereinafter “Commission”) conducted a

duly noticed public hearing at a regularly scheduled meeting on Conditional Use Authorization
Application No. 2019-006042CUA.

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

MOVED, that the Commission hereby authorizes the Conditional Use Authorization as requested in
Application No. 2019-006042CUA, subject to the conditions contained in “EXHIBIT A” of this motion,
based on the following findings:

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

2. Project Description. The Project includes a lot subdivision of a 14,600 square feet lot into two lots
and new construction of a one-story, approximately 4,600 square feet, industrial warehouse on the
vacant lot for construction equipment storage.

3. Site Description and Present Use. The Project is located on one lot (with a lot area of
approximately 14,700 square feet), which has approximately 146 feet of frontage along Wallace
Avenie. The Project Site contains a one-story, approximately 10,000 square feet, industrial building
at 1550-1550A Wallace Avenue that was constructed in 1948. The remaining 4,600 square feet of
land is vacant.

On February 13, 2018, the Planning Department approved a Lot Line Adjustment (case no. 2018-
001028LLA) to merge three lots (Block 4829, Lots 005, 006, & 006A, 007) at 1536-1540 Wallace
Avenue, 1550 Wallace Avenue, and 1550-1560 Wallace, into one lot (Block 4829 Lot 026) of a total
of 14,600 square feet in area.

4. Surrounding Properties and Neighborhood. The Project Site is located within the PDR-1-B
Zoning Districts in the Bayview Hunters Point Area Plan. The immediate context is mixed in
character with residential and institutional uses. The adjacent properties to the west and to the east
are improved with one-story industrial buildings. The immediate neighborhood across Keith Street
includes two-to-three-story residential development. Other zoning districts in the vicinity of the
project site include PDR-2 (Core Production Distribution and Repair - Bayview), RH-1
(Residential, House Districts, One-Family), and RH-2 (Residential, House Districts, Two-Family)
Zoning Districts.

5. Public Outreach and Comments. The Department has not received any public correspondence
expressing support for, or opposition to the revised project. The Project was referred to the Bayview
Hunters Point Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) on July 26, 2019, and received no further
comments.

SAN FRANCISCO
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6. Planning Code Compliance. The Commission finds that the Project is consistent with the relevant

provisions of the Planning Code in the following manner:

A. Use. The project proposes to establish a Storage Yard Use. Per Planning Code Section 102, this

is “an Industrial Use involving the storage of building materials or lumber, stones or
monuments, livestock feed, or contractors' equipment, if conducted within an area enclosed by
a wall or concealing fence not less than six feet high. This use does not include Vehicle Storage
or a Hazardous Waste Facility.” Storage Yard is a principally permitted land use in the PDR-
1-B Zoning District if the total area is no greater than 5,000 square feet.

The Project Sponsor is proposing to establish a Storage Yard Use at the site for a total of 4,600 square
feet. The warehouse will be used for storing construction equipment.

Floor Area Ratio. Planning Code Section 210.3. requires the gross floor area of a structure on a
lot in PDR Districts may not exceed a floor area ratio of 3 to 1 in a 40-foot height district.

The Project proposes a floor area of 1 to 1 which complies with Planning Code Section 210.3. The total
developable square footage is 13,800 and the Project proposes a total of 4,600 square feet warehouse.

Ground Floor Standards in Industrial District. Planning Code Section 145.5. requires all new
buildings constructed in Industrial Districts, as defined in Section 201, shall provide ground
floor spaces with a minimum floor-to-floor height of 17 feet, as measured from grade.

The Project proposes a ground floor height of more than 20 feet which complies with Planning Code
Section 210.3.

Height. The Project is located in a 40-X Height and Bulk District which limit the height of the
building be no taller than 40 feet per Planning Code Section 260.

The Project proposes to construct a one-story 24-feet tall building that complies with Planning Code
Section 260.

7. Subdivision of Lage Lots in PDR Districts Findings. Planning Code Section 121.9 establishes

criteria for the Planning Commission to consider when reviewing applications for Conditional Use

authorization. All proposals for the subdivision, resubdivision, or lot line adjustments of parcels

in PDR Districts shall be evaluated in consideration of the following criteria in order to further

Objective 4 of the Commerce and Industry Element and Policies 1.5 and 8.1 of the Bayview Hunters

Point Area Plan:

A. The proposed parcelization will support light industrial activities in the district.

SAN FRANCISCO

The proposed parcelization will support the development of a one-story, approximately 4,600 square feet,
industrial warehouse on currently vacant land.
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B.

If the resulting parcelization will require demolition of a structure, the demolition of the
structure complies with the Industrial Uses replacement requirement per Section 202.7.

The parcelization will not require the demolition of any existing structures.

The uses proposed for the parcels, if any, comply with the cumulative use size limits detailed
in the PDR Zoning Control Table.

The Project Sponsor is proposing to establish a Storage Yard Use at the site for a total of 4,600 square
feet which complies with the cumulative use size limits of 5,000 square feet in the PDR Zoning Control
Table.

8. Conditional Use Findings. Planning Code Section 303 establishes criteria for the Planning
Commission to consider when reviewing applications for Conditional Use authorization. On

balance, the project complies with said criteria in that:

A. The proposed new uses and building, at the size and intensity contemplated and at the

SAN FRANCISCO

proposed location, will provide a development that is necessary or desirable, and compatible
with, the neighborhood or the community.

The size of the proposed building is in keeping with other industrial units on the block face. The proposed
use is supportive of new small businesses to the City, thus providing economic opportunity and
employment for residents. Overall, the addition of new industrial uses is necessary and desirable with
the overall character of the surrounding neighborhood.

The proposed project will not be detrimental to the health, safety, convenience or general
welfare of persons residing or working in the vicinity. There are no features of the project that
could be detrimental to the health, safety or convenience of those residing or working the area,
in that:

(1) Nature of proposed site, including its size and shape, and the proposed size, shape and
arrangement of structures;

The height and bulk of the proposed building will be in consistent with the existing appearance or
character of the surrounding neighborhood.

(2) The accessibility and traffic patterns for persons and vehicles, the type and volume of such
traffic, and the adequacy of proposed off-street parking and loading;

The Planning Code does not require parking or loading for any uses. Traffic patterns for persons and
vehicles will not be impacted as the surrounding buildings are also for warehouse use. No additional
off-street parking is provided and all loading will be done within the warehouse via the overhead
vehicle doots.
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(3) The safeguards afforded to prevent noxious or offensive emissions such as noise, glare, dust
and odor;

No hazardous materials are proposed to be stored within the Project Site. No offensive emissions such
as noise, dust and odor will be emitted out of the proposed warehouse.

(4) Treatment given, as appropriate, to such aspects as landscaping, screening, open spaces,
parking and loading areas, service areas, lighting and signs;

The existing streetscape will not be altered by the Project.

C. That the use as proposed will comply with the applicable provisions of the Planning Code and
will not adversely affect the General Plan.

The Project complies with all relevant requirements and standards of the Planning Code and is
consistent with the objectives and policies of the General Plan as detailed below.

D. That the use as proposed would provide development that is in conformity with the purpose
of the applicable PDR-1-B District.

The Project is consistent with the stated purposed of the PDR-1-B Zoning District in that the intended
use is to allow for less intensive production, distribution, and repair activities that will not compromise
the quality of life of nearby residents.

9. General Plan Compliance. The Project is, on balance, consistent with the following Objectives and
Policies of the General Plan:

COMMERCE AND INDUSTRY ELEMENT

Objectives and Policies

OBJECTIVE 1:
MANAGE ECONOMIC GROWTH AND CHANGE TO ENSURE ENHANCEMENT OF THE
TOTAL CITY LIVING AND WORKING ENVIRONMENT.

Policy 1.2
Assure that all commercial and industrial uses meet minimum, reasonable performance standards

Policy 1.3
Locate commercial and industrial activities according to a generalized commercial and industrial
land use plan.

OBJECTIVE 2:
MAINTAIN AND ENHANCE A SOUND AND DIVERSE ECONOMIC BASE AND FISCAL
STRUCTURE FOR THE CITY.

SAN FRANCISCO
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Policy 2.1
Seek to retain existing commercial and industrial activity and to attract new such activity to the
city.
OBJECTIVE 3:

PROVIDE EXPANDED EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES FOR CITY RESIDENTS,
PARTICULARLY THE UNEMPLOYED AND ECONOMICALLY DISADVANTAGED.

Policy 3.1
Promote the attraction, retention and expansion of commercial and industrial firms which provide
employment improvement opportunities for unskilled and semi-skilled workers.

Policy 3.4
Assist newly emerging economic activities.

OBJECTIVE 4:
IMPROVE THE VIABILITY OF EXISTING INDUSTRY IN THE CITY AND THE
ATTRACTIVENESS OF THE CITY AS A LOCATION FOR NEW INDUSTRY.

Policy 4.11
Maintain an adequate supply of space appropriate to the needs of incubator industries.

BAYVIEW HUNTERS POINT AREA PLAN
LAND USE

Objectives and Policies

OBJECTIVE 1:

STIMULATE BUSINESS, EMPLOYMENT, AND HOUSING GROWTH WITHIN THE EXISTING
GENERAL LAND USE PATTERN BY RESOLVING CONFLICTS BETWEEN ADJACENT
INDUSTRIAL AND RESIDENTIAL AREAS.

Policy 1.5

Encourage a wider variety of light industrial uses throughout the Bayview by maintaining the
newly established Production, Distribution and Repair zoning, by more efficient use of industrial
space, and by more attractive building design.

OBJECTIVE 8:

STIMULATE BUSINESS, EMPLOYMENT, AND HOUSING GROWTH WITHIN THE EXISTING
GENERAL LAND USE PATTERN BY RESOLVING CONFLICTS BETWEEN ADJACENT
INDUSTRIAL AND RESIDENTIAL AREAS.

SAN FRANCISCO
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10.

Policy 8.1
Maintain industrial zones for production, distribution, and repair activities in the Northern
Gateway, South Basin, Oakinba, and India Basin Industrial Park subdistricts.

OBJECTIVE 9:
IMPROVE LINKAGES BETWEEN GROWTH IN BAYVIEW’S INDUSTRIAL AREAS AND THE
EMPLOYMENT AND BUSINESS NEEDS OF THE BAYVIEW HUNTERS POINT COMMUNITY.

Policy 9.2
Encourage the local business community to play a larger role in Bayview’s industrial sector.

The Project is a small-scale industrial project to construct a 4,600 square feet industrial warehouse which
would provide employment and economic opportunity for the local residents of Bayview Hunters Point. The
proposed new building is fully compliant with all the applicable planning codes. The height and bulk of the
proposed building will be in consistent with the existing appearance or character of the surrounding
neighborhood. Lastly, the proposed parcelization will not require any demolition of the existing structure.

Planning Code Section 101.1(b) establishes eight priority-planning policies and requires review of
permits for consistency with said policies. On balance, the project complies with said policies in
that:

A. That existing neighborhood-serving retail uses be preserved and enhanced and future
opportunities for resident employment in and ownership of such businesses be enhanced.

The project site does not possess any neighborhood-serving retail uses and is not principally zoned for
such uses. As such, existing neighborhood-serving retail uses be preserved.

B. That existing housing and neighborhood character be conserved and protected in order to
preserve the cultural and economic diversity of our neighborhoods.

The project development site does not possess any existing housing. The massing of the proposed building
will be in consistent with the existing appearance or character of the surrounding neighborhood.

C. That the City's supply of affordable housing be preserved and enhanced,

The Project site does not contain any existing affordable housing; thus, the City’s supply of affordable
housing be preserved.

D. That commuter traffic not impede MUNI transit service or overburden our streets or
neighborhood parking.

The Project Site is served by nearby public transportation options, including the T-Third Street Light
Rail line. As such, it is well served by transit and the project will not overburden streets or neighborhood
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

The Project proposes new PDR space, thus assisting in maintaining a diverse economic base by
providing new opportunities for resident employment and ownership.

That the City achieve the greatest possible preparedness to protect against injury and loss of
life in an earthquake.

The Project will be designed and will be constructed to conform to the structural and seismic safety
requirements of the Building Code. This proposal will not impact the property’s ability to withstand an
earthquake.

That landmarks and historic buildings be preserved.

Currently, the Project Site does not contain any City Landmarks or historic buildings.

That our parks and open space and their access to sunlight and vistas be protected from
development.

The Project will not cast shadow on adjacent public parks.

11. The Project is consistent with and would promote the general and specific purposes of the Code

provided under Section 101.1(b) in that, as designed, the Project would contribute to the character

and stability of the neighborhood and would constitute a beneficial development.

12. The Commission hereby finds that approval of the Conditional Use Authorization would promote
the health, safety and welfare of the City.

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
written materials submitted by all parties, the Commission hereby APPROVES Conditional Use
Authorization Application No. 2019-006042CUA subject to the following conditions attached hereto as
“EXHIBIT A” in general conformance with plans on file, dated March 22, 2019, and stamped “EXHIBIT B”,
which is incorporated herein by reference as though fully set forth.

APPEAL AND EFFECTIVE DATE OF MOTION: Any aggrieved person may appeal this Conditional Use
Authorization to the Board of Supervisors within thirty (30) days after the date of this Motion. The effective
date of this Motion shall be the date of this Motion if not appealed (after the 30-day period has expired) OR
the date of the decision of the Board of Supervisors if appealed to the Board of Supervisors. For further
information, please contact the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184, City Hall, Room 244, 1 Dr. Carlton
B. Goodlett Place, San Francisco, CA 94102.

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

I'hereby certify that the Planning Commission ADOPTED the foregoing Motion on January 23, 2020.

Jonas P. Ionin
Commission Secretary

AYES:
NAYS:

ABSENT:
ADOPTED: January 23, 2020
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EXHIBIT A
AUTHORIZATION

This authorization is for a conditional use to allow subdivision of a parcel that is equal to or greater than
10,000 square feet into one or more smaller parcels in the PDR-1-B Zoning District, for the Project involving
a lot subdivision of a 14,600 square feet lot into two lots and new construction of a one-story, approximately
4,600 square feet, industrial warehouse located at 1560 Wallace Avenue, Block 4829, and Lot 026 pursuant
to Planning Code Sections 121.0 and 303 within the PDR-1-B Zoning District and a 40-X Height and Bulk
District; in general conformance with plans, dated March 22, 2019, and stamped “EXHIBIT B” included in
the docket for Record No. 2019-006042CUA and subject to conditions of approval reviewed and approved
by the Commission on January 23, 2020 under Motion No XXXXXX. This authorization and the conditions
contained herein run with the property and not with a particular Project Sponsor, business, or operator.

RECORDATION OF CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

Prior to the issuance of the building permit or commencement of use for the Project the Zoning
Administrator shall approve and order the recordation of a Notice in the Official Records of the Recorder
of the City and County of San Francisco for the subject property. This Notice shall state that the project is
subject to the conditions of approval contained herein and reviewed and approved by the Planning
Commission on January 23, 2020 under Motion No XXXXXX.

PRINTING OF CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL ON PLANS

The conditions of approval under the 'Exhibit A' of this Planning Commission Motion No. XXXXXX shall
be reproduced on the Index Sheet of construction plans submitted with the site or building permit
application for the Project. The Index Sheet of the construction plans shall reference to the Conditional Use
authorization and any subsequent amendments or modifications.

SEVERABILITY

The Project shall comply with all applicable City codes and requirements. If any clause, sentence, section
or any part of these conditions of approval is for any reason held to be invalid, such invalidity shall not
affect or impair other remaining clauses, sentences, or sections of these conditions. This decision conveys
no right to construct, or to receive a building permit. “Project Sponsor” shall include any subsequent
responsible party.

CHANGES AND MODIFICATIONS

Changes to the approved plans may be approved administratively by the Zoning Administrator.
Significant changes and modifications of conditions shall require Planning Commission approval of a new
Conditional Use authorization.

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
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6. Transportation Sustainability Fee. The Project is subject to the Transportation Sustainability Fee

(TSF), as applicable, pursuant to Planning Code Section 411A.
For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at 415-558-6378,
www.sf-planning.org

MONITORING - AFTER ENTITLEMENT

7.

Enforcement. Violation of any of the Planning Department conditions of approval contained in
this Motion or of any other provisions of Planning Code applicable to this Project shall be subject
to the enforcement procedures and administrative penalties set forth under Planning Code Section
176 or Section 176.1. The Planning Department may also refer the violation complaints to other
city departments and agencies for appropriate enforcement action under their jurisdiction.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 415-575-6863,
www.sf-planning.org

Revocation due to Violation of Conditions. Should implementation of this Project result in
complaints from interested property owners, residents, or commercial lessees which are not
resolved by the Project Sponsor and found to be in violation of the Planning Code and/or the
specific conditions of approval for the Project as set forth in Exhibit A of this Motion, the Zoning
Administrator shall refer such complaints to the Commission, after which it may hold a public
hearing on the matter to consider revocation of this authorization.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 415-575-6863,
www.sf-planning.org

OPERATION

9.

Community Liaison. Prior to issuance of a building permit to construct the project and implement
the approved use, the Project Sponsor shall appoint a community liaison officer to deal with the
issues of concern to owners and occupants of nearby properties. The Project Sponsor shall provide
the Zoning Administrator and all registered neighborhood groups for the area with written notice
of the name, business address, and telephone number of the community liaison. Should the contact
information change, the Zoning Administrator and registered neighborhood groups shall be made
aware of such change. The community liaison shall report to the Zoning Administrator what
issues, if any, are of concern to the community and what issues have not been resolved by the
Project Sponsor.

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
Subject: FW: Multi-Factor Authentication required for Office 365, starting Jan 2020
Date: Wednesday, January 22, 2020 1:53:27 PM

Attachments: (SMS) Setting up MFA in Office 365.docx
(App) Setting up MFA in Office 365.docx
(Phone Call) Setting up MFA in Office 365.docx
image001.png

Jonas P. lonin,
Director of Commission Affairs

Planning Department|City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309;Fax: 415-558-6409

jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
www.sfplanning.org

From: Yoshikawa, Genta (CPC) <genta.yoshikawa@sfgov.org>

Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2020 1:52 PM

To: Foley, Chris (CPC) <chris.foley@sfgov.org>; Richards, Dennis (CPC) <dennis.richards@sfgov.org>;
Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Black, Kate (CPC)
<kate.black@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; So, Lydia (CPC)
<lydia.so@sfgov.org>; Johnson, Milicent (CPC) <milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>; Melgar, Myrna (CPC)
<myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>

Cc: lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; Wong, Barry (CPC) <barry.w.wong@sfgov.org>; Sanders,
Micheal (CPC) <micheal.sanders@sfgov.org>

Subject: RE: Multi-Factor Authentication required for Office 365, starting Jan 2020

Dear SF Planning Commissioners,

MFA has been activated on your Office365 accounts today. Please access Outlook Web Access
(http://outlook.com/sfgov.org) and complete MFA registration.

Please contact Barry or Genta at City Planning Help Desk if you have any question or need an assistance.

Barry Wong | Barry. W.Wong@sfgov.org | 415-575-8759

Genta Yoshikawa | Genta.Yoshikawa@sfgov.org | 415-558-6269 (out of office between 1/16 —
1/21/2020)

Thanks,

Genta Yoshikawa

IS Administrator

San Francisco Planning Department

1650 Mission Street, Suite 400 San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415.558.6269 | www.sfplanning.org

San Francisco Property Information Map

From: Yoshikawa, Genta (CPC)
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		[bookmark: _GoBack]Quick-start Guide: Setting up Multifactor Authentication for Office 365
Using SMS to your mobile phone
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		1

		Log into Outlook on the Web after MFA has been enabled for your account: http://outlook.com/sfgov.org. Log into your account and when prompted, click the Set it up now button to proceed.

		2

		Select Authentication Phone in the drop drown menu. Enter your mobile phone number and select Send me a code by text message. Click Next to continue.
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		3

		You will receive an SMS message to your phone with a verification code. Enter the code and click Verify.

		4

		You will be prompted to set up an app password for apps that don’t use MFA. Unless directed by your IT staff to use the password, you can skip this step. Click Done.
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Additional security verification

Secure your account by adding phone verification to your password, View video to know how to secure your account
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Additional security verification

Secure your account by adding phone verification to your password, View video to know how to secure your account

Step 2: We've sent a text message to your phone at +14151234567
When you receive the verification code, enter it here
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Additional security verification

Secure your sccount by sdding phone verificstion to your password. View video to know how to secure your sccount
Step 4: Keep using your existing applications

In some apps,like Outlook, Apple Mail, and Microsoft Office, you can't use a phone to secure your account. To use these apps, you'l need to create a new "app
password" to use in place of your work or school account password, Learn more
Get started with this app password:
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		[bookmark: _GoBack]Quick-start Guide: Setting up Multifactor Authentication for Office 365
Using the Microsoft Authenticator mobile app on your phone or tablet
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		1

		Log into Outlook on the Web after MFA has been enabled for your account: http://outlook.com/sfgov.org. Log into your account and when prompted, click the Set it up now button to proceed.

		2

		Select Mobile App in the drop drown menu. Click Receive notifications for verification. Click the Set up button to add your account to the mobile app.
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		3

		On your phone or tablet, download the Microsoft Authenticator from the Apple App store or Google Play store. When you open it for the first time, it will prompt you to grant the app access to your camera and push notifications. Camera access is used to scan the QR code in Step 4, notifications are required so you can approve access to your account.

		4

		Open the Microsoft Authenticator app on your mobile device and click + to add your account (on Android click the 3 dots to add your account). Select Work or School account and scan the QR code on the screen. Click Next after scanning the code, and Next again.



		1. [image: ]        
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		5

		You will receive a test verification to your mobile app. Check your mobile device and click Approve when prompted.

		6

		Add your mobile number, to help you access your account in the event you lose access to the mobile app (i.e. lost phone). Click Next to continue.
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		7

		You will be prompted to set up an app password for apps that don’t use MFA. Unless directed by your IT staff to use the password, you can skip this step. Click Done.

		 

		[image: Image result for warning sign]

		Only approve access when you are trying to log into your O365 account.



If you are prompted to approve access and it didn’t come from you – your password may have been stolen!



Deny the request and report this to your IT staff immediately.











		

[image: ]



		







image1.png

SAN FRANCISCO
DEPARTMENT OF
& TECHNOLOGY






image2.png

] Office 365

For added security, we need to further verify your account

bob.dawg@sfgov1.onmicros.

Your admin has required that you set up this account for
additional security verifigation.

Sign Ut and sign in with a different account

More information






image3.png

Additional security verification

Secure your account by adding phone verification to your password, View video to know how to secure your account

Step 1: How should we contact you?

Mobile app. v

o
© Recevenoictons forvefction .

O Use verification code

To use thesg verification methods, you must set up the Microsoft Authenticator app.
tobile app has been configured.







image4.jpeg

NN S AR

Micrasoft Authenticator
Erore

@@0@

U sl Sl s &+ nees 5

s

s nen
exdarfornane mprsemerts. Mate s

Jursa—






image5.png

Your account provider il display a QR code.

I =

L |

or enter code manually






image6.png

Configure mobile app
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1. Install the Microsoft authenticator app for Windows Phone, Android or iOS.
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

		Select Authentication Phone in the drop drown menu. Enter your mobile phone number and select Call Me. Click Next to continue.
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		3

		You will receive an automated phone call to your phone. Press # on your phone when prompted.

		4

		You will be prompted to set up an app password for apps that don’t use MFA. Unless directed by your IT staff to use the password, you can skip this step. Click Done.
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Additional security verification

Secure your account by adding phone verification to your password. View video to know how to secure your account
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Answer it to continue...






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
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Sent: Wednesday, January 15, 2020 4:54 PM

To: Foley, Chris (CPC) <chris.foley@sfgov.org>; Richards, Dennis (CPC) <dennis.richards@sfgov.org>;
Fung, Frank (CPC) <Erank.Fung@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <Joel.Koppel@sfgov.org>; Black, Kate
(CPC) <kate.black@sfgov.org>; 'Kathrin.Moore@sfgov.org' <Kathrin.Moore @sfgov.org>; So, Lydia (CPC)
<Lydia.So@sfgov.org>; Johnson, Milicent (CPC) <Milicent.Johnson@sfgov.org>; Melgar, Myrna (CPC)
<Myrna.Melgar@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>

Cc: lonin, Jonas (jonas.ionin@sfgov.org) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; Wong, Barry (CPC)
<Barry.W.Wong@sfgov.org>; Sanders, Micheal (CPC) <micheal.sanders@sfgov.org>

Subject: Multi-Factor Authentication required for Office 365, starting Jan 2020

Dear SF Planning Commissioners,
I’'m Genta Yoshikawa with SF Planning IT Help Desk.

As | mentioned in my previous email sent on December 20, 2019. There will be a new IT security policy
that will impact your Office365 user accounts (SFGOV email).

City recently announced a new IT security policy where all CCSE users will be required to enroll their
Office365 accounts with multi-factor authentication (MFA) by January 22, 2020. (Originally 1/21 but
postponed to 1/22/2020)

MFA is a security step that helps protect your account by making it harder for others to break in. It uses
two different forms of identification: your password and a contact method such as a mobile phone. Even
in an event when someone acquires your password, this person won’t be able to access your account
without an access to your secondary contact method (your mobile phone).

1] Office 365

PASSWORD ACCESS

Is that v

Success!

MFA will be enabled for your account on January 22, 2020 by default. Or, you are more than welcome to
request for an early activation.

Once MFA is enabled, you will be required to go through an initial setup process before you can access
your SFGOV mailbox.

Attached to this email are step by step instructions for three contact methods you can choose from:
1. Authenticator App
2. SMS Text
3. Phone Call

Please contact Barry or Genta at City Planning Help Desk if you have any question or need an assistance.
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Barry Wong | Barry.W.Wong@sfgov.org | 415-575-8759
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
n Franci Pr Information M

From: DT Communications <norepl fgov.org>

Sent: Monday, November 18, 2019 3:00 PM

To: Yoshikawa, Genta (CPC) <genta.yoshikawa@sfgov.org>

Subject: Multi-Factor Authentication required for Office 365, starting Jan 2020

Office 365 Multi-Factor Authentication

January 21, 2020

In response to the rise in sophisticated phishing, spear phishing, and
malware attacks that are targeting our staff, all CCSF users will be required
to enroll their Office 365 accounts with multi-factor authentication (MFA) by
January 21, 2020.
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MFA is an additional security step that helps protect user accounts by
making it harder for bad actors to log in using another's username and
password. It uses two different forms of identification: a user's passwrd
password plus a contact method such as a mobile device or desk phone.
Even if someone obtains a user's password, they will be unable to log in to
the user's account without ID verification from their second contact method.

A user's identity can be verified using:

e One-time SMS code to a mobile device
« Automated phone call to number of a user's choosing
o Authenticator app on a mobile device

Action ltems

IT Administrators should review the Office 365 MFA Administration
Guide for information about application compatibility and instructions for

enabling user enrollment.

Additionally, end-users should be notified of the upcoming change and
provided instructions to complete enrollment. More information and
enrollment guides can be found in the Office 365 Multi-Factor Authentication
site.

To minimize the potential impact of support calls to your Service Desk, we
recommend testing and enabling MFA for users in groups before January
21, 2020. If you would like help planning and scheduling this rollout, please

contact the Department of Technology Service Desk.

Questions?
If you have any questions, please contact the Department of Technology

Service desk at dtis.helpdesk@sfgov.org.

&l Join the conversation in the ©O365 Admins Team

-]

@l Learn more at the DT Service Desk SharePoint site

-]


https://t.e2ma.net/click/6euk2p/ioxim7b/6y13xs
https://t.e2ma.net/click/6euk2p/ioxim7b/6y13xs
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https://t.e2ma.net/click/6euk2p/ioxim7b/ic43xs

This email has been sent to members of the Office 365 Administrators group for the City and County of San

Francisco.

Copyright © 2018 City & County of San Francisco, Department of Technology, All rights reserved.

Support:
(628) 652-5000
dtis.helpdesk@sfgov.org

City & County of San Francisco, Department of Technology
1 South Van Ness 2nd floor San Francisco, California 94103 USA
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

Subject: FW: 313 Ivy Street Letters of Support

Date: Wednesday, January 22, 2020 1:39:33 PM

Attachments: ETA NeighborhoodSupport5.pdf

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

From: angel <brokenspectacles@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2020 1:19 PM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Office of Cannabis (ADM)
<officeofcannabis@sfgov.org>

Subject: Fwd: 313 lvy Street Letters of Support

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

please see attached
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Dear Planning Commissioners,

| am writing to show support for 415 Native LLC, a cannabis equity applicant
group applying for a conditional use to open up a cannabis retail location at 313 Ivy
Street, San Francisco, California 94104. | have known the applicants for a very long
time and are familiar with their business practices and commitment to the community.

Owners Mike, Nguey and Angel care about the community they are in and
conduct business in an upstanding and respectable manner. They have been given the
opportunity to open a cannabis retail location at 313 Ivy Street through the Equity
Program, a program designed by the city of San Francisco to foster the equitable
participation in the cannabis industry and to help create business opportunities for those
negatively impacted by the war on drugs. Mike, is an equity business owner and
longstanding member of the community who runs a youth tennis program and works in
cannabis advocacy. Nguey and Angel, owners of the Fig and Thistle Market and Wine
Bar have been working in small business for over 6 years now in both the food and
beverage industry as well as the cannabis industry. They have been friends for over 20
years and are all from the city, together you have a group of people that have already
proven their commitment to creating a space both welcomed by the neighborhood and
customers alike and dedication to the community and to the betterment of the city. Stay
Gold has the ability to provide the same positive impact that their previous projects have
delivered.

It is my opinion that this cannabis dispensary will be an asset to the community
and | want to support their efforts to provide a safe and welcoming space for cannabis
access and education. Please help keep San Francisco special and commerce local by
allowing small businesses like this one to operate and thrive in the community.

Sincerely,

L1520

Signature \_<= Date
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Dear Planning Commissioners,

I'am Yvriting to show support for 415 Native LLC, a cannabis equity applicant
group applying for a conditional use to open up a cannabis retail location at 313 lvy
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opportunity to open a cannabis retail location at 313 Ivy Street through the Equity
Progrfam. a program designed by the city of San Francisco to foster the equitable
pa't'C'.Pation in the cannabis industry and to help create business opportunities for those
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
$treet. San Francisco, California 94104. | have known the applicants for a very long
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
allowing smgl| businesses like this one to operate and thrive in the community.
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Dear Planning Commissioners,

I am writing to show support for 415 Native LLC, a cannabis equity applicant
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
customers alike and dedication to the commuﬁity and to the betterment of the city. Stay
Gold has the ability to provide the same. positive impact that their previous projects have
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
allowing small busipesses like this one to operate and thrive in the community.
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
Years and are all from the city, together you have a group of people that have already
Proven their commitment to creating a space both welcomed by the neighborhood and
Customers alike and dedication to the community and to the betterment of the city. Stay
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
% Z 0/ /5 - 2020
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
opportunity to open a cannabis retail location at 313 lvy Street through the Equity
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

Singsyely,
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
' longstanding member of the community who runs a youth tennis program and works in
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

Sincerely, / <
/ \ T~ \/ e
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

| am writing to show support for 415 Native, LLC dba Stay Gold, a cannabis retail
location at 669 Mississippi Street, in San Francisco, California. Owners Mike, Nguey
and Angel care about the community they are in and conduct business in an upstanding
and respectable manner. They have been given the opportunity to open Stay Gold
through the Equity Program, a program designed by the city of San Francisco to foster
the equitable participation in the cannabis industry and to help create business
opportunities for those negatively impacted by the war on drugs. Mike, is an equity
business owner and longstanding member of the community who runs a youth tennis
program and works in cannabis advocacy. Nguey and Angel, owners of the Fig and
Thistle Market and Wine Bar have been working in small business for over 6 years now
in both the food and beverage industry as well as the cannabis industry. They have
been friends for over 20 years and are all from the city, together you have a group of
people that have already proven their commitment to creating a space both welcomed
by the neighborhood and customers alike and dedication to the community and to the
betterment of the city. Stay Gold has the ability to provide the same positive impact that
their previous projects have delivered.

It is my opinion that Stay Gold will be an asset to the community and | want to
support their efforts to provide a safe and welcoming space for cannabis access and
consumption. | believe there will be added value to the community if they are awarded
the license that would allow Stay Gold to operate a cannabis retail dispensary and
consumption lounge at their building located on Mississippi St. Please help keep San
Francisco special and commerce local by allowing small businesses like this one to
operate and thrive in the community.

Sikce \ely,

/ / Iy / D
Sig\‘rq\a)&re Date |

Acwelk \falg st

Printed Name

YK yové
Address

ULBAIANE B B . C o
Email/Contact Info

ST Spaplh Rog eSS ‘g






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
Opportunity to open a cannabis retail location at 313 Ivy Street through the Equity
Program, a program designed by the city of San Francisco to foster the equitable
Participation in the cannabis industry and to help create business opportunities for those
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
" beverage industry as well as the cannabis industry. They have been friends for over 20
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

Mg /i f2e
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
delivered. '

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

Sincerely, j
f JL\ [0, 2>
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
access and edugdfion. Please help keep San Francisco special and commerce local by
allowing sma operate and thrive in the community.
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
/\v/]é véi—\ l / 10 ! 2020
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Dear Planning Commissioners,

I am writing to show support for 415 Native LLC, a cannabis equity applicant
group applying for a conditional use to open up a cannabis retail location at 313 vy
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
Street, San Francisco, Califomia 94104. | have known the applicants for a very long
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

/% \ |\o | z0z0
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

Sincerely,”
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

Subject: FW: Good Afternoon,

Date: Wednesday, January 22, 2020 1:39:12 PM

Attachments: Native 415.pdf

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

From: Amy Krahe <divergentvinellc@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2020 1:16 PM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>

Cc: Hicks, Bridget (CPC) <Bridget.Hicks@sfgov.org>; Office of Cannabis (ADM)
<officeofcannabis@sfgov.org>; angel <brokenspectacles@gmail.com>
Subject: Good Afternoon,

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

| would like to submit two letters of support for 415 Native LLC in reference to their application for
cannabis retail location located at 313 Ivy St, SF CA 94104.

Thank you,

Sincerely,

Amy M Krahe

Aaron M Bryan

1380 S Van Ness Ave
SF, CA 94110

Amy M Krahe
415.516.6954

Tag + Jug Cider Co.
divergent vine
Conduit Wine
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
-+, customers alike and dedication to the community and to the betterment of the city. Stay
" Gold has the ability to provide the same positive impact that their previous projects have
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

Sincerely, ?f
/0( g%w / - /4{ ” Zoao
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

@M Kok ¢t~13-20

Date

Signature'

Printed Name: Amy Keanc
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

Subject: FW: Signed Declaration of Benafsha Irani regarding 617 Sanchez Street

Date: Wednesday, January 22, 2020 11:13:19 AM

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

From: Winslow, David (CPC) <david.winslow@sfgov.org>

Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2020 10:57 AM

To: lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>

Subject: FW: Signed Declaration of Benafsha Irani regarding 617 Sanchez Street

No, it is some sort of project history that hey wish to have the commission see.

David Winslow

Principal Architect

Design Review | Citywide and Current Planning

San Francisco Planning Department

1650 Mission Street, Suite 400 | San Francisco, California, 94103
T: (415) 575-9159

From: Benafsha Irani <birani@hotmail.com>

Sent: Tuesday, January 21, 2020 3:50 PM

To: Winslow, David (CPC) <david.winslow@sfgov.org>; Sue Hestor <hestor@earthlink.net>; Robert
Edmonds <robert@edmondslee.com>

Cc: Ajello Hoagland, Linda (CPC) <linda.ajellohoagland @sfgov.org>; Brian Higginbotham

<sfo415@outlook.com>
Subject: Signed Declaration of Benafsha Irani regarding 617 Sanchez Street

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
Subject: FW: mailed letter of opposition to 313 Ivy 2019-016523CUA
Date: Wednesday, January 22, 2020 10:47:43 AM
Attachments: mailed letter of opposition 313 Ivy.pdf
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

From: Hicks, Bridget (CPC) <Bridget.Hicks@sfgov.org>

Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2020 8:48 AM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: mailed letter of opposition to 313 lvy 2019-016523CUA

FYI

Bridget Hicks, M.S.
Planner Il, SW Quadrant, Current Planning Division

Direct: 415-575-9054 | Fax: 415-558-6409

1650 Mission Street, Suite 400
SF Planning San Francisco, CA 94103

Department
Hours of Operation | Property Information Map
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January 14, 2020
Hi Bridget Hicks,

Unfortunately, I cannot attend the pyblic hearing on January 23, 2020, byt would like to
voice my opinion.

Regarding:
Project Address: 313 Ivy St

Cross Street: Gough st

Block Lot: 0808/004

Zoning District Hayes NCT/50-x
Area Plan: Market & Octavia
Record Number: 2019-016523CUA
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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** FOCUS ON EQUITY WILL INCREASE ACCESS TO CAMP MATHER FOR LOW-
INCOME RESIDENTS

Date: Wednesday, January 22, 2020 10:43:55 AM

Attachments: 01.22.20 Camp Mather.pdf

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

Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2020 10:35 AM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** FOCUS ON EQUITY WILL INCREASE ACCESS TO CAMP MATHER FOR
LOW-INCOME RESIDENTS

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, January 22, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

#%+* PRESS RELEASE ***
FOCUS ON EQUITY WILL INCREASE ACCESS TO
CAMP MATHER FOR LOW-INCOME RESIDENTS

Recent Recreation and Park Department initiatives, with support from First 5 San Francisco,
enable 132 low-income families to attend Camp Mather for free or at a discounted rate this
summer

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced recent initiatives have
resulted in expanded access for visitors at Camp Mather, San Francisco’s family camp in the
High Sierras. The San Francisco Recreation and Park Department (Rec and Park) partnered
with the City’s early childhood agencies to launch an array of incentives to ensure all City
residents have access to the benefits of nature at Camp Mather, including free cabins and
reserved spots for low-income families.

“Every child, in every neighborhood, should have the chance to play and explore nature,” said
Mayor Breed. “Research tells us that being in nature improves our mental and physical health,
reduces stress, and even helps heal trauma. All San Franciscans should have access to these
health benefits and I’'m glad that more low-income families will now be able to enjoy the
beauty of Camp Mather and enjoy time outside the city with their loved ones.”
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LoNDON N. BREED
MAYOR

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
SAN FRANCISCO

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, January 22, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

*x* PRESS RELEASE ***
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

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced recent initiatives have resulted
in expanded access for visitors at Camp Mather, San Francisco’s family camp in the High
Sierras. The San Francisco Recreation and Park Department (Rec and Park) partnered with the
City’s early childhood agencies to launch an array of incentives to ensure all City residents have
access to the benefits of nature at Camp Mather, including free cabins and reserved spots for
low-income families.

“Every child, in every neighborhood, should have the chance to play and explore nature,” said
Mayor Breed. “Research tells us that being in nature improves our mental and physical health,
reduces stress, and even helps heal trauma. All San Franciscans should have access to these
health benefits and I’m glad that more low-income families will now be able to enjoy the beauty
of Camp Mather and enjoy time outside the city with their loved ones.”

Camping for a family of four costs about $1,710 a week and includes a cabin, activities and
meals. Rec and Park previously subsidized up to half the cost for approximately 33 qualifying
families each summer. The recent measures expanded access by 300 percent, making subsidies
of 50 to 100 percent available to 132 families. Additionally, low-income families received
priority in the yearly lottery for camping spaces, ensuring more equitable reservations.

In addition to the summer-long commitment to increasing access, Rec and Park is offering a
special week at Camp Mather for residents connected to City programs that serve many low-
income families. First 5 is helping to conduct outreach and splitting the cost of family meals with
Rec and Park for this summer’s special week at Camp Mather, as well as providing
transportation to the camp.

The initiatives are an outgrowth of Rec and Park’s commitment to equity in San Francisco and
beyond. A founding member of the City’s Children and Nature collaborative, the Department has
worked tirelessly to provide access to nature to low-income families.

“Qur push for equity at Camp Mather has been greeted with incredible enthusiasm by the
community,” said San Francisco Recreation and Park General Manager Phil Ginsburg. “These

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141





LoNDON N. BREED
MAYOR

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
SAN FRANCISCO

changes were guided by our belief that access to nature should never be a luxury. We can’t wait
for new families to connect with nature and each other in a place of unparalleled beauty.”

Additionally, Supervisor Hillary Ronen advocated for the equity initiatives after spending a week
at the camp with her family, and Rec and Park identified funding for the additional subsidies in
its General Fund budget.

“I love Camp Mather, but | was surprised and saddened to see that the families who attend, for
the most part, don’t reflect the diversity of San Francisco,” said Supervisor Ronen. “I raised this
issue with General Manager Ginsburg and my colleagues on the Board of Supervisors when |
returned last summer, and I’m very glad to see meaningful changes being implemented. All
families—regardless of class, language, or race—should have equal access to this San Francisco
gem.”

Since 2016, First 5 San Francisco, the City department dedicated to inspiring, nurturing, and
preparing young children for school and beyond, has partnered with the Office of Early Care and
Education and Rec and Park to connect young children to nature.

“Nature is the perfect playground and learning lab for young children, but it’s an opportunity that
too many of our children of color can’t access,” said Theresa Zighera, Interim Executive Director
of First 5 San Francisco. “We are excited to partner with Rec and Park and the early childhood
community to share the natural magnificence of Camp Mather with so many new families for the
first time.”

A growing body of research shows that time in nature improves focus, creativity and sense of
well-being while lowering frustration and healing trauma. A 2018 University of California,
Berkeley study involving both veterans and at-risk inner city youth found that time spent in
nature can dramatically reduce symptoms of post-traumatic stress disorder while a 2015
Stanford-led study found participants who walked in nature as opposed to a high traffic urban
setting showed decreased activity in a region of the brain associated with a key factor in
depression.

In addition to providing “camperships” for low-income families, Rec and Park participates in the
Teen Outdoor Experience, which is a Mayor’s Office initiative designed to engage youth
connected to the juvenile justice system. Rec and Park also offers the “Senior Get-A-Way to
Camp Mather” Program, which allows people 55 and older a week-long stay at Camp Mather,
including lodging, meals, transportation, and activities for a discounted rate. Similarly, Rec and
Park also provides a discounted, weeklong trip to members of the Northridge CommUNITY
Garden. Residents of Northridge Cooperative Homes in Bayview fundraise to help finance the
cost, the SF Parks Alliance sponsors the trip, and the group is led by a volunteer naturalist from
Friends of Camp Mather.

Mayor Breed has supported efforts to make the City’s recreation programs and parks more
equitable. The City Budget for Fiscal Years 2019-20 and 2020-21 included $4 million over two
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years to expand recreation scholarships and outreach to youth living in shelters, public housing,
and housing developments assisted by the City.

HiH
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
income families. First 5 is helping to conduct outreach and splitting the cost of family meals
with Rec and Park for this summer’s special week at Camp Mather, as well as providing
transportation to the camp.

The initiatives are an outgrowth of Rec and Park’s commitment to equity in San Francisco and
beyond. A founding member of the City’s Children and Nature collaborative, the Department
has worked tirelessly to provide access to nature to low-income families.

“Our push for equity at Camp Mather has been greeted with incredible enthusiasm by the
community,” said San Francisco Recreation and Park General Manager Phil Ginsburg. “These
changes were guided by our belief that access to nature should never be a luxury. We can’t
wait for new families to connect with nature and each other in a place of unparalleled beauty.”

Additionally, Supervisor Hillary Ronen advocated for the equity initiatives after spending a
week at the camp with her family, and Rec and Park identified funding for the additional
subsidies in its General Fund budget.

“I love Camp Mather, but I was surprised and saddened to see that the families who attend, for
the most part, don’t reflect the diversity of San Francisco,” said Supervisor Ronen. “I raised
this issue with General Manager Ginsburg and my colleagues on the Board of Supervisors
when I returned last summer, and I’'m very glad to see meaningful changes being
implemented. All families—regardless of class, language, or race—should have equal access
to this San Francisco gem.”

Since 2016, First 5 San Francisco, the City department dedicated to inspiring, nurturing, and
preparing young children for school and beyond, has partnered with the Office of Early Care
and Education and Rec and Park to connect young children to nature.

“Nature is the perfect playground and learning lab for young children, but it’s an opportunity
that too many of our children of color can’t access,” said Theresa Zighera, Interim Executive
Director of First 5 San Francisco. “We are excited to partner with Rec and Park and the early
childhood community to share the natural magnificence of Camp Mather with so many new
families for the first time.”

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
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In addition to providing “camperships” for low-income families, Rec and Park participates in
the Teen Outdoor Experience, which is a Mayor’s Office initiative designed to engage youth
connected to the juvenile justice system. Rec and Park also offers the “Senior Get-A-Way to
Camp Mather” Program, which allows people 55 and older a week-long stay at Camp Mather,
including lodging, meals, transportation, and activities for a discounted rate. Similarly, Rec
and Park also provides a discounted, weeklong trip to members of the Northridge
CommUNITY Garden. Residents of Northridge Cooperative Homes in Bayview fundraise to
help finance the cost, the SF Parks Alliance sponsors the trip, and the group is led by a
volunteer naturalist from Friends of Camp Mather.

Mayor Breed has supported efforts to make the City’s recreation programs and parks more
equitable. The City Budget for Fiscal Years 2019-20 and 2020-21 included $4 million over
two years to expand recreation scholarships and outreach to youth living in shelters, public
housing, and housing developments assisted by the City.
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

Subject: FW: CUA for 313 Ivy & 500 Laguna

Date: Tuesday, January 21, 2020 4:46:22 PM

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

From: Mary S <marysipher@gmail.com> On Behalf Of Mary Sipher

Sent: Tuesday, January 21, 2020 3:47 PM

To: Hicks, Bridget (CPC) <Bridget.Hicks@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>

Cc: mary Sipher <mary@sipher.com>

Subject: CUA for 313 Ivy & 500 Laguna

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Dear Ms. Hicks & Planning Commission Members,

After reviewing the Executive Summary and Draft Motion for the upcoming January 23rd planning meeting,
we realize Hayes Valley has two applicants requesting a CUA to establish a cannabis retail store. While we
prefer not to have any marijuana dispensaries in our neighborhood, we do recognize others have spoken
out and wish to add a cannabis retail store to Hayes Valley. We are opposed, however, to approving two
cannabis sites in Hayes Valley.

Many of the points supporting the approval of the second CUA are not valid if the first is approved:

1. Inregards to Planning Code 303(c), the second cannabis dispensary is not "necessary” for Hayes Valley.
Having two dispensaries only a 5 minute walk from each other plus Ketama (a dispensary close to the
Market Octavia area) would put three cannabis retail outlets in the neighborhood.

2. In regards to the Hayes-Gough NCT zoning, adding a second cannabis shop does not promote retail
diversity in the neighborhood and would actually be a duplicate retail service the neighborhood doesn’t
need.
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Having two marijuana dispensaries in such close proximity adds to the predicted increase in
neighborhood crime according to studies. Studies more recent than the UCLA study cited in the Draft
Motion do find a link between cannabis shops and neighborhood crime:

1. Astudy of Denver, Colorado using data from 2013-2015 states, “Similar to previous longitudinal work,
our study found that density of marijuana outlets was related to higher rates of property crime in spatially
adjacent areas (Freisthler et al., 2016), neighborhoods around those where marijuana outlets opened in
Denver.” (https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC6651729/). Furthermore, referring to the UCLA
(Sacramento) study, the Denver study noted, “In reality, very few studies have assessed the relationship
between these marijuana outlets and crime. Kepple and Freisthler (2012) found that density of medical
marijuana dispensaries in Census tracts for Sacramento, California were not related to rates of property or
violent crimes. Yet this study had a small sample size, used Census tracts (a unit of analysis that may be too
large to assess this relationship), and cross-sectional limiting its power to fully assess a dispensary and
crime link.”

2. Another Denver, Colorado study found recreational dispensaries in particular, "demonstrated a
criminogenic effect locally and some notable increases spatially,” when compared to medical
dispensaries. (https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/full/10.1080/24751979.2019.16919347

scroll=top&needAccess=true).

3. Astudy of Long Beach, California using data from 2012-2013 found, “Greater densities of medical
marijuana dispensaries were related to higher rates of property and violent crimes in areas adjacent to
dispensary locations.” (https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC4861677/). This study also
commented on the previous findings of the UCLA study, "These results differ from those observed in a
cross-sectional study using Census tract data from Sacramento, Californial3. That study did not assess the
role of densities of dispensaries in adjacent areas on crime and used larger spatial units. Geographic scale
may play an important role in the detection of medical marijuana dispensaries on local crime

rates.” (https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMCA4861677/)

We request that you deny at least one of the CUAs to establish a cannabis retail store in Hayes Valley.

Thank you for considering our request.

-Mary & Joe (Please do not publish last names or email addresses)
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

Subject: FW: Parkside Building Projects

Date: Tuesday, January 21, 2020 12:56:52 PM

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

From: John Hanft <hanft@pacbell.net>

Sent: Monday, January 20, 2020 8:56 AM

To: Ajello Hoagland, Linda (CPC) <linda.ajellohoagland@sfgov.org>; lonin, Jonas (CPC)
<jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: Parkside Building Projects

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Hello:

| live in the Parkside neighborhood. | urge you not to approve
demolition of 1420 Taraval Street and not to authorize replacement of
that single-family home with a four-story building.

Our neighborhood was originally composed primarily two- and three-
story single-family homes. Over the years, many of these buildings have
been converted to multiple units, some with permits some without. As a
result, the burden on the area’s infrastructure is greater than might
otherwise appear:

e The L streetcar is heavily used and often extremely crowded.
Building additional housing near transit only makes sense if the transit
system can absorb additional passengers, but the L line is already over
capacity.
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e As homes are converted to multiple units, garage space is lost and
the demand for on-street parking increases.

e Frequently, front yards are paved to provide parking places, trees
and bushes are removed, and water run-off increases. Many parked
cars also block the sidewalk.

Approving larger, multi-unit buildings will only increase these
problems. Please, reject the 1420 project and other applications that will
increase the density and change the character of the Parkside
neighborhood.

John Hanft

hanft@pacbell.net
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

To: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: opposition to demolition of 1420 Taraval
Date: Tuesday, January 21, 2020 12:56:40 PM

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

From: Kathleen McCowin <ksmccowin@gmail.com>

Sent: Monday, January 20, 2020 11:43 PM

To: Melgar, Myrna (CPC) <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>;
planning@rodneyfong.com; richhillissf@gmail.com; Johnson, Milicent (CPC) <milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>;
Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Richards, Dennis (CPC) <dennis.richards@sfgov.org>
Cc: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; Ajello Hoagland, Linda (CPC)
<linda.ajellohoagland@sfgov.org>; Marstaff (BOS) <marstaff{@sfgov.org>

Subject: opposition to demolition of 1420 Taraval

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

Dear Members of the Planning Commission,

Our family has lived in the Sunset District for many years, and some of us are members of The Sunset Parkside
Education and Action Committee (SPEAK). Our family home is on 44th Avenue and Taraval.

The proposed demolition of 1420 Taraval would mean the loss of one of the few historical buildings still existing
along Taraval Street.
There are very few historic buildings left in our neighborhood, and it would be a shame to lose such a treasure.

Additionally, since the San Francisco City Government recognizes the need for affordable housing, calling it a
crisis, it makes no sense to lose this neighborhood affordable housing asset.

Please also consider that Prop. D is on the March ballot to address the urban blight caused by more than 20% of San
Francisco storefronts remaining empty for years, and in some cases decades. Prop D enjoys broad support, such as
by all the City Supervisors, and Senator Scott Wiener.

The proposed replacement building at 1420 Taraval would have commercial space on the ground floor. The blight
of empty storefronts plagues Taraval Street. Increasing the number of unused storefronts at the cost of an historic
building flys in the face of reason.

As a cases in point, a few blocks West of the proposed site is a relatively new three story mixed use building (1600-
1614 Taraval) which has stood empty for years, the commercial floor as well as the residential units. Across the
street is a new four story mixed use building where half of the commercial ground floor remains empty.


mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org

We respectfully request that your save the historic house at 1420 Taraval from demolition, and avoid adding to the
burden to our neighborhood of empty storefronts.

Yours truly,

Kathleen McCowin
Jan Alexis Moss
Garrett Moss
Elizabeth Dal Bon
David Daines



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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND THE SAN FRANCISCO POLICE DEPARTMENT
ANNOUNCE 2019 PUBLIC SAFETY STATISTICS

Date: Tuesday, January 21, 2020 12:30:44 PM

Attachments: 01.21.20 Year-End Public Safety Statistics.pdf

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

Sent: Tuesday, January 21, 2020 12:27 PM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND THE SAN FRANCISCO POLICE
DEPARTMENT ANNOUNCE 2019 PUBLIC SAFETY STATISTICS

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, January 21, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

#%+* PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED AND THE SAN FRANCISCO
POLICE DEPARTMENT ANNOUNCE 2019 PUBLIC SAFETY
STATISTICS

Year-end crime report for 2019 shows decrease in homicides and violent crime

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and the San Francisco Police Department
(SFPD) today announced that violent crimes dropped significantly in 2019. The findings were
released as part of the SFPD’s 2019 CompStat Profile and reflect progress from a number of
initiatives spearheaded by Mayor Breed and SFPD to increase foot patrols, hire more officers,
and help stabilize neighborhoods that experience a higher level of crime.

“We want to make sure San Francisco is a safe place for all our residents and visitors,” said
Mayor Breed. “We’re on the right track—with the lowest homicide rate since 1961—but we
still have more work to do make our entire city safe, and I’'m looking forward to working with
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
Mayor Breed. “We’re on the right track—with the lowest homicide rate since 1961—»but we still
have more work to do make our entire city safe, and I’m looking forward to working with the
Police Department to continue improving public safety.”

Violent crime decreased by six percent last year. The 2019 CompStat Profile shows that
compared to 2018:

Homicides decreased 11 percent;

Sex trafficking decreased 57 percent;

Rapes decreased 15 percent;

Robberies decreased four percent; and

Aggravated assaults decreased four percent.

“We are constantly striving to reduce all forms of violence in our communities,” said Police
Chief William Scott. “We’re doing this through our Crime Gun Investigations Center and by
working closely with our community-based anti-violence partners to prevent shootings and
advance justice for victims. Our success is contingent on all of us working together to make our
city even safer.”

Last year also saw a drop in property crimes in San Francisco:
e Burglaries decreased 14 percent;
e Larceny theft decreased three percent; and
e Auto burglaries decreased two percent.

In 2017, SFPD doubled its citywide uniformed foot patrols, and with the direction and support of
Mayor Breed, greatly increased foot patrols in U.N. Plaza and in the Mid-Market corridor in

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141





LoNDON N. BREED
MAYOR

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
SAN FRANCISCO

response to numerous quality of life issues. A 2018 study by the California Policy Lab and
researchers at the University of California, Berkeley found a significant decrease in assaults and
thefts after SFPD expanded its foot patrol strategy, which focuses on crime deterrence and
improved responsiveness and engagement with community members. Mayor Breed has
continued her support of increasing foot patrols, and the City Budget for Fiscal Years 2019-20
and 2020-21 includes funding to support adding 50 officers each fiscal year.

In addition to expanding foot patrol officers, Mayor Breed and the SFPD have focused on
increased enforcement of drug dealing in the Tenderloin and Mid-Market areas. This effort
includes a two-tiered strategy, with the Narcotics Unit focusing on disrupting the flow of drugs
into the City and targeting individuals participating in drug trafficking, coupled with street
officers implementing sting operations at the street level to reduce public drug sales.

In 2019, Mayor Breed, along with community partners and the Board of Supervisors, added 18
security cameras along the Stockton Street corridor and added eight cameras along Irving Street
between 19" and 22" Avenues. In December, Mayor Breed and SFPD hosted a Gun Buy-Back
event with United Playaz to help get guns off the streets and out of homes. Additionally, the
City’s Street Violence Intervention Program has helped reduce violence and keep residents safe
through outreach, crisis response, and community mobilization activities.

The SFPD CompStat reports are posted online at: sanfranciscopolice.org/compstatreports.

HiH
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the Police Department to continue improving public safety.”

Violent crime decreased by six percent last year. The 2019 CompStat Profile shows that
compared to 2018:

o Homicides decreased 11 percent;

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
advance justice for victims. Our success is contingent on all of us working together to make
our city even safer.”

Last year also saw a drop in property crimes in San Francisco:

o Burglaries decreased 14 percent;
o Larceny theft decreased three percent; and
e Auto burglaries decreased two percent.

In 2017, SFPD doubled its citywide uniformed foot patrols, and with the direction and support
of Mayor Breed, greatly increased foot patrols in U.N. Plaza and in the Mid-Market corridor in
response to numerous quality of life issues. A 2018 study by the California Policy Lab and
researchers at the University of California, Berkeley found a significant decrease in assaults
and thefts after SFPD expanded its foot patrol strategy, which focuses on crime deterrence and
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
includes a two-tiered strategy, with the Narcotics Unit focusing on disrupting the flow of
drugs into the City and targeting individuals participating in drug trafficking, coupled with
street officers implementing sting operations at the street level to reduce public drug sales.

In 2019, Mayor Breed, along with community partners and the Board of Supervisors, added 18
security cameras along the Stockton Street corridor and added eight cameras along Irving

Street between 19™ and 2274 Avenues. In December, Mayor Breed and SFPD hosted a Gun
Buy-Back event with United Playaz to help get guns off the streets and out of homes.
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Additionally, the City’s Street Violence Intervention Program has helped reduce violence and
keep residents safe through outreach, crisis response, and community mobilization activities.

The SFPD CompStat reports are posted online at: sanfranciscopolice.org/compstatreports.

HiHt
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

Subject: FW: 313 Ivy Street

Date: Tuesday, January 21, 2020 11:38:50 AM

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

From: Lorraine Castillo <lowraincastillo@gmail.com>

Sent: Sunday, January 19, 2020 10:01 PM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; brokenspectacles@gmail.com
Cc: Hicks, Bridget (CPC) <Bridget.Hicks@sfgov.org>; Office of Cannabis (ADM)
<officeofcannabis@sfgov.org>

Subject: 313 Ivy Street

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
conduct business in an upstanding and respectable manner. They have been given
the opportunity to open a cannabis retail location at 313 Ivy Street through the Equity
Program, a program designed by the city of San Francisco to foster the equitable
participation in the cannabis industry and to help create business opportunities for
those negatively impacted by the war on drugs. Mike, is an equity business owner
and longstanding member of the community who runs a youth tennis program and
works in cannabis advocacy. Nguey and Angel, owners of the Fig and Thistle Market
and Wine Bar have been working in small business for over 6 years now in both the
food and beverage industry as well as the cannabis industry. They have been friends
for over 20 years and are all from the city, together you have a group of people that
have already proven their commitment to creating a space both welcomed by the
neighborhood and customers alike and dedication to the community and to the
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betterment of the city. Stay Gold has the ability to provide the same positive impact
that their previous projects have delivered.

It is my opinion that this cannabis dispensary will be an asset to the community
and | want to support their efforts to provide a safe and welcoming space for cannabis
access and education. Please help keep San Francisco special and commerce local
by allowing small businesses like this one to operate and thrive in the community.

Sincerely,

Lorraine Castillo

Signature
Date 1/19/2020

Printed Name: Lorraine Castillo
Address: 2620 Sacramento Street #4, San Francisco, CA 94115
Email:lowraincastillo mail.com
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

Subject: FW: Letter of Support for Angel // Fig & Thistle is Moving!

Date: Tuesday, January 21, 2020 11:37:12 AM

Attachments: 313 Ivy Letter of Support.pdf

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

Sent: Saturday, January 18, 2020 8:04 PM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Hicks, Bridget (CPC)
<Bridget.Hicks@sfgov.org>; Office of Cannabis (ADM) <officeofcannabis@sfgov.org>
Subject: Fwd: Letter of Support for Angel // Fig & Thistle is Moving!

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Please see attached.

—————————— Forwarded message ---------

From: Lily Curtis-Harris <lilycurtisharris@gmail.com>

Date: Thu, Jan 16, 2020 at 4:16 PM

Subject: Re: Letter of Support for Angel // Fig & Thistle is Moving!
To: angel <brokenspectacles@gmail.com>

Here are those letters!
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[Date] 1/16/20
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
/7 .
Signature , ‘

[Name] Lily A. Curtis-Harris
[Your Address] 6123 Thornhill Dr, Oakland, CA 94611
[Email/Contact Info] lilycurtisharris@gmail.com






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

Subject: FW: 669 Mississippi & 313 Ivy Project Support

Date: Tuesday, January 21, 2020 11:36:47 AM

Attachments: 669 Mississppi Letter of Support.pdf

313 Ivy Letter of Support.pdf

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

From: Bob Mazer <bob@openhandhc.com>

Sent: Monday, January 20, 2020 12:56 PM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>

Cc: Hicks, Bridget (CPC) <Bridget.Hicks@sfgov.org>; Office of Cannabis (ADM)
<officeofcannabis@sfgov.org>; brokenspectacles@gmail.com

Subject: 669 Mississippi & 313 Ivy Project Support

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Please see my attached letter regarding my support for these two projects.

Thank you,

Bob Mazer
415.325.2533

openhandhc.com
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

4 @_7 1/20/2020

Signature Date

Bob Mazer
Printed Name

555 4th St. #102, San Francisco, CA 94107
Address

bob@openhandhc.com

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
Street, San Francisco, California 94104.

| got to know the owners several years ago while | was a manager for 2 years at
Monsieur Benjamin, just across the alley of lvy Street. | know that alley very well from
working alongside it and looking out Monsieur Benjamin’s windows day in and day out;
and | know that Mike, Nguey and Angel all have its best interests at heart as they love
being a part of the Hayes Valley community and genuinely want to be a positive and
active part of its continued growth.

| really believe that if anyone knows how to create a business to match and be
respectful of the surrounding environment and neighborhood it’s the Fig & Thistle team.
It just takes one walk in the door of their wonderful Hayes Valley wine bar and now
Market in the Castro to know what great spaces they create.

Cannabis is legal in San Francisco, so | cannot think of the need to restrictive of
an opportunity to a truly local and community oriented team that is doing everything

thoughtfully and respectfully with their city in mind.

Thank you for your time,

A dte—~ 1/20/2020

Signature Date

Printed Name: Bob Mazer
Address: 555 4th St, #102, San Francisco, CA 94107
Email: bob@openhandhc.com






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

Subject: FW: Letter of support for 415 Native LLC

Date: Tuesday, January 21, 2020 11:36:39 AM

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

From: Joe Laska <joelaska@yahoo.com>

Sent: Monday, January 20, 2020 1:33 PM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>

Cc: Hicks, Bridget (CPC) <Bridget.Hicks@sfgov.org>; Office of Cannabis (ADM)
<officeofcannabis@sfgov.org>; brokenspectacles@gmail.com

Subject: Letter of support for 415 Native LLC

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
group applying for a conditional use permit to open up a cannabis retail location at
313 lvy Street, San Francisco, California 94104. As a proud Hayes Valley resident, |
am very familiar with the applicants, their business practices, and their commitment to
the community.

Owners Mike, Nguey, and Angel care about the community they are in and
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
those negatively impacted by the war on drugs. Mike is an equity business owner and
longstanding member of the community who runs a youth tennis program and works
in cannabis advocacy. Nguey and Angel, owners of the Fig and Thistle Market and
Wine Bar, have been working in small business for over 6 years in both the food and
beverage industry as well as the cannabis industry. They have been friends for over
20 years and are all from the city. Together you have a group of people that have
already proven their commitment to creating a space welcomed by the neighborhood
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and customers alike and dedicated to the community and to the betterment of the city.
It is my opinion that this cannabis dispensary will be an asset to the
community, and | want to support the applicants’ efforts to provide a safe and
welcoming space for cannabis access and education. Please help keep San
Francisco special and commerce local by allowing small businesses like this one to
operate and thrive in the community.
Please feel free to call me at 310-497-8118 with any questions.

Sincerely,

/s/ Joe Laska

467 Oak St.
San Francisco, CA 94102

Joelaska@yahoo.com


mailto:Joelaska@yahoo.com

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

Subject: FW: Letter of support

Date: Tuesday, January 21, 2020 11:36:31 AM

Attachments: Letter of support for Angel davis 01-20-20.doc

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

From: Robert Barnwell <bbarnwell6@hotmail.com>

Sent: Monday, January 20, 2020 5:44 PM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>

Cc: Hicks, Bridget (CPC) <Bridget.Hicks@sfgov.org>; Office of Cannabis (ADM)
<officeofcannabis@sfgov.org>; angel <brokenspectacles@gmail.com>
Subject: Letter of support

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Commissions Secretary, Please find attached letter in support of Angel Davis's application for
a cannabis retail store at her current business location of 313 Ivy. For many years Angel has
been one of the outstanding business leaders in Hayes Valley. | am confident her new
business will create no public safety concerns. If you want to find one of the best and safest
owners of a cannabis business then approve Angel Davis's application Thanks

Bob Barnwell Chairman, Hayes Valley Public Safety Committee 415-621-1505
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San Francisco Planning Commission


January 20, 2020


Attention Planning Commissioners,      I am a strong supporter of Angel Davis's application to open a cannabis retail store at her current location of Fig and Thistle at 313 Ivy.  I have worked with her for many years on improving the business atmosphere in Hayes Valley.  There is not a better example of a quality community leader being involved n the cannabis industry for the betterment of the community.


Angels Davis has a strong presence in Hayes Valley.  She is past Chairperson of the Business Relations Committee of the Hayes Valley Neighborhood Association.  She is currently a member of the Hayes Valley Merchants Committee.  She is very active in the community and is a strong supporter community programs.  Many people and community groups ask Angel Davis and Fig and Thistle for their help for community events and fundraisers.  She is always there to provide financial and promotional support for these events.  There are many benefits from Angel Davis's presence in Hayes Valley and her opening a cannabis retail store can only be a benefit.


As a medical marijuana user for many years (for my epilepsy) I would appreciate the establishment of a cannabis store so close to where I live on Octavia.  I am also the Chairman of the Hayes Valley Public Safety Committee.  We have monthly meetings where we discuss the public safety concerns of neighborhood.  I see no public safety concerns with having a cannabis dispensary in Hayes Valley.  The owners of the cannabis retail stores I have to go to that are outside my neighborhood have shown a real concern for public safety.  Their stores do not attract people who are looking to cause problems.  This is the type of owner Angel Davis would be.  She has been to many Public Safety Meetings and has shown a real desire to keep the neighborhood safe.  She is not the type of business owner to open a store that would create problems for neighbors,   Her goal in Hayes Valley have been to open a business that benefits the neighborhood and provides safe interactions with customers.


I hope the Planning Commission will approve Angel Davis's application, through the San Francisco Equity Program, to open a cannabis retail business at the address of her current business at 313 Ivy.  Thanks


Bob Barnwell              Chairman, Hayes Valley Public Safety Committee   415-621-1505


From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Diamond, Susan (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC);
Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Melgar, Myrna (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC); Hicks, Bridget (CPC)

Subject: FW: Resident feedback on 500 Laguna Street proposed code change

Date: Tuesday, January 21, 2020 11:36:14 AM

Jonas P. Tonin,
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

From: Jeff So <jeffso123@gmail.com>

Sent: Tuesday, January 21, 2020 10:09 AM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: Resident feedback on 500 Laguna Street proposed code change

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

Hi,

Due to a travel schedule, my wife and I won’t be able to make to the public hearing for 500 Laguna street. Can you
forward this feedback to the corresponding personnel so they can hear my concern and include in the feedback they
collect. We are resident at 580 Hayes, 1 block away from 500 Laguna. Hayes is at the heart of the city and I
believe drug use is a major contribution factor to many of the problem the city is facing today, Making it easier for
anyone to get hold of it will make the problem worse. 500 Laguna is right in the middle of the city and residents
here all trying to make this neighborhood a better one and this neighborhood is one of the hottest spot now in San
Francisco. Do we really want the resident and all the people who visit us from around the world to remember the
smell instead of a vibrant city neighborhood? So we are strongly against such proposal.

Jeff

580 Hayes Street, #406
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

Subject: FW: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON MARTIN LUTHER KING, JR. DAY
Date: Tuesday, January 21, 2020 11:34:19 AM

Attachments: 01.20.20 Martin Luther King, Jr. Statement.pdf

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

Sent: Monday, January 20, 2020 6:38 AM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON MARTIN LUTHER KING, JR. DAY

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, January 20, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

##% STATEMENT *%**
MAYOR LONDON BREED ON MARTIN LUTHER KING, JR.
DAY

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today issued the following statement
regarding Martin Luther King, Jr. Day:

“Every day, we strive to uphold the values that Martin Luther King, Jr. embodied—justice,
equal rights for all, and service above self. On this day, we pay tribute to Dr. King by serving
in our communities, side by side with our neighbors, and reflecting on his tireless efforts to lift
up those who have been left behind.

Despite decades of work by Dr. King and those who continued his mission, deep inequities
persist. Past policies have disproportionately impacted our low-income and minority
populations, and we must work to reserve those decisions and make up for the harm they have
caused.

Our commitment to Dr. King’s vision is firm and it is unrelenting. The work continues as we
break down barriers, build up community, and create a world where everyone is treated with
dignity and respect.”

HitH
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OFFICE OF THE MAYOR LONDON N. BREED

SAN FRANCISCO MAYOR
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, January 20, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
*** STATEMENT ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ON MARTIN LUTHER KING, JR.
DAY

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today issued the following statement regarding
Martin Luther King, Jr. Day:

“Every day, we strive to uphold the values that Martin Luther King, Jr. embodied—justice, equal
rights for all, and service above self. On this day, we pay tribute to Dr. King by serving in our
communities, side by side with our neighbors, and reflecting on his tireless efforts to lift up those
who have been left behind.

Despite decades of work by Dr. King and those who continued his mission, deep inequities
persist. Past policies have disproportionately impacted our low-income and minority populations,
and we must work to reserve those decisions and make up for the harm they have caused.

Our commitment to Dr. King’s vision is firm and it is unrelenting. The work continues as we
break down barriers, build up community, and create a world where everyone is treated with
dignity and respect.”

Hitt

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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ACCEPTS WIN-WIN PLAYOFF CHALLENGE FROM MAYOR
ERIC GENRICH OF GREEN BAY

Date: Friday, January 17, 2020 2:33:34 PM

Attachments: 01.17.20 Green Bay and 49ers Win-Win Challenge.pdf

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

Sent: Friday, January 17, 2020 2:30 PM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ACCEPTS WIN-WIN PLAYOFF CHALLENGE
FROM MAYOR ERIC GENRICH OF GREEN BAY

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, January 17, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

#%+* PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ACCEPTS WIN-WIN PLAYOFF
CHALLENGE FROM MAYOR ERIC GENRICH OF GREEN
BAY

Following the January 1 9" National Football Conference championship game, Mayors Breed
and Genrich will volunteer in their communities, regardless of the game’s outcome.

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today accepted Green Bay, Wisconsin Mayor
Eric Genrich’s Win-Win Playoff Challenge ahead of the National Football Conference (NFC)
Championship game between the San Francisco 49ers and the Green Bay Packers.

Mayor Breed and Mayor Genrich have selected youth development as the focus of the Win-

Win Playoff Challenge. After the January 19%" NFC Championship game, Mayor Breed, City
employees, and community members will volunteer with Boys & Girls Clubs of San
Francisco. Similarly, City of Green Bay and Greater Green Bay Community Foundation
employees will volunteer at Boys & Girls Club of Greater Green Bay. In the spirit of friendly
competition, both cities’ mayors and volunteers will wear the winning team’s colors.
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

Following the January 19" National Football Conference championship game, Mayors Breed
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

Mayor Breed and Mayor Genrich have selected youth development as the focus of the Win-Win
Playoff Challenge. After the January 19" NFC Championship game, Mayor Breed, City
employees, and community members will volunteer with Boys & Girls Clubs of San Francisco.
Similarly, City of Green Bay and Greater Green Bay Community Foundation employees will
volunteer at Boys & Girls Club of Greater Green Bay. In the spirit of friendly competition, both
cities’ mayors and volunteers will wear the winning team’s colors.

“l am excited that the 49ers will be playing for another NFC Championship and the chance to
make it to the Super Bowl,” said Mayor Breed. “But | am even more excited that San Francisco
and Green Bay are coming together, no matter the outcome of the game this Sunday, to serve our
communities and create a better future for young people in our cities. | hope Mayor Genrich is
ready to wear Niner red and gold during our day of service!”

In December 2019, Mayor Genrich and Dennis Buehler, President of the Greater Green Bay
Community Foundation, created the Win-Win Playoff Challenge, a fresh take on traditional
“beer, brat and cheese” challenges. Their aim was to leverage the National Football League’s
influence to bring attention to community concerns, and garner much-needed volunteer time and
talent, making it a “win-win” for everyone.

“We want to win this challenge again, and we hope to follow it up by issuing a final Win-Win
challenge to the community we’ll face in the Super Bowl,” said Mayor Genrich. “Let’s keep this
green and gold movement expanding across the country, as well as this unique expression of
volunteerism.”

HiH

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141






“I am excited that the 49ers will be playing for another NFC Championship and the chance to
make it to the Super Bowl,” said Mayor Breed. “But I am even more excited that San
Francisco and Green Bay are coming together, no matter the outcome of the game this
Sunday, to serve our communities and create a better future for young people in our cities. |
hope Mayor Genrich is ready to wear Niner red and gold during our day of service!”

In December 2019, Mayor Genrich and Dennis Buehler, President of the Greater Green Bay
Community Foundation, created the Win-Win Playoff Challenge, a fresh take on traditional
“beer, brat and cheese” challenges. Their aim was to leverage the National Football League’s
influence to bring attention to community concerns, and garner much-needed volunteer time
and talent, making it a “win-win” for everyone.

“We want to win this challenge again, and we hope to follow it up by issuing a final Win-Win
challenge to the community we’ll face in the Super Bowl,” said Mayor Genrich. “Let’s keep
this green and gold movement expanding across the country, as well as this unique expression
of volunteerism.”

HiH



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Diamond, Susan (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC);
Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Melgar, Myrna (CPC)

Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY; CTYPLN - SENIOR MANAGERS; YANG, AUSTIN (CAT); STACY, KATE (CAT);
JENSEN, KRISTEN (CAT)

Subject: CPC Calendars for January 23, 2020

Date: Friday, January 17, 2020 1:48:43 PM

Attachments: Advance Calendar - 20200123.xlIsx

CPC Hearing Results 2020.docx
20200123 cal.docx
20200123 cal.pdf

Commissioners,
Attached are your Calendars for January 23, 2020.

Go Niners,

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
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Advance



				To:		Planning Commission

				From:		Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

				Re:		Advance Calendar

						All items and dates are tentative and subject to change.



				January 23, 2020 - CLOSED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2015-004109CUA-02 		333 12th Street 				to: 1/30		Jardines

						change of use from a previously approved residential project to student housing

		2019-017311CND		901 Union Street				CONSENT		Fahey

						Condo Conversion Subdivision of a 6-unit building		to: 1/30

		2018-002825DRP		780 KANSAS ST				to: 2/27		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-016849CND		1630 Clay Street				CONSENT		Fahey

						Condo Conversion Subdivision of a 6-unit building

		2019-017957PCA		Geary-Masonic Special Use District				fr: 12/12		Flores

						Planning Code Amendment

				Budget & Work Program						Landis

						Informational

		2017-011214CUA		9 Apollo Street 						Kwiatkawska

						CUA to remove a UDU

		2019-006042CUA		1560 Wallace St						Liang

						Subdivision of a parcel greater than 10,000 sf into two parcels 

		2019-015062CUA		500 Laguna St						Hicks

						change of use to cannabis retail

		2019-016523CUA		313 Ivy St						Hicks

						change of use to cannabis retail

		2019-005361DRM		49 Kearny St						Hicks

						change of use to cannabis retail

		2019-000650DRP-02		617 SANCHEZ ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-003900DRP		1526 MASONIC AVE						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				January 30, 2020

		Case No.		Johnson - OUT				Continuance(s)		Planner

		2014.0243DRP-02		3927-3931 19TH ST				Indefinite		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-017311CND		901 Union Street				CONSENT		Fahey

						Condo Conversion Subdivision of a 6-unit building		fr: 1/23

		2019-017349CUA 		2266 Union Street 				CB3P		Wilborn

						Retail/Limited Restaurant (d.b.a. Made by True)

		2019-020940PCA		Residential Occupancy- Intermediate Length Occupancy				fr: 1/16		Sanchez

						Planning Code Amendment

		2012.1384		1 Vassar 						Sucre

						C. SoMa Key Site Informational

		2015-010192CWP		Potrero Power Station 						Schuett

						FEIR certification and project approvals 

		2015-004109CUA-02 		333 12th Street 				fr: 1/23		Jardines

						change of use from a previously approved residential project to student housing

		2013.1593BCUA		2 Henry Adams				fr: 12/5; 1/9		Giacomucci

						office use in a landmark building in PDR-1-D

		2018-011904CUA		1420 Taraval St				fr: 12/12		Hoagland

						Demo SFD & construct 3 du mixed use building

		2019-016568CUA		2255 Judah Street				fr: 12/19		Horn

						Formula Retail

		2019-013168CUA		153 Kearny Street						Updegrave

						CUA to convert existing vacant retail and retail storage to office below grade

		2019-017082CUA		1610 Post Street 						Wilborn

						CUA to for Massage Establishment

		2018-015058CUA  		2555 Diamond Street						Hoagland

						Demo SFR and construct new SFR

		2019-006316CUA		645 Irving Street						Young

						Formula Retail Use (d.b.a. Yi Fang Taiwan Fruit Tea) 

		2019-001694CUA		1500 Mission Street				fr: 10/3; 11/14; 1/16		Weissglass

						Massage establishment in Equinox Gym

		2018-010655DRP-03		2169 26TH AVE				fr: 12/19		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-014127DRP		2643 31ST AVE						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-013041DRP		41 KRONQUIST CT						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				February 6, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2019-006446CUA		428 27th St				Withdrawn		Pantoja

						removal of a UDU at an existing formerly SFH

		2019-016911CUA		855 Brannan St				CONSENT		Liang

						Formula Retail  (d.b.a  StretchLab)

				Market Octavia Plan Amendment						Langlois

						Initiation

				Health Care Services Master Plan						Nickolopoulos

						Initiation

		2018-011717CUA 		1369 Sanchez Street				fr: 10/24; 12/19		Cisneros

						Demo per PC Section 317

		2018-002124CUA 		54 4th St 				fr: 12/19; 1/16		Alexander

						conversion of residential hotel rooms to tourist hotel 

		2019-014039CUA		1735 Polk Street						Hicks

						Change of use to cannabis retail

		2019-001455CUA		1750 Wawona Street				fr: 1/16		Campbell

						CUA Tantamount to Demolition During Construction

		2018-013139CUA		271 Granada Avenue						Campbell

						CUA Demolition New Construction

		2014-001272DVA-02		Pier 70 Mixed Use Development Site						Christensen

						Design for Development

		2019-014893DRP-02		152 GEARY ST						Christensen

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-014211DRP		667 MISSISSIPPI ST						Christensen

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-011022DRP		2651 OCTAVIA ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-011031DRP-03		219-223 MISSOURI ST				fr: 11/14		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				February 13, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2019-020852CUA		1100 Taraval Street				CB3P		Weissglass

						establish a full-service restaurant 

				Budget & Work Program						Landis

						Adoption

		2016-006860IKA		65 Ocean Av				fr: 10/24; 12/12; 1/16		Flores

						In-Kind Agreement

		2018-012576CUA		1769 Lombard St				fr: 1/16		Weissglass

						1-year update on the CUA approved last year for the Kennel Use

		2018-011249CUA		1567 California St						Perry

						demo and new construction of an 8-story, 100-unit building with ground floor commercial

		2019-015067CUA		968 Valencia Street						Giacomucci

						Formula Retail CU in the Valencia NCT to allow the clothing store HUF

		2019-004211CUA		3829 24th Street 						Fahey

						Limited Restaurant with Retail Sales 

		2019-014251DRP-02		2001 CHESTNUT ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2017-010281DRP		236 EL CAMINO DEL MAR						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-007012DRP		134 HEARST AVE						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				February 20, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2019-000503DRP-03		2452 GREEN ST				fr: 12/12		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR		to: Indefinite

		2020-000230PCA		Jackson Square SUD - Exemption from Limitation on Limited Restaurant Uses						Flores

						Planning Code Amendment

		TBD		Bayview Industrial Triangle Zoning						Tong

						Initiation

		2007.0168CUA-02		Hunters View Design for Development Agreement						Durandet

						ten year entitlement extension and modifications

		2017-005154CUASHD		1300 Columbus Avenue				fr: 12/19; 1/16		Fahey

						4-story addition of 174 rooms and ground floor retail to an existing 4-story, 342 room hotel

		2012.1384VARENX		400 2nd Street/One Vassar 						Jardines

		OFACUA				Demolition of (E) new hotel and construct two new buildings (residential and office)

		2019-000013CUA		552-554 Hill Street						Campbell

						Legalization of Dwelling Unit Merger & Relocation

		2018-001088CUA		4211 26th St						Pantoja

						demolition of a UDU and SFH and the construction of a new SFH with an ADU

		2019-020682CUA 		2087 Union Street 						Wilborn

						Massage Establishment

		2018-012611DRP-03		2101-2103 VALLEJO ST.						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-007763DRP-05		66 MOUNTAIN SPRING AVE						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				February 27, 2020 - CLOSED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2020-000052PCA 		Standard Environmental Conditions of Approval 						Bintliff

						Adoption

		2017-003559ENV		3700 California St						Poling

						Certification

		2017-003559PRJ		3700 California St						May

						Project Approvals

		2018-011430CUAVAR		1776 Green St				fr: 11/7; 12/5; 1/9		May

						TBD

		2007.0168CUA-02		Hunters View Design for Development Agreement						Durandet

						ten year entitlement extension and Minor Modifications 

		2017-002964CUA		1714 Grant Avenue						Updegrave

						CUA to allow the addition of a garage; addition to existing single-family residence 

		2019-014842CUA 		1905 Union Street 						Dito

						residential conversion to commercial

		2019-023636CUA		888 Post Street						Updegrave

						Institutional Use (Goodwill) and Navigation Center

		2017-012887DRPVAR		265 OAK ST				fr: 12/5; 1/16		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-002825DRP		780 KANSAS ST				fr: 1/23		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-014949DRP		4428 23rd STREET						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2017-010670DRP		421 WALNUT Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				March 5, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2019-015579CUA 		99 Missouri Street 				CONSENT		Jardines

						Use size CUA for Blu Dot Design and Manufacturing

		2019-017837PRJ		1812-1816 Green Street						Wilborn

						CUA Residential Merger

		2019-013012DRP-02		621 11TH AVE						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2017-007931DRP-02		2630 DIVISADERO ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2017-009964DRP		526 LOMBARD 						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				March 12, 2020 - Joint w/DPH

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				Health Care Services Master Plan						Nickolopoulos

						Adoption

		2016-016100ENV		SFPUC’s Southern Skyline Boulevard Ridge Trail Extension Project						Johnston

						DEIR

				March 12, 2020

		Case No.		Diamond - OUT				Continuance(s)		Planner

				Market Octavia Plan Amendment						Langlois

						Adoption

		2018-011441CUAVAR 		1846 Grove Street				fr: 11/7; 12/12		Dito

						new construction of five dwelling units 

		2018-013511DRP		350 LIBERTY ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2017-015039DRP		350-352 SAN JOSE AVE						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				March 19, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2018-004047CWP-02 		Housing Inventory Report						Ambati

						Informational

		2019-002243DRP		439 HILL ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				March 26, 2020 - CANCELED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2018-005918DRP-02		254 ROOSEVELT WAY						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				April 2, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2018-008661ENXOFA		701 Harrison Street 						Jardines

						seven-story, mixed-use office building with 8,407 sf of Retail and 49,801 sf of Office Space

		2018-013422DRP		1926 DIVISADERO ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-017309DRP		 2447 FRANCISCO ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2015-014170DRP		804 22ND ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				April 9, 2020 - CANCELED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				April 16, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2017-002545DRP		2417 Green St 				fr: 7/11; 9/19; 11/14; 1/9		May

						Public Initiated DR

		2019-014214DRP		457 MARIPOSA ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2017-013272DRP		3074 Pacific Avenue						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				April 23, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				April 30, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				Balboa Reservoir 						Poling

						Certification

				May 7, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				May 14, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner
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To:             Staff

From:       Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

Re:            Hearing Results

          

NEXT MOTION/RESOLUTION No: 20624

 

NEXT DISCRETIONARY REVIEW ACTION No: 0679

                  

DRA = Discretionary Review Action; M = Motion; R = Resolution



January 16, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-002124CUA

		54 04th Street

		Alexander

		Continued to February 6, 2020

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2019-001455CUA

		1750 Wawona Street

		Campbell

		Continued to February 6, 2020

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-012576CUA

		1769 Lombard Street

		Weissglass

		Continued to February 13, 2020

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2016-006860IKA

		65 Ocean Avenue

		Flores

		Continued to February 13, 2020

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2017-012887DRP

		265 Oak Street

		Winslow

		Continued to February 27, 2020

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2017-005154CUA

		1300 Columbus Avenue

		Fahey

		Continued to February 20, 2020

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		

		Election of Officers

		Ionin

		Koppel – President

Moore - Vice

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20621

		2009.0159DNX-02

		1540 Market Street (aka “One Oak”)

		Perry

		After being pulled off Consent; Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20622

		2009.0159CUA-02

		1540 Market Street (aka “One Oak”)

		Perry

		After being pulled off Consent; Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2019-022891VAR

		1540 Market Street (aka “One Oak”)

		Perry

		After being pulled off Consent; ZA Closed public comment and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		

		2019-020940PCA

		Residential Occupancy – Intermediate Length Occupancy

		Sanchez

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to January 30, 2020

		+5 -0 (Diamond recused; Richards absent)



		M-20623

		2020-000052PCA

		Standard Environmental Conditions of Approval

		Bintliff

		Initiated and scheduled a hearing on or after February 27, 2020

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-003614OTH

		Office of Cannabis

		Christensen

		None - Informational

		



		

		1996.0016CWP

		Commerce and Industry Inventory 2018

		Qi

		None - Informational

		



		

		2019-001694CUA

		1500 Mission Street

		Weissglass

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to January 30, 2020

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		DRA-677

		2018-010941DRP

		2028-2030 Leavenworth Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Staff modifications

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		

		2018-010941VAR

		2028-2030 Leavenworth Street

		Winslow

		ZA Closed public comment and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		DRA-678

		2019-005400DRP-02

		166 Parker Avenue

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Staff modifications and to continue working with Staff on roof deck designs to mitigate privacy impacts.

		[bookmark: _GoBack]+4 -0 (Diamond recused; Johnson, Richards absent)







January 9, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2013.0689CUA

		2 Henry Adams

		Giacomucci

		Continued to January 30, 2020

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2013.1593B

		2 Henry Adams

		Giacomucci

		Continued to January 30, 2020

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-011430CUA

		1776 Green Street

		May

		Continued to February 27, 2020

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-011430VAR

		1776 Green Street

		May

		Acting ZA Continued to February 27, 2020

		



		M-20609

		2019-014257CUA

		401 Potrero Avenue

		Samonsky

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for December 12, 2019 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for December 19, 2019 – Closed Session

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for December 19, 2019 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20610

		2019-012131CUA

		1099 Dolores Street

		Campbell

		After being pulled off Consent; Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		R-20611

		2019-022569PCAMAP

		Establishing Geary Blvd Neighborhood Commercial District [Board File No. 191260]

		Merlone

		Approved

		+5 -0 (Diamond recused; Richards absent)



		R-20612

		2019-022569PCAMAP

		Establishing Remaining Eleven Named Neighborhood Commercial Districts [Board File No. 191260]

		Merlone

		Approved

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		

		SB 330: Housing Crisis Act of 2019

		Bintliff

		None - Informational

		



		

		2019-023145CWP

		Sustainable City Framework

		Fisher

		None - Informational

		



		

		2015-004827ENV

		SFPUC Alameda Creek Recapture Project

		Kern

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-20613

		2016-013312GPA

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		R-20614

		2016-013312PCAMAP

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20615

		2016-013312SHD

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Adopted Findings

		+5 -1 (Moore against; Richards absent)



		M-20616

		2016-013312DNX

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20617

		2016-013312OFA

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20618

		2016-013312CUA

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20619

		2019-020070CUA

		2100 Market Street

		Horn

		Approved with standard Conditions and findings read into the record.

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20620

		2017-002545ENV

		2417 Green Street

		Poling

		Upheld PMND

		+5 -1 (Moore against; Richards absent)



		

		2017-002545DRP-03

		2417 Green Street

		May

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to April 16, 2020 with direction:

1. Redesign with sensitivity to the adjacent historic resource;

2. Limit excavation to the extent that the additional parking and ADU may be eliminated; and 

3. Adhere to the Cow Hollow Design Guidelines.

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-003023DRP-02

		2727 Vallejo Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		DRA-676

		2017-014666DRP

		743 Vermont Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+5 -0 (Melgar, Richards absent)
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Notice of Hearing

&

Agenda





Commission Chambers, Room 400

City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place

San Francisco, CA 94102-4689



Thursday, January 23, 2020

1:00 p.m.

Regular Meeting



Commissioners:

Joel Koppel, President

Kathrin Moore, Vice President

Sue Diamond, Frank Fung, Milicent Johnson, 

Myrna Melgar, Dennis Richards



Commission Secretary:

Jonas P. Ionin





Hearing Materials are available at:

Website: http://www.sfplanning.org

Planning Department, 1650 Mission Street, 4th Floor, Suite 400

Voice recorded Agenda only: (415) 558-6422





Commission Hearing Broadcasts:

Live stream: http://www.sfgovtv.org

Live, Thursdays at 1:00 p.m., Cable Channel 78

Re-broadcast, Fridays at 8:00 p.m., Cable Channel 26







Disability and language accommodations available upon request to:

 commissions.secretary@sfgov.org or (415) 558-6309 at least 48 hours in advance.




Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance

[bookmark: _Hlk879281]Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review. 



For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine.

 

Privacy Policy

Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted. 



Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect or copy.



San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity. For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics.

 

Accessible Meeting Information

Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance. 



Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6, 9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services, call (415) 701-4485 or call 311.



Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall. 



Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, real time captioning, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing to help ensure availability. 



Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.



Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings.



SPANISH: Agenda para la Comisión de Planificación. Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato para asistencia auditiva, llame al 415-558-6309. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia.



CHINESE: 規劃委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電415-558-6309。請在聽證會舉行之前的

至少48個小時提出要求。



TAGALOG: Adyenda ng Komisyon ng Pagpaplano. Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa 415-558-6309. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga  (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig. 



RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по планированию. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным слуховым устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру 415-558-6309. Запросы должны делаться минимум за 48 часов до начала слушания. 





ROLL CALL:		

[bookmark: _Hlk429617]		President:	Joel Koppel		Vice-President:	Kathrin Moore

		Commissioners:                	Sue Diamond, Frank Fung, Milicent Johnson, 

			Myrna Melgar, Dennis Richards



A. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE



The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date. The Commission may choose to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or to hear the item on this calendar.



1.	2015-004109CUA-02	(E. JARDINES: (415) 575-9144)

333 12TH STREET – north side of 12th Street between Folsom and Harrison Streets, Lots 022 and 055 in Assessor’s Block 3521 (District 6) – Request for a Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 844.23, for the project involving conversion of 200 dwelling units to student housing (with up to 618 beds). The project is proposing to convert the seven-story-over-basement (80-ft tall) residential building (measuring approximately 150,837 gross square feet) to student housing with 188 Class 1 bicycle parking spaces, and 15 Class 2 bicycle parking spaces. The subject property is located within a WMUG (Western SoMa Mixed-Use General) Zoning District, Western SoMa Special Use District, and 55-X and 55/65-X Height and Bulk Districts. The project is not a project under CEQA Guidelines Sections 15060(c) and 15378 because there is no direct or indirect physical change in the environment.

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions

(Proposed for Continuance to January 30, 2020)



2.	2019-017311CND	(C. FAHEY: (415) 575-9139)

901 UNION STREET – located on the south side of Union Street between Taylor and Jones Streets; Lot 001 in Assessor’s Block 0120 (District 3) – Request for a Condominium Conversion, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 1332 and 1381, to convert a three-story, six-unit building into residential condominiums within a RM-3 Zoning District and 65-A Height and Bulk District. The Project is not a project under CEQA Guidelines Sections 15060(c) and 15378 because there is no direct or indirect physical change in the environment. 

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions

(Proposed for Continuance to January 30, 2020)



3a.	2018-002825DRP	(D. WINSLOW: (415) 575-9159)

780 KANSAS STREET – west side of Kansas Street between 19th and 20th Streets; Lot 013A in Assessor’s Block 4074 (District 10) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application No. 2018.0221.1876 for construction of a vertical and horizontal addition to create a fourth-floor sunroom with a roof deck above; enlarge the existing three floors; create roof decks at the second and fourth floors; add a garage at the ground floor; and remodel and reconfigure the interior of the existing two units within a RM-1 (Residential-Mixed, Low Density) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. The existing building is located within the required rear yard and the proposed addition would result in additional encroachment. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Take Discretionary Review and Approve with Modifications

(Proposed for Continuance to February 27, 2020)



[bookmark: _GoBack]3b.	2018-002825VAR	(D. WINSLOW: (415) 575-9159)

780 KANSAS STREET – west side of Kansas Street between 19th and 20th Streets, Lot 013A of Assessor’s Block 4074 (District 2) – Request for Variance from the Zoning Administrator to construct a vertical and horizontal addition on an existing two-dwelling unit building and to add a garage at the ground floor. The subject lot is irregularly shaped and is approximately 600 square feet smaller than the required minimum lot area of 2,500 square feet. The subject lot measures 25-feet wide and has an average lot depth of approximately 78 feet. The existing building is non-conforming in that it extends into the required rear yard and exceeds the permitted 12-foot projection and the proposed addition would result in additional encroachment (to 29 feet 7 inches to the rear property line). PLANNING CODE SECTION 134 requires the subject property to maintain a rear yard of 36 feet 8 inches. Therefore, a rear yard variance is required. The subject property is located within a RM-1 (Residential-Mixed, Low Density) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District.

(Proposed for Continuance to February 27, 2020)



B.	CONSENT CALENDAR 



All matters listed hereunder constitute a Consent Calendar, are considered to be routine by the Planning Commission, and may be acted upon by a single roll call vote of the Commission.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the Commission, the public, or staff so requests, in which event the matter shall be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered as a separate item at this or a future hearing



4.	2019-016849CND	(C. FAHEY: (415) 575-9139)

1630 CLAY STREET – located on the north side of Clay Street between Polk and Larking Streets; Lot 007 in Assessor’s Block 0620 (District 3) – Request for a Condominium Conversion, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 1332 and 1381, to convert a four-story, six-unit building into residential condominiums within a RM-3 Zoning District and 65-A Height and Bulk District. The Project is not a project under CEQA Guidelines Sections 15060(c) and 15378 because there is no direct or indirect physical change in the environment. 

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions



5.	2019-006042CUA	(X. LIANG: (415) 575-9182)

1560 WALLACE STREET – north side of Wallace Avenue between Keith Street and Jennings Street; Lot 026 in Assessor’s Block 4829 (District 10) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 121.9 and 303, to allow subdivision of a parcel that is equal to or greater than 10,000 square feet into one or more smaller parcels in the PDR-1-B Zoning District, for the Project involving a lot subdivision of a 14,600 square feet lot into two lots and the new construction of a one-story, approximately 4,600 square feet, industrial warehouse on the vacant lot within a PDR-1-B (Production Distribution and Repair Light Industrial Buffer) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions





C.	COMMISSION MATTERS 



6.	Consideration of Adoption:

· Draft Minutes for January 9, 2020



7.	Commission Comments/Questions

· Inquiries/Announcements.  Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to the Commissioner(s).

· Future Meetings/Agendas.  At this time, the Commission may discuss and take action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of the Planning Commission.


D.	DEPARTMENT MATTERS



8.	Director’s Announcements



9.	Review of Past Events at the Board of Supervisors, Board of Appeals and Historic Preservation Commission

	

E.	GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 



At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items.  With respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the item is reached in the meeting.  Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to three minutes. When the number of speakers exceed the 15-minute limit, General Public Comment may be moved to the end of the Agenda.



F. REGULAR CALENDAR  



The Commission Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the project sponsor team; followed by public comment for and against the proposal.  Please be advised that the project sponsor team includes: the sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors.



10.	2019-023608CRV	(D. LANDIS: (415) 575-9118)

FY 2020-2022 PROPOSED DEPARTMENT BUDGET AND WORK PROGRAM – An Informational Presentation of the Department's proposed revenue and expenditure budget in FY 2020-2021 and FY2021-2022, including grants and capital budget requests; high-level work program activities for the department in FY 2020-2021 and FY2021-2022; and proposed dates where budget items will be discussed during the budget process.  

Preliminary Recommendation: None – Informational



11.	2019-017957PCA	(V. FLORES: (415) 575-9173)

GEARY-MASONIC SPECIAL USE DISTRICT [BF 191002] – Planning Code Amendment to modify the Geary-Masonic Special Use District regarding minimum parking requirements, ground floor celling heights, and to allow payment of an inclusionary housing fee; affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the California Environmental Quality Act; making findings of consistency with the General Plan, and the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1; and adopting findings of public convenience, necessity, and welfare under Planning Code, Section 302.

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Modifications

(Continued from Regular hearing on December 12, 2019)



12.	2017-011214CUA	(N. KWIATKOWSKA: (415) 575-9185)

9 APOLLO STREET – south side of Apollo Street between Topeka and Thornton Avenues, Lot 048 of Assessor’s Block 5354 (District 10) – Request for a Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 317 to remove an unauthorized dwelling unit from the ground floor by merging it with the existing dwelling unit above. The subject property is currently authorized for use as a single-family dwelling within a RH-1 (Residential-House, One-Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. The project is not a project under CEQA Guidelines Sections 15060(c) and 15378 because there is no direct or indirect physical change in the environment.

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions



13.	2019-015062CUA	(B. HICKS: (415) 575-9054)

500 LAGUNA STREET – east side of Laguna Street between Linden Street and Fell Street; Lot 016 in Assessor’s Block 0818 (District 5) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 202.2, 303, and 761 to establish an approximately 1,335 square foot cannabis retail use (d.b.a. Mr. C’s). The Project will occupy the ground floor and basement retail space within in the existing three-story residential and commercial building in the Hayes-Gough NCT (Neighborhood Commercial Transit) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions



14.	2019-016523CUA	(B. HICKS: (415) 575-9054)

313 IVY STREET – south side of Ivy Street between Gough Street and Octavia Street; Lot 004 in Assessor’s Block 0808 (District 5) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 202.2, 303, and 761 to establish an approximately 479 square foot cannabis retail use (d.b.a. Fig and Thistle Apothecary). The Project will occupy the ground floor retail space within in the existing three-story commercial building in the Hayes-Gough NCT (Neighborhood Commercial Transit) Zoning District and 50-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions



G. [bookmark: OLE_LINK2][bookmark: OLE_LINK1]DISCRETIONARY REVIEW CALENDAR  



The Commission Discretionary Review Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the DR requestor team; followed by public comment opposed to the project; followed by the project sponsor team; followed by public comment in support of the project.  Please be advised that the DR requestor and project sponsor teams include: the DR requestor and sponsor or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors.





15.	2019-005361DRM	(B. HICKS: (415) 575-9054)

49 KEARNY STREET – west side of Kearny Street between Maiden Lane and Post Street; Lot 002 in Assessor’s Block 0310 (District 3) – Request for Mandatory Discretionary Review, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 202.2, 210.2, and 311, to expand an existing medical cannabis dispensary (d.b.a. 710SF) to the second floor of an existing eight-story mixed-use building. The second floor is approximately 800 square feet and the resulting tenant space will include both the second and third floors covering a total of approximately 1,600 square feet in a C-3-O (Downtown Office) Zoning District and 80-130-F Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve 



16.	2019-000650DRP-02	(D. WINSLOW: (415) 575-9159)

617 SANCHEZ STREET – between 19th and Cumberland Streets; 055 in Assessor’s Block 3600 (District 7) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit 2019.0115.0390 &. 2019.0115.0391 for the demolition of an existing 2-story, approximately 1,000 square foot, one-bedroom, one-bath single-family home and detached garage, and construction of a new four-story (three-stories over basement), 4,149 square foot, four-bedroom, four and a half-bath, single-family home within a RH-1 (Residential-House, One Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve 



17.	2019-003900DRP	(D. WINSLOW: (415) 575-9159)

1526 MASONIC AVENUE – between Upper Terrace and Java Street; Lot 039 in Assessor’s Block 2616 (District 8) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application No 2019.0605.2567 for construction of a one-story, 21’ high, 735 square foot, artist cottage and dwelling unit at the rear of the property. The cottage will be located within the required rear yard and will require a variance. No exterior or interior alterations are proposed for the main house located at the front of the property within a RH-2 (Residential-House, Two Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Take Discretionary Review and Approve with Modifications



ADJOURNMENT


Hearing Procedures

The Planning Commission holds public hearings regularly, on most Thursdays. The full hearing schedule for the calendar year and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org. 



Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item. 

· When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.  Speakers will hear two alarms.  The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining.  The second louder sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended.



Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings).



For most cases (CU’s, PUD’s, 309’s, etc…) that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:



1. A thorough description of the issue(s) by the Director or a member of the staff.

2. A presentation of the proposal by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes sponsor or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed 10 minutes, unless a written request for extension not to exceed a total presentation time of 15 minutes is received at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, and granted by the President or Chair.

3. A presentation of opposition to the proposal by organized opposition for a period not to exceed 10 minutes (or a period equal to that provided to the project sponsor team) with a minimum of three (3) speakers.  The intent of the 10 min block of time provided to organized opposition is to reduce the number of overall speakers who are part of the organized opposition.  The requestor should advise the group that the Commission would expect the organized presentation to represent their testimony, if granted.  Organized opposition will be recognized only upon written application at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, the President or Chair.  Such application should identify the organization(s) and speakers.

4. Public testimony from proponents of the proposal:  An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

5. Public testimony from opponents of the proposal:  An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

6. Director’s preliminary recommendation must be prepared in writing.

7. Action by the Commission on the matter before it.

8. In public hearings on Draft Environmental Impact Reports, all speakers will be limited to a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

9. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings.

10. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened by the Chair;

11. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission.



Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of four (4) votes.  A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members present constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission).



For Discretionary Review cases that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:



1. A thorough description of the issue by the Director or a member of the staff.

2. A presentation by the DR Requestor(s) team (includes Requestor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed five (5) minutes for each requestor.

3. Testimony by members of the public in support of the DR would be up to three (3) minutes each.

4. A presentation by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes Sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period up to five (5) minutes, but could be extended for a period not to exceed 10 minutes if there are multiple DR requestors.

5. Testimony by members of the public in support of the project would be up to three (3) minutes each.

6. DR requestor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal.

7. Project sponsor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal.

8. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings.



The Commission must Take DR in order to disapprove or modify a building permit application that is before them under Discretionary Review.  A failed motion to Take DR results in a Project that is approved as proposed.



Hearing Materials

Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be received by the Planning Department eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing.  All submission packages must be delivered to1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) hardcopies and a .pdf copy must be provided to the staff planner. Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission after eight days in advance of a hearing must be received by the Commission Secretary no later than the close of business the day before a hearing for it to become a part of the public record for any public hearing. 



Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission on the same day, must be submitted at the hearing directly to the Planning Commission Secretary. Please provide ten (10) copies for distribution. Correspondence submitted in any other fashion on the same day may not become a part of the public record until the following hearing.



Correspondence sent directly to all members of the Commission, must include a copy to the Commission Secretary (commissions.secretary@sfgov.org) for it to become a part of the public record.



These submittal rules and deadlines shall be strictly enforced and no exceptions shall be made without a vote of the Commission.



Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Planning Commission, 1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA  94103-2414.  Written comments received by the close of the business day prior to the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Planning Commission and made part of the official record.  



Appeals

The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Planning Commission hearing.



		Case Type

		Case Suffix

		Appeal Period*

		Appeal Body



		Office Allocation

		OFA (B)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals**



		Conditional Use Authorization and Planned Unit Development

		CUA (C)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Building Permit Application (Discretionary Review)

		DRP/DRM (D)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		EIR Certification

		ENV (E)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Coastal Zone Permit

		CTZ (P)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Planning Code Amendments by Application

		PCA (T)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Variance (Zoning Administrator action)

		VAR (V)

		10 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Large Project Authorization in Eastern Neighborhoods 

		LPA (X)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Permit Review in C-3 Districts, Downtown Residential Districts

		DNX (X)

		15-calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Zoning Map Change by Application

		MAP (Z)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors







* Appeals of Planning Commission decisions on Building Permit Applications (Discretionary Review) must be made within 15 days of the date the building permit is issued/denied by the Department of Building Inspection (not from the date of the Planning Commission hearing).  Appeals of Zoning Administrator decisions on Variances must be made within 10 days from the issuance of the decision letter.



**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal.  An appeal of an Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization.



For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  For more information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org. 



An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application may be made to the Board of Supervisors within 30 calendar days after the date of action by the Planning Commission pursuant to the provisions of Sections 328(g)(5) and 308.1(b). Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board’s office at 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244. For further information about appeals to the Board of Supervisors, including current fees, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184. 



An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a building permit application issued (or denied) pursuant to a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application by the Planning Commission or the Board of Supervisors may be made to the Board of Appeals within 15 calendar days after the building permit is issued (or denied) by the Director of the Department of Building Inspection. Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board's office at 1650 Mission Street, 3rd Floor, Room 304. For further information about appeals to the Board of Appeals, including current fees, contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880. 



Challenges

Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, (1) the adoption or amendment of a general plan, (2) the adoption or amendment of a zoning ordinance, (3) the adoption or amendment of any regulation attached to a specific plan, (4) the adoption, amendment or modification of a development agreement, or (5) the approval of a variance, conditional-use authorization, or any permit, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing.



CEQA Appeal Rights under Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code

If the Commission’s action on a project constitutes the Approval Action for that project (as defined in S.F. Administrative Code Chapter 31, as amended, Board of Supervisors Ordinance Number 161-13), then the CEQA determination prepared in support of that Approval Action is thereafter subject to appeal within the time frame specified in S.F. Administrative Code Section 31.16.  This appeal is separate from and in addition to an appeal of an action on a project.  Typically, an appeal must be filed within 30 calendar days of the Approval Action for a project that has received an exemption or negative declaration pursuant to CEQA.  For information on filing an appeal under Chapter 31, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244, San Francisco, CA 94102, or call (415) 554-5184.  If the Department’s Environmental Review Officer has deemed a project to be exempt from further environmental review, an exemption determination has been prepared and can be obtained on-line at http://www.sf-planning.org/index.aspx?page=3447. Under CEQA, in a later court challenge, a litigant may be limited to raising only those issues previously raised at a hearing on the project or in written correspondence delivered to the Board of Supervisors, Planning Commission, Planning Department or other City board, commission or department at, or prior to, such hearing, or as part of the appeal hearing process on the CEQA decision.



Protest of Fee or Exaction

You may protest any fee or exaction subject to Government Code Section 66000 imposed as a condition of approval in accordance with Government Code Section 66020.  The protest must satisfy the requirements of Government Code Section 66020(a) and must be filed within 90 days of the date of the first approval or conditional approval of the development referencing the challenged fee or exaction.  For purposes of Government Code Section 66020, the date of imposition of the fee shall be the date of the earliest discretionary approval by the City of the subject development.   



The Planning Commission’s approval or conditional approval of the development subject to the challenged fee or exaction as expressed in its Motion, Resolution, or Discretionary Review Action or the Zoning Administrator’s Variance Decision Letter will serve as Notice that the 90-day protest period under Government Code Section 66020 has begun.



Proposition F

Under Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 1.127, no person or entity with a financial interest in a land use matter pending before the Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, Building Inspection Commission, Commission on Community Investment and Infrastructure, Historic Preservation Commission, Planning Commission, Port Commission, or the Treasure Island Development Authority Board of Directors, may make a campaign contribution to a member of the Board of Supervisors, the Mayor, the City Attorney, or a candidate for any of those offices, from the date the land use matter commenced until 12 months after the board or commission has made a final decision or any appeal to another City agency from that decision has been resolved.  For more information about this restriction, visit sfethics.org.
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Disability and language accommodations available upon request to:
commissions.secretary@sfgov.org or (415) 558-6309 at least 48 hours in advance.
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Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance

Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the
City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City
operations are open to the people's review.

For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of
the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415)
554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San
Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine.

Privacy Policy
Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act

and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted.

Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its
commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made
available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This
means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit
to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may
inspect or copy.

San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance
Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist

Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity. For more information about
the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415)
252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics.

Accessible Meeting Information

Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday
through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at
the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance.

Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness
stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6,9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services,
call (415) 701-4485 or call 311.

Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking
Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall.

Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, real time captioning, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or
other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 72 hours in
advance of the hearing to help ensure availability.

Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or
commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.

Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related
disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings.

SPANISH: Agenda para la Comisién de Planificacién. Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener informacién en Espafiol o solicitar un aparato
para asistencia auditiva, llame al 415-558-6309. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipacion a la audiencia.

CHINESE: 1 #| & B &g i . BB e L anws B S WBhel BRI ER M, 55203 415-558-6309, (LR E 81T 2 A Ad
/D48 /INREE H B R

TAGALOG: Adyenda ng Komisyon ng Pagpaplano. Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig
(headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa 415-558-6309. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig.

RUSSIAN: NoBecTka aHst Komuccum no nnaHNpoBaHUIO. 3a nomouybio nepesoavunka nnun 3a scrnomMoratesibHbIM CI1yXOBbIM
yCTpOVICTBOM Ha BpeMA CJ'IyLLIaHI/II7I o6pau.|,a|7|Ter no Homepy 415-558-6309. 3anp00b| JOJKHbI AenaTtbcsa MUHUMYM 3a 48 YacoB
00 Havyana cnywaHus.
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ROLL CALL:
President: Joel Koppel
Vice-President: Kathrin Moore
Commissioners: Sue Diamond, Frank Fung, Milicent Johnson,

Myrna Melgar, Dennis Richards
A. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE

The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date. The Commission may
choose to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or
to hear the item on this calendar.

1. 2015-004109CUA-02 (E. JARDINES: (415) 575-9144)
333 12TH STREET — north side of 12th Street between Folsom and Harrison Streets, Lots 022
and 055 in Assessor’s Block 3521 (District 6) — Request for a Conditional Use Authorization,
pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 844.23, for the project involving conversion of
200 dwelling units to student housing (with up to 618 beds). The project is proposing to
convert the seven-story-over-basement (80-ft tall) residential building (measuring
approximately 150,837 gross square feet) to student housing with 188 Class 1 bicycle
parking spaces, and 15 Class 2 bicycle parking spaces. The subject property is located
within a WMUG (Western SoMa Mixed-Use General) Zoning District, Western SoMa Special
Use District, and 55-X and 55/65-X Height and Bulk Districts. The project is not a project
under CEQA Guidelines Sections 15060(c) and 15378 because there is no direct or indirect
physical change in the environment.

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
(Proposed for Continuance to January 30, 2020)

2. 2019-017311CND (C. FAHEY: (415) 575-9139)
901 UNION STREET - located on the south side of Union Street between Taylor and Jones
Streets; Lot 001 in Assessor's Block 0120 (District 3) — Request for a Condominium
Conversion, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 1332 and 1381, to convert a three-story,
six-unit building into residential condominiums within a RM-3 Zoning District and 65-A
Height and Bulk District. The Project is not a project under CEQA Guidelines Sections
15060(c) and 15378 because there is no direct or indirect physical change in the
environment.

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
(Proposed for Continuance to January 30, 2020)

3a. 2018-002825DRP (D. WINSLOW: (415) 575-9159)
780 KANSAS STREET — west side of Kansas Street between 19th and 20th Streets; Lot 013A in
Assessor’s Block 4074 (District 10) — Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit
Application No. 2018.0221.1876 for construction of a vertical and horizontal addition to
create a fourth-floor sunroom with a roof deck above; enlarge the existing three floors;
create roof decks at the second and fourth floors; add a garage at the ground floor; and
remodel and reconfigure the interior of the existing two units within a RM-1 (Residential-
Mixed, Low Density) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. The existing
building is located within the required rear yard and the proposed addition would result in
additional encroachment. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for
the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).
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3b.

Preliminary Recommendation: Take Discretionary Review and Approve with Modifications
(Proposed for Continuance to February 27, 2020)

2018-002825VAR (D. WINSLOW: (415) 575-9159)
780 KANSAS STREET — west side of Kansas Street between 19th and 20th Streets, Lot 013A of
Assessor’s Block 4074 (District 2) — Request for Variance from the Zoning Administrator to
construct a vertical and horizontal addition on an existing two-dwelling unit building and
to add a garage at the ground floor. The subject lot is irregularly shaped and is
approximately 600 square feet smaller than the required minimum lot area of 2,500 square
feet. The subject lot measures 25-feet wide and has an average lot depth of approximately
78 feet. The existing building is non-conforming in that it extends into the required rear
yard and exceeds the permitted 12-foot projection and the proposed addition would result
in additional encroachment (to 29 feet 7 inches to the rear property line). PLANNING CODE
SECTION 134 requires the subject property to maintain a rear yard of 36 feet 8 inches.
Therefore, a rear yard variance is required. The subject property is located within a RM-1
(Residential-Mixed, Low Density) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District.
(Proposed for Continuance to February 27, 2020)

B. CONSENT CALENDAR

All matters listed hereunder constitute a Consent Calendar, are considered to be routine by the
Planning Commission, and may be acted upon by a single roll call vote of the Commission. There
will be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the Commission, the public, or
staff so requests, in which event the matter shall be removed from the Consent Calendar and
considered as a separate item at this or a future hearing

4.

2019-016849CND (C. FAHEY: (415) 575-9139)
1630 CLAY STREET - located on the north side of Clay Street between Polk and Larking
Streets; Lot 007 in Assessor's Block 0620 (District 3) — Request for a Condominium
Conversion, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 1332 and 1381, to convert a four-story,
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

2019-006042CUA (X. LIANG: (415) 575-9182)
1560 WALLACE STREET - north side of Wallace Avenue between Keith Street and Jennings
Street; Lot 026 in Assessor's Block 4829 (District 10) — Request for Conditional Use
Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 121.9 and 303, to allow subdivision of a
parcel that is equal to or greater than 10,000 square feet into one or more smaller parcels
in the PDR-1-B Zoning District, for the Project involving a lot subdivision of a 14,600 square
feet lot into two lots and the new construction of a one-story, approximately 4,600 square
feet, industrial warehouse on the vacant lot within a PDR-1-B (Production Distribution and
Repair Light Industrial Buffer) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action
constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San
Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
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C

COMMISSION MATTERS

6. Consideration of Adoption:
e Draft Minutes for January 9, 2020

7. Commission Comments/Questions

¢ Inquiries/Announcements. Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may
make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to
the Commissioner(s).

e Future Meetings/Agendas. At this time, the Commission may discuss and take
action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that
could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of
the Planning Commission.

DEPARTMENT MATTERS
8. Director's Announcements
9. Review of Past Events at the Board of Supervisors, Board of Appeals and Historic

Preservation Commission
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT

At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public
that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items. With
respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the
item is reached in the meeting. Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to
three minutes. When the number of speakers exceed the 15-minute limit, General Public Comment
may be moved to the end of the Agenda.

REGULAR CALENDAR

The Commission Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the project
sponsor team; followed by public comment for and against the proposal. Please be advised that
the project sponsor team includes: the sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers,
expediters, and/or other advisors.

10. 2019-023608CRV (D.LANDIS: (415) 575-9118)
FY 2020-2022 PROPOSED DEPARTMENT BUDGET AND WORK PROGRAM - An Informational
Presentation of the Department's proposed revenue and expenditure budget in FY 2020-
2021 and FY2021-2022, including grants and capital budget requests; high-level work
program activities for the department in FY 2020-2021 and FY2021-2022; and proposed
dates where budget items will be discussed during the budget process.

Preliminary Recommendation: None — Informational

11. 2019-017957PCA (V. FLORES: (415) 575-9173)
GEARY-MASONIC SPECIAL USE DISTRICT [BF 191002] - Planning Code Amendment to
modify the Geary-Masonic Special Use District regarding minimum parking requirements,
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ground floor celling heights, and to allow payment of an inclusionary housing fee;
affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the California Environmental
Quality Act; making findings of consistency with the General Plan, and the eight priority
policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1; and adopting findings of public convenience,
necessity, and welfare under Planning Code, Section 302.
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Modifications
(Continued from Regular hearing on December 12, 2019)

12. 2017-011214CUA (N. KWIATKOWSKA: (415) 575-9185)
9 APOLLO STREET - south side of Apollo Street between Topeka and Thornton Avenues,
Lot 048 of Assessor’s Block 5354 (District 10) — Request for a Conditional Use Authorization
pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 317 to remove an unauthorized dwelling unit
from the ground floor by merging it with the existing dwelling unit above. The subject
property is currently authorized for use as a single-family dwelling within a RH-1
(Residential-House, One-Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. The
project is not a project under CEQA Guidelines Sections 15060(c) and 15378 because there
is no direct or indirect physical change in the environment.
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

13. 2019-015062CUA (B. HICKS: (415) 575-9054)
500 LAGUNA STREET - east side of Laguna Street between Linden Street and Fell Street;
Lot 016 in Assessor’s Block 0818 (District 5) — Request for Conditional Use Authorization,
pursuant to Planning Code Sections 202.2, 303, and 761 to establish an approximately
1,335 square foot cannabis retail use (d.b.a. Mr. C’s). The Project will occupy the ground
floor and basement retail space within in the existing three-story residential and
commercial building in the Hayes-Gough NCT (Neighborhood Commercial Transit) Zoning
District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for
the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code
Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

14. 2019-016523CUA (B. HICKS: (415) 575-9054)
313 IVY STREET - south side of Ivy Street between Gough Street and Octavia Street; Lot
004 in Assessor’s Block 0808 (District 5) — Request for Conditional Use Authorization,
pursuant to Planning Code Sections 202.2, 303, and 761 to establish an approximately 479
square foot cannabis retail use (d.b.a. Fig and Thistle Apothecary). The Project will occupy
the ground floor retail space within in the existing three-story commercial building in the
Hayes-Gough NCT (Neighborhood Commercial Transit) Zoning District and 50-X Height
and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the
purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

G. DISCRETIONARY REVIEW CALENDAR

The Commission Discretionary Review Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff;
followed by the DR requestor team; followed by public comment opposed to the project; followed
by the project sponsor team; followed by public comment in support of the project. Please be
advised that the DR requestor and project sponsor teams include: the DR requestor and sponsor or
their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors.
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15.

16.

17.

ADJOURNMENT

2019-005361DRM (B. HICKS: (415) 575-9054)
49 KEARNY STREET - west side of Kearny Street between Maiden Lane and Post Street; Lot
002 in Assessor’s Block 0310 (District 3) — Request for Mandatory Discretionary Review,
pursuant to Planning Code Sections 202.2, 210.2, and 311, to expand an existing medical
cannabis dispensary (d.b.a. 710SF) to the second floor of an existing eight-story mixed-use
building. The second floor is approximately 800 square feet and the resulting tenant space
will include both the second and third floors covering a total of approximately 1,600
square feet in a C-3-O (Downtown Office) Zoning District and 80-130-F Height and Bulk
District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of
CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve

2019-000650DRP-02 (D. WINSLOW: (415) 575-9159)
617 SANCHEZ STREET - between 19th and Cumberland Streets; 055 in Assessor’s Block
3600 (District 7) — Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit 2019.0115.0390 &.
2019.0115.0391 for the demolition of an existing 2-story, approximately 1,000 square foot,
one-bedroom, one-bath single-family home and detached garage, and construction of a
new four-story (three-stories over basement), 4,149 square foot, four-bedroom, four and a
half-bath, single-family home within a RH-1 (Residential-House, One Family) Zoning
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

2019-003900DRP (D. WINSLOW: (415) 575-9159)
1526 MASONIC AVENUE - between Upper Terrace and Java Street; Lot 039 in Assessor’s
Block 2616 (District 8) — Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application
No 2019.0605.2567 for construction of a one-story, 21" high, 735 square foot, artist cottage
and dwelling unit at the rear of the property. The cottage will be located within the
required rear yard and will require a variance. No exterior or interior alterations are
proposed for the main house located at the front of the property within a RH-2
(Residential-House, Two Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This
action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant
to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Take Discretionary Review and Approve with Modifications
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Hearing Procedures
The Planning Commission holds public hearings regularly, on most Thursdays. The full hearing schedule for the calendar year

and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org.

Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item.
¢+ When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.
Speakers will hear two alarms. The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining. The second louder

sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended.

Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are
prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or
use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use
of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings).

For most cases (CU’s, PUD's, 309’s, etc...) that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the
Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:

1. Athorough description of the issue(s) by the Director or a member of the staff.

2. A presentation of the proposal by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes sponsor or their designee, lawyers, architects,
engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed 10 minutes, unless a written request
for extension not to exceed a total presentation time of 15 minutes is received at least 72 hours in advance of the
hearing, through the Commission Secretary, and granted by the President or Chair.

3. A presentation of opposition to the proposal by organized opposition for a period not to exceed 10 minutes (or a
period equal to that provided to the project sponsor team) with a minimum of three (3) speakers. The intent of the 10
min block of time provided to organized opposition is to reduce the number of overall speakers who are part of the
organized opposition. The requestor should advise the group that the Commission would expect the organized
presentation to represent their testimony, if granted. Organized opposition will be recognized only upon written
application at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, the President or Chair.
Such application should identify the organization(s) and speakers.

4. Public testimony from proponents of the proposal: An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3)
minutes.

5. Public testimony from opponents of the proposal: An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3)
minutes.

6. Director’s preliminary recommendation must be prepared in writing.

7. Action by the Commission on the matter before it.

8. In public hearings on Draft Environmental Impact Reports, all speakers will be limited to a period not to exceed three
(3) minutes.

9. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise
exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings.

10. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened
by the Chair;

11. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or
continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission.

Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of
four (4) votes. A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any
Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members
present constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission).

For Discretionary Review cases that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission
Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:

1. Athorough description of the issue by the Director or a member of the staff.

2. A presentation by the DR Requestor(s) team (includes Requestor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers,

expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed five (5) minutes for each requestor.

Testimony by members of the public in support of the DR would be up to three (3) minutes each.

4, A presentation by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes Sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers,
expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period up to five (5) minutes, but could be extended for a period not
to exceed 10 minutes if there are multiple DR requestors.

w
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Testimony by members of the public in support of the project would be up to three (3) minutes each.

DR requestor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal.

Project sponsor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal.

The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise
exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings.

N T

The Commission must Take DR in order to disapprove or modify a building permit application that is before them under
Discretionary Review. A failed motion to Take DR results in a Project that is approved as proposed.

Hearing Materials
Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be

received by the Planning Department eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing. All submission packages must be
delivered t01650 Mission Street, Suite 400, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) hardcopies and a .pdf copy must be
provided to the staff planner. Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission after eight days in advance of a hearing
must be received by the Commission Secretary no later than the close of business the day before a hearing for it to become a part
of the public record for any public hearing.

Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission on the same day, must be submitted at the hearing directly to the
Planning Commission Secretary. Please provide ten (10) copies for distribution. Correspondence submitted in any other fashion
on the same day may not become a part of the public record until the following hearing.

Correspondence sent directly to all members of the Commission, must include a copy to the Commission Secretary
(commissions.secretary@sfgov.org) for it to become a part of the public record.

These submittal rules and deadlines shall be strictly enforced and no exceptions shall be made without a vote of the Commission.

Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Planning Commission, 1650
Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103-2414. Written comments received by the close of the business day prior to
the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Planning Commission and made part of the official record.

Appeals
The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Planning Commission

hearing.

Case Type Case Suffix Appeal Period* Appeal Body

Office Allocation OFA (B) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals**
Conditional Use Authorization and Planned Unit | CUA (C) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors
Development

Building Permit Application (Discretionary | DRP/DRM (D) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals
Review)

EIR Certification ENV (E) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors
Coastal Zone Permit CTZ(P) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals
Planning Code Amendments by Application PCA (T) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors
Variance (Zoning Administrator action) VAR (V) 10 calendar days Board of Appeals
Large Project Authorization in Eastern | LPA (X) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals
Neighborhoods

Permit Review in C-3 Districts, Downtown | DNX (X) 15-calendar days Board of Appeals
Residential Districts

Zoning Map Change by Application MAP (Z) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors

* Appeals of Planning Commission decisions on Building Permit Applications (Discretionary Review) must be made within 15 days of
the date the building permit is issued/denied by the Department of Building Inspection (not from the date of the Planning Commission
hearing). Appeals of Zoning Administrator decisions on Variances must be made within 10 days from the issuance of the decision
letter.

**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project
requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal. An appeal of an
Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization.
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For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880. For more
information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or
board.of supervisors@sfgov.org.

An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application may be made to the Board of
Supervisors within 30 calendar days after the date of action by the Planning Commission pursuant to the provisions of Sections
328(g)(5) and 308.1(b). Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board’s office at 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244.
For further information about appeals to the Board of Supervisors, including current fees, contact the Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors at (415) 554-5184.

An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a building permit application issued (or denied) pursuant to a 100% Affordable Housing
Bonus Program application by the Planning Commission or the Board of Supervisors may be made to the Board of Appeals within
15 calendar days after the building permit is issued (or denied) by the Director of the Department of Building Inspection. Appeals
must be submitted in person at the Board's office at 1650 Mission Street, 3rd Floor, Room 304. For further information about
appeals to the Board of Appeals, including current fees, contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.

Challenges
Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, (1) the adoption or amendment of a general plan, (2) the

adoption or amendment of a zoning ordinance, (3) the adoption or amendment of any regulation attached to a specific plan, (4)
the adoption, amendment or modification of a development agreement, or (5) the approval of a variance, conditional-use
authorization, or any permit, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing
described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing.

CEQA Appeal Rights under Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code

If the Commission’s action on a project constitutes the Approval Action for that project (as defined in S.F. Administrative Code
Chapter 31, as amended, Board of Supervisors Ordinance Number 161-13), then the CEQA determination prepared in support of
that Approval Action is thereafter subject to appeal within the time frame specified in S.F. Administrative Code Section
31.16. This appeal is separate from and in addition to an appeal of an action on a project. Typically, an appeal must be filed
within 30 calendar days of the Approval Action for a project that has received an exemption or negative declaration pursuant to
CEQA. For information on filing an appeal under Chapter 31, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at City Hall, 1 Dr.
Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244, San Francisco, CA 94102, or call (415) 554-5184. If the Department’s Environmental Review
Officer has deemed a project to be exempt from further environmental review, an exemption determination has been prepared
and can be obtained on-line at http://www.sf-planning.org/index.aspx?page=3447. Under CEQA, in a later court challenge, a
litigant may be limited to raising only those issues previously raised at a hearing on the project or in written correspondence
delivered to the Board of Supervisors, Planning Commission, Planning Department or other City board, commission or
department at, or prior to, such hearing, or as part of the appeal hearing process on the CEQA decision.

Protest of Fee or Exaction

You may protest any fee or exaction subject to Government Code Section 66000 imposed as a condition of approval in
accordance with Government Code Section 66020. The protest must satisfy the requirements of Government Code Section
66020(a) and must be filed within 90 days of the date of the first approval or conditional approval of the development
referencing the challenged fee or exaction. For purposes of Government Code Section 66020, the date of imposition of the fee
shall be the date of the earliest discretionary approval by the City of the subject development.

The Planning Commission’s approval or conditional approval of the development subject to the challenged fee or exaction as
expressed in its Motion, Resolution, or Discretionary Review Action or the Zoning Administrator’s Variance Decision Letter will
serve as Notice that the 90-day protest period under Government Code Section 66020 has begun.

Proposition F
Under Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 1.127, no person or entity with a financial interest in a land use

matter pending before the Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, Building Inspection Commission, Commission on Community
Investment and Infrastructure, Historic Preservation Commission, Planning Commission, Port Commission, or the Treasure Island
Development Authority Board of Directors, may make a campaign contribution to a member of the Board of Supervisors, the
Mayor, the City Attorney, or a candidate for any of those offices, from the date the land use matter commenced until 12 months
after the board or commission has made a final decision or any appeal to another City agency from that decision has been
resolved. For more information about this restriction, visit sfethics.org.
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		Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted.

		Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding...

		San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance

		Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report l...

		F. REGULAR CALENDAR

		G. DISCRETIONARY REVIEW CALENDAR

		Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringin...




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

Subject: FW: IMPORTANT - Fig and Thistle project

Date: Friday, January 17, 2020 1:45:24 PM

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

From: Sabrina Mekhalfa <smekhalfa@hotmail.com>

Sent: Friday, January 17, 2020 1:26 PM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Hicks, Bridget (CPC)
<Bridget.Hicks@sfgov.org>

Subject: IMPORTANT - Fig and Thistle project

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Dear Commissioner and Planner,

| am writing this letter to express our concern and to oppose the planned opening of a
cannabis dispensary at the current location of the bar, Fig and Thistle on 313 Ivy
Street.

As parents of two teenagers living opposite to the planned store at 300 Ivy St., | am
concerned about the apparent availability of cannabis that this store would contribute
to Ivy street.

Our street is currently struggling with an influx of regular homeless encampments and
the associated open drug use and human waste. We regularly call the police patrol to
help with these problems during the day and at night. We are concerned that an influx
of customers of the planned dispensary could lead to more use of drugs legal and
illegal on lvy street.

Our narrow one-way street is also subject to regular congestion, sidewalk parking and
illegal parking on the 300 lvy passenger loading zone. An increase in customers who
stop to make a purchase will certainly increase car traffic and parking violations.


mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:dennis.richards@sfgov.org
mailto:sue.diamond@sfgov.org
mailto:Frank.Fung@sfgov.org
mailto:Milicent.Johnson@sfgov.org
mailto:Joel.Koppel@sfgov.org
mailto:kathrin.moore@sfgov.org
mailto:Myrna.Melgar@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/

Finally, the location, though it is more that 600 feet from a school, is actually within
the perimeter of a large school and after-school community of French-American
international school on Oak/ Hickory St. and the Boys and Girls Club on Fulton St.
both at 1.5 or two blocks away.

We would like to ask that the consequences of opening a cannabis dispensary on
open drug use, the potential of increased car and human traffic and the proximity with
youth facilities be taken into consideration in granting an authorization....

| am planning to go to the hearing at City Hall is on January 23rd to voice my
concerns and request that such project is cancelled.

Best regards
Sabrina



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
Date: Friday, January 17, 2020 1:20:58 PM
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

From: Nancy Alfaro <alfaro.nancy@gmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, January 16, 2020 4:34 PM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; chairmanoffice@sec.gov
Cc: alexandraliss@gmail.com; sabrina.300ivy@gmail.com; jmoran@ parksconservancy.org;
steven.sheh@gmail.com; communityrelationsoig@Iacity.org; Hicks, Bridget (CPC)
<Bridget.Hicks@sfgov.org>; cathy.edwards@gmail.com; cbretzin@gmail.com; oig@sec.gov;
sindicato@senado.gob.mx; silvanoaureoles@ michoacan.gob.mx; Criminal.Division@usdoj.gov
Subject: Re: IMPORTANT - Fig and Thistle project

Dear Planning Commission,
As per Bridget's advise | refer you to the 300 IVY letter below.

Further, the Community Relations Coordinator, Office of the Inspector General
Los Angeles Board of Police Commissioners was gracious to provide me with information of a similar
institution that can assist in monitoring the development around the issues below.

| would like to stress that this is a delicate matter, which also involves California's critical
infrastructure and ongoing grand fraud being perpetrated on pension and retirement plans in
various States around the country. Including the CA State government officials and police
departments.

Regards,
Nancy


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

San Francisco




























OnJan 16, 2020, at 4:05 PM, Hicks, Bridget (CPC) <Bridget.Hicks@sfgov.org> wrote:

Hi Nancy,
Thank you for sending this over.

If you would like this letter to be sent to the Planning Commission, the body
which makes the decision, please send this letter to
Commissions.Secreta sfgov.or

Thank you,
Bridget Hicks, M.S.
Planner Il, SW Quadrant, Current Planning Division

Direct: 415-575-9054 | Fax: 415-558-6409

San Francisce 1650 Mission Street, Suite 400
lciiii] San Francisco, CA 94103

SF Planning

Department

Hours of Operation | Property Information Map

0 v O « & =

From: Nancy Alfaro <alfaro.nancy@gmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, January 16, 2020 3:12 PM

To: alexandraliss@gmail.com; sabrina.300ivy@gmail.com;
jmoran@parksconservancy.org

Cc: Hicks, Bridget (CPC) <Bridget.Hicks@sfgov.org>; steven.sheh@gmail.com;

communityrelationsoig@lacity.org
Subject: Fwd: IMPORTANT - Fig and Thistle project

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from
untrusted sources.

Begin forwarded message:

From: Nancy Alfaro <alfaro.nanc mail.com>

Date: January 16, 2020 at 12:55:22 AM PST

To: casework@feinstein.senate.gov, help@elizabethwarren.com,
oig@sec.gov, Criminal.Division@usdoj.gov, chairmanoffice@sec.gov,
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sanfrancisco <sanfrancisco@sec.gov>, fcpa.fraud@usdoj.gov,
FRAudGroup@sec.gov, cristobal.arias@senado.gob.mx,
ethics@pcaobus.org, contacto@senadomorena.com, losangeles@sec.gov
Cc: yadathi@gmail.com, jmoran@parksconservancy.org,
steven.sheh@gmail.com, sabrina.300ivy@gmail.com, publicinfo@sec.gov,
NRedington@colonyinc.com, bridget.hicks@sfgov.org,
angel@figandthistlesf.com, sindicato@senado.gob.mx,
opr.complaints@usdoj.gov, Whistleblower.Coordinator@oig.hhs.gov,

hotline@oig.dot.gov
Subject: Fwd: IMPORTANT - Fig and Thistle project

Dear Regulators,

| refer you the communications below from the residents at 300 IVY, in
San Francisco CA.

Today's interference with communications, not only impacts US
regulators or politicians, but my ability to assist my neighbors on issues
directly impacting our lives and our children.

Respectfully, is it wise for US regulators and the Senate to involve the 127
listed below in the ongoing investigations involving widespread
government corruption?

Background

300 lvy was finance by First Republic Bank. The law firm assisting 300 IVY
with a construction defects legal action against the developer resigned
upon figuring out | was the owner of one of the Units associated with the
ongoing situation in private equity, real estate and farmers insurance.
Bcc'd in this e-mail is the one of the main real estate private equity that
owns First Republic Bank.

300 Ivy is the community conflicting on ongoing issues with FaceBook,
Google and the ex-ClO of Palo Alto, who is under investigation for Ethical
violations (a.k.a. bribery and corruption) by CA regulators and his
involvement with Oracle.

The past couple of days UBER's ongoing FCPA internal investigation and
remediation procedures unexpectedly involved HoganLovell, LLP into
Walmart and Herbalife's FCPA internal investigations and Irell & Manella,
LLP.

Private equity and Real Estate Private Equity is at the center of most
issues, which is not surprising given their conduct and involvement with
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reckless financing any surveillance technology, reckless disregard for the
impact the companies and products

they financed had on human lives. Further, is a known fact that Private
Equity, dismantles, reduces head as it possibly can and overloads this
companies with debt, where internal controls, compliance and ethics
personnel are the usual casualties.

The 300 lvy community is highly educated and Senior level executives in
various companies including Google, as well as, companies that own the
technologies Uber used to deceive US regulators and foreign regulators
investigators (i.e. Transportation and Tax Authorities). These technologies
are also related to Logistics and Transportation.

I ask US regulators and senators to consider the consequences of
involving 127 people in the ongoing situation given their professional
backgrounds. 300 IVY residents are parents that have valid concerns their
children's welfare.

300 IVY is another example of the communities fighting regulators for the
job these local bureaucrats are paid for. 300 IVY is also the property
where either San Francisco county's assessor was impersonated or
involved in the threats that have taken place in the ongoing
investigations. This threats, relate specifically to the Herbalife
investigation around tax issues. This resulted in my not paying any
property taxes.

| would like nothing more than to claim | am engaging in an act of civil
disobedience by refusing to pay any taxes, including property taxes, but |
can't. Tax payers never agreed to pay taxes to have US Regulators harass
them or engaged in crimes against them. It is also a crime for any US
Regulators to collude with accountants and lawyers to defraud tax payers
of their retirement savings and any assets they own. As a result, | do not
owe any taxes nor am | incurring any liabilities. Local authorities or the IRS
are refusing to audit me given their own involvement on harassing tax
payers and attempting to defraud me.

Finally, I would like to point out to US and Mexican Regulators and
politicians that fighting for Children what that started this conflict, which
involves the UK and Australia among other countries. 300 IVY Parents
include Australian citizens with very young children. Please refer to
Sabrina and Souhil's draft letter below opposing the opening of a cannabis
dispensary in front of their building .

Sincerely,
Nancy Alfaro



Begin forwarded message:

From: Claudia Yadathi <yadathi@gmail.com>

Date: January 15, 2020 at 9:22:28 PM PST

To: John Moran <JMoran@ParksConservancy.org>

Cc: Claire Jackson <clairekjackson@gmail.com>, Sabrina
300IVY <sabrina.300iv mail.com>, "atidman@mac.com"
<atidman@mac.com>, "aditi.joshi34@gmail.com"
<aditi.joshi34@gmail.com>, "al_laxman@yahoo.com"
<al_laxman@yahoo.com>, "alags10@hotmail.com"
<alags10@hotmail.com>, "alankarchang@gmail.com"
<alankarchan mail.com>, "alexandraliss@gmail.com"
<alexandraliss@gmail.com>, "alinashah@gmail.com"
<alinashah@gmail.com>, "amanda.cifarelli@gmail.com"
<amanda.cifarelli@gmail.com>, Andrew Pearlman
<pearlman.andrew@gmail.com>, "achiu7 @gmail.com"
<achiu7@gmail.com>, "ann.lutzker@gmail.com"
<ann.lutzker@gmail.com>, "anna.kolontyrsky@gmail.com"
<anna.kolontyrsk mail.com>, "aplutino@yahoo.com"
<aplutino@yahoo.com>, "ariel zach@yahoo.com"
<ariel_zach@yahoo.com>, "alehr1723@gmail.com"
<alehrl1723@gmail.com>, "atishay.jain89@gmail.com"
<atishay.jain89@gmail.com>,
"Audreycervantez15@gmail.com"
<Audreycervantez15@gmail.com>,
"avnish.sabharwal@gmail.com"
<avnish.sabharwal@gmail.com>, "benchoy@gmail.com"
<bencho mail.com>, "blake.m.osborn@gmail.com"
<blake.m.osborn@gmail.com>, "laiboon@gmail.com"
<laiboon@gmail.com>, "brennan.spellacy@sonder.com"
<brennan.spellacy@sonder.com>, "bty200@gmail.com"
<bty200@gmail.com>, "Cairokim@gmail.com"
<Cairokim@gmail.com>, "cathy.edwards@gmail.com"
<cathy.edwards@gmail.com>, "cbretzin@gmail.com"
<cbretzin@gmail.com>, "cxie08@gmail.com"
<cxieQ8@gmail.com>, "chikodi@moonshotpr.com”
<chikodi@moonshotpr.com>, "ckwan@chokwancpa.com"
<ckwan@chokwancpa.com>, "ctstraub@gmail.com"
<ctstraub@gmail.com>, "crbarryl7@gmail.com"
<crbarryl7 @gmail.com>, "rilely@icloud.com"
<rilely@icloud.com>, "ctunno@gmail.com"
<ctunno@gmail.com>, "cvinglee44@gmail.com"
<cvingleed4@gmail.com>, "cristin.morneau@gmail.com"
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<cristin.morneau@gmail.com>,

"danoosh.kapadia@gmail.com"
<danoosh.kapadia@gmail.com>,
"david@ellnerconsulting.com"
<david@ellnerconsulting.com>, "davelu@gmail.com"
<davelu@gmail.com>, "davidsha@gmail.com"
<davidsha@gmail.com>,
"dennischang@alumni.stanford.edu"
<dennischang@alumni.stanford.edu>,
"eleanorlee@gmail.com" <eleanorlee@gmail.com>,
"erin.pettigrew@gmail.com" <erin.pettigrew@gmail.com>,
"Fred.Hsu@3rdstone.ws" <Fred.Hsu@3rdstone.ws>,
"miko2005tw@gmail.com" <miko2005tw@gmail.com>,
"gauravbhasin@yahoo.com" <gauravbhasin@yahoo.com>,
"hanshc@gmail.com" <hanshc@gmail.com>,
"jjsternl4@gmail.com" <jjstern14@gmail.com>,
"Jacquelinefurrier@gmail.com"
<Jacquelinefurrier@gmail.com>, "Jamison.fox@gmail.com"
<Jamison.fox@gmail.com>, "jasonpkriese@gmail.com"
<jasonpkriese@gmail.com>, "jasonmok@gmail.com"
<jasonmok@gmail.com>, "jpcolacol @gmail.com"
<jpcolacol @gmail.com>, "jefferyhungsf@gmail.com"
<jefferyvhungsf@gmail.com>, "jslee7765@gmail.com"
<jslee7765@gmail.com>, "jwheywood@gmail.com"
<jwheywood@gmail.com>, "jsmith@test.com"
<jsmith@test.com>, "jambajoyce@gmail.com"
<jambajoyce@gmail.com>, "justchar@outlook.com"
<justchar@outlook.com>, "kalynyang@gmail.com"
<kalynyan mail.com>, "KHSUQ720@gmail.com"
<KHSUQ720@gmail.com>, "k8battles@gmail.com"
<k8battles@gmail.com>, "kevans@gmail.com"
<kevans@gmail.com>, "kkoning5514@gmail.com"
<kkoning5514@gmail.com>, "shehkay@gmail.com"
<shehka mail.com>, "kihopkins@gmail.com"
<kihopkins@gmail.com>, "KRISTYWEN@gmail.com"
<KRISTYWEN@gmail.com>, "kunalakumar@gmail.com"
<kunalakumar@gmail.com>, "laura.nelson.ca@gmail.com"
<laura.nelson.ca@gmail.com>, "lauren@edgertons.com"
<lauren@edgertons.com>, "larrykern300@gmail.com"
<larrykern300@gmail.com>, "leoylee@gmail.com"
<leoylee@gmail.com>, "llazar@google.com"
<llazar@google.com>, "lianayingsu@hotmail.com"
<lianayingsu@hotmail.com>, "sirong.liang@gmail.com"
<sirong.lian mail.com>, "manonpaquet@live.fr"
<manonpaquet@live.fr>, "maria_chiossi@hotmail.com"
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<maria_chiossi@hotmail.com>,
"markgrossman@gmail.com" <markgrossman@gmail.com>,
"matthew.fong@gmail.com" <matthew.fon mail.com>,
"joykao2000@icloud.com" <jovkao2000@icloud.com>,
Michele Herzberg-Moran <michele.300iv mail.com>,
"hillpropmanager@sbcglobal.net"
<hillpropmanager@sbcglobal.net>,
"mehrdad.mobasher@gmail.com"
<mehrdad.mobasher@gmail.com>,
"alfaro.nancy@gmail.com" <alfaro.nanc mail.com>,
"natalie.choy@gmail.com" <natalie.cho mail.com>,
"300ivy305@gmail.com" <300ivy305@gmail.com>, Nicki
Wang <nickiwan mail.com>, "numazer@hotmail.com"
<numazer@hotmail.com>, "Oliviavort@gmail.com"
<Qliviavort@gmail.com>, "radhika513@gmail.com"
<radhika513@gmail.com>, "radhikac1210@gmail.com"
<radhikac1210@gmail.com>, "nihalani.rahul@gmail.com"
<nihalani.rahul@gmail.com>, "dygandcompan mail.com'
<dygandcompany@gmail.com>,
"renee@hrhrealestate.com" <renee@hrhrealestate.com>,
"rhkreger@gmail.com" <rhkreger@gmail.com>, Sabrina
Mekhalfa <smekhalfa@hotmail.com>,
"scotter1030@gmail.com" <scotter1030@gmail.com>,
"SHERMEEN.PAVRI@gmail.com"
<SHERMEEN.PAVRI@gmail.com>, "hhw7878@yahoo.com"
<hhw7878@yahoo.com>, "shyla.batliwalla@gmail.com"
<shvla.batliwalla@gmail.com>, "souhil.zaim@yahoo.com"
<souhil.zaim@yahoo.com>, "spencer.uttley@gmail.com"
<spencer.uttle mail.com>, "brenns10@gmail.com"
<brenns10@gmail.com>, "stcady054@gmail.com"
<stcady054@gmail.com>, "steven.sheh@gmail.com"
<steven.sheh@gmail.com>, "SGLutzker@gmail.com"
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<taylormarcus@gmail.com>, "terichappell@yahoo.com"
<terichappell@yahoo.com>, "sfchef12 @gmail.com"
<sfchef12 @gmail.com>, "tony.h.liu@gmail.com"
<tony.h.liu@gmail.com>, "mina.dresden@gmail.com"
<mina.dresden@gmail.com>, "tracyc863@gmail.com"
<tracyc863@gmail.com>, "UshaTumkur@yahoo.com"
<UshaTumkur@yahoo.com>, "tzippi_zach@yahoo.com"
<tzippi_zach@yahoo.com>, "umal05@gmail.com"
<umal05@gmail.com>, "vellner@mac.com"
<vellner@mac.com>, "vmalhi@gmail.com"
<vmalhi@gmail.com>, "vinodhini.lakshman@ucsf.edu"
<vinodhini.lakshman@ucsf.edu>,
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"vvomesh.joshi@gmail.com" <vyomesh.joshi@gmail.com>,
Natalie Valdez-Smith <natalie.valdez-
smith@fsresidential.com>, "gracezwhol@gmail.com"
<gracezwhol@gmail.com>, "wccheng@gmail.com"
<wcchen mail.com>, "william.e.russell.jr@gmail.com"
<william.e.russell.jr@gmail.com>,
"whstuart@googlemail.com" <whstuart@googlemail.com>,
"rosalin49 @gmail.com" <rosalin49@gmail.com>, Yuni Lee
<missyunilee@gmail.com>, "ethankan@yahoo.com"

<ethankan@yahoo.com>
Subject: Re: IMPORTANT - Fig and Thistle project

John Maran's comments pointed out the reality of our
current situation. The bar often has loud drunk people
outside our gate, and very often they are yelling late into the
night.

As part of current California laws, a cannabis shop must
follow strict rules and planning when it comes to security.
Most often this involves having a security guard during
operating hours -- the current bar doesn't even check IDs at
the door. A small business with proper security, like the
proposed cannabis shop, is more likely to bring peace to our
area rather than attract crime.

Homelessness and public drug abuse is not related to legal
cannabis shops. In many parts of SOMA, in a sea of open
drug use, the safest blocks are around heavily guarded legal
cannabis shops -- zero camps around their entrances.

| still enjoy the current bar despite its problems, but we
should consider the proposed changes. It could potentially
be an improvement to our neighborhood.

On Wed, Jan 15, 2020 at 5:26 PM John Moran
<JMoran@parksconservancy.org> wrote:

The changes being proposed for Fig and Thistle are
alarming to some neighbors, and | second the suggestion
to speak directly with the business owners for more
information.

Meanwhile, consider that Fig and Thistle currently sells
alcohol for consumption on site. | have often witnessed
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customers of Fig & Thistle leave that business visibly
under the influence of alcohol, loud and unsteady on their
feet. | personally intervened when a drunken wine-bar
customer decided to urinate into the planter in front of
300 lvy. The changes being proposed for Fig and Thistle
may be an improvement for Ivy residents. The license the
owners are applying for does not allow consumption of
drugs onsite. If they are allowed to sell cannabis instead of
alcohol, but not permitted to allow their customers to
smoke or vape cannabis on their premises, then we are
less likely to see people under the influence on Ivy.

The argument about homeless people and others using
street-drugs like speed, cocaine, heroin, fentanyl etc. is an
entirely different and unconnected issue to Fig and
Thistle; no matter which legal drug they are permitted to
sell.

From: Claire Jackson <clairekjackson@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, January 15, 2020 1:46 PM

To: Sabrina 300IVY <sabrina.300iv mail.com>

Cc: atidman@mac.com; aditi.joshi34@gmail.com;
al_laxman@yahoo.com; alags10@hotmail.com;
alankarchang@gmail.com; alexandraliss@gmail.com;
alinashah@gmail.com; amanda.cifarelli@gmail.com;
Andrew Pearlman <pearlman.andrew@gmail.com>;
achiu7@gmail.com; ann.lutzker@gmail.com;
anna.kolontyrsky@gmail.com; aplutino@yahoo.com;
ariel_zach@vyahoo.com; alehr1723@gmail.com;
atishay.jain83@gmail.com;
Audreycervantez15@gmail.com;
avnish.sabharwal@gmail.com; benchoy@gmail.com;
blake.m.osborn@gmail.com; laiboon@gmail.com;
brennan.spellacy@sonder.com; bty200@gmail.com;
Cairokim@gmail.com; cathy.edwards@gmail.com;
cbretzin@gmail.com; cxie08@gmail.com;
chikodi@moonshotpr.com; ckwan@chokwancpa.com;
ctstraub@gmail.com; crbarryl7@gmail.com;
rilely@icloud.com; ctunno@gmail.com;
yadathi@gmail.com; cyinglee44@gmail.com;
cristin.morneau@gmail.com;
danoosh.kapadia@gmail.com;
david@ellnerconsulting.com; davelu@gmail.com;
davidsha@gmail.com; dennischang@alumni.stanford.edu;
eleanorlee@gmail.com; erin.pettigrew@gmail.com;
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Fred.Hsu@3rdstone.ws; miko2005tw@gmail.com;
gauravbhasin@yahoo.com; hanshc@gmail.com;
jisternl4@gmail.com; Jacquelinefurrier@gmail.com;
Jamison.fox@gmail.com; jasonpkriese@gmail.com;
jasonmok@gmail.com; jpcolacol@gmail.com;
jefferyvhungsf@gmail.com; jslee7765@gmail.com;
jwheywood@gmail.com; John Moran
<JMoran@ParksConservancy.org>; jsmith@test.com;
jambajoyce@gmail.com; justchar@outlook.com;
kalynyang@gmail.com; KHSUQ720@gmail.com;
k8battles@gmail.com; kevans@gmail.com;
kkoning5514@gmail.com; shehkay@gmail.com;
kihopkins@gmail.com; KRISTYWEN@gmail.com;
kunalakumar@gmail.com; Jaura.nelson.ca@gmail.com;
lauren@edgertons.com; larrykern300@gmail.com;
leoylee@gmail.com; llazar@google.com;
lianayingsu@hotmail.com; sirong.liang@gmail.com;
manonpaquet@live.fr; maria_chiossi@hotmail.com;
markgrossman@gmail.com; matthew.fong@gmail.com;
jovkao2000@icloud.com; Michele Herzberg-Moran
<michele.300ivy@gmail.com>;
hillpropmanager@sbcglobal.net;
mehrdad.mobasher@gmail.com;
alfaro.nancy@gmail.com; natalie.choy@gmail.com;
300ivy305@gmail.com; Nicki Wang
<nickiwang@gmail.com>; numazer@hotmail.com;
Oliviavort@gmail.com; radhika513@gmail.com;
radhikac1210@gmail.com; nihalani.rahul@gmail.com;
dygandcompany@gmail.com; renee@hrhrealestate.com;
rhkreger@gmail.com; Sabrina Mekhalfa
<smekhalfa@hotmail.com>; scotter1030@gmail.com;
SHERMEEN.PAVRI@gmail.com; hhw7878@yahoo.com;
shyla.batliwalla@gmail.com; souhil.zaim@yahoo.com;
spencer.uttley@gmail.com; brenns10@gmail.com;
stcady054@gmail.com; steven.sheh@gmail.com;
SGLutzker@gmail.com; taylormarcus@gmail.com;
terichappell@yahoo.com; sfchefl2 @gmail.com;
tony.h.liu@gmail.com; mina.dresden@gmail.com;
tracyc863 @gmail.com; UshaTumkur@yahoo.com;
tzippi_zach@yahoo.com; umal05@gmail.com;
vellner@mac.com; vmalhi@gmail.com;
vinodhini.lakshman@ucsf.edu;
vyomesh.joshi@gmail.com; Natalie Valdez-Smith
<natalie.valdez-smith@fsresidential.com>;
gracezwhol@gmail.com; wccheng@gmail.com;
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william.e.russell.jr@gmail.com;
whstuart@googlemail.com; rosalin4d9@gmail.com; Yuni

Lee <missyunilee@gmail.com>; ethankan@yahoo.com
Subject: Re: IMPORTANT - Fig and Thistle project

| encourage anyone who is interested to speak with the
business owners themselves about concerns, comments
or support to attend the community meeting being
hosted by Fig & Thistle this Saturday.

See invitation attached.

Community Meeting

Invitation

Come learn more about Fig &
Thistle’s newest project

Fig & Thistle Apothecary

Hi neighbaors! Fig & Thistle Wine bar will be
mioving and we have teamed up with our long
tirme friend and fellow neighbor Mike Hall, wiho
ruris the youth tennis prograrm at Ella Hill
Hutch Community Center to apen up a
cannabis dispensary at 313 lvy Street, Please
feel free to stop by anytime between
12:30-3:30 on January 18th to share your
thoughts/concarns, ask questions, request
future products, etc at 313 hvy Street. Please
email angel at angel@figandthistlesf.oom to

get added to the mailing list to be updated on
the latest news.

Saturday /Y January 18th /& 12:30-3:30pm /f
313 hey Street

On Tue, Jan 14, 2020 at 10:41 PM Sabrina 300IVY
<sabrina.300ivy@gmail.com> wrote:

LETTER TO OPPOSE THE OPENING OF A
CANNABIS DISPENSARY IN FRONT OF OUR
BUILDING - ON IVY STREET

Dear Neighbors,

We are writing this letter to express our concern
and to oppose the planned opening of a cannabis
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dispensary at the current location of the bar, Fig
and Thistle on lvy Street, in front of our building.

As parents of two teenagers living opposite to the
planned store at 300 Ivy St., | am concerned about
the apparent availability of cannabis that this store
would contribute to lvy street. | am sure that many
of you are also parents of Young children, and you
probably don't want such an environnent for your
kids.

In addition, our street is currently struggling with
an influx of regular homeless encampments and
the associated open drug use and human waste.
We regularly call the police patrol to help with
these problems during the day and at night. We
are concerned that an influx of customers of the
planned dispensary could lead to more use of
drugs legal and illegal on Ivy street.

Our narrow one-way street is also subject to
regular congestion, sidewalk parking and illegal
parking on the 300 lvy passenger loading zone. An
increase in customers who stop to make a
purchase will certainly increase car traffic and
parking violations.

Finally, the location, though it is more that 600 feet
from a school, is actually within the perimeter of a
large school and after-school community of
French-American international school on Oak/
Hickory St. and the Boys and Girls Club on Fulton
St. both at 1.5 or two blocks away.

We would like to ask that the consequences of
opening a cannabis dispensary on open drug use,
the potential of increased car and human traffic
and the proximity with youth facilities be taken into
consideration in granting an authorization....

| am planning to go to the hearing at City Hall is on
January 23rd (you all probably have received the
letter), and, if several of you agree, please join me
there to oppose the opening of a

cannabis dispensary in front of our

building entrante.

Best regards

Sabrina and Souhil






From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

To: Giacomucci, Monica (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: 2 Henry Adams Street - Planning Case No.: 2013.1593PRJ -January 30, 2020 Planning Commission Calendar
Date: Friday, January 17, 2020 1:20:24 PM

Attachments: Untitled].pdf

2 Henry Adams - Ltr. Brief to Planning Commission (2019.11.21).pdf

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

From: Kimberly Smith <klsbox@mac.com>

Sent: Friday, January 17, 2020 12:57 PM

To: Melgar, Myrna (CPC) <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; joel.koppel@sfgov; Johnson, Milicent (CPC)
<milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Richards, Dennis
(CPC) <dennis.richards@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank
(CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>

Subject: 2 Henry Adams Street - Planning Case No.: 2013.1593PRJ -January 30, 2020 Planning
Commission Calendar

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from
untrusted sources.
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January 13, 2020

MEMO TO: San Francisco Planning Commission
FROM: Martha Thompson, President, San Francisco Design Center
Re: 2 Henry Adams — Small Cap Allocation

Planning Commission Hearing Scheduled January 30, 2020
Dear Commissioners:

We represent the property owners of 2 Henry Adams, a City landmark building that is seeking an allocation of
49,999 square feet of office space.

The property currently has active Showroom space on the 1%, 2" and 3" floors of the building. There have been
no displacement or relocations as a result of this request for office allocation.

1)No showrooms are at risk of relocation: Prior to signing a lease with a PDR tenant for the 4th and 5th floors,
there were no showrooms occupying either floor. Moreover, with the landmarking designation, we have secured
occupancy for the showroom and PDR industry that guarantees the first three floors in the building never change
to a different use.

2) Small cap allocation will have no meaningful impact on showroom tenancy on the 4th / 5th floors: Ownership
has already signed a 10-year lease with a tenant that qualifies for both PDR and Office. Hence, the small cap
allocation will have no meaningful impact on showroom tenants as the tenant occupying the 4th and 5th floors will
be unchanged.

3) Small cap allocation allows ownership the financial resources to significantly improve 2 Henry Adams: The small
cap allocation allows us to restore the building (ie. Historic preservation and upgrades to the building, improve
hardscaping/landscaping, redo the lobby, create a park). The updates will help drive long-term traffic to the design
center and secure the viability of the showroom industry in San Francisco.

Please give me a call at 415-490-5830 if you have any questions.

Attached please find the letter submitted to the Planning Department regarding 2 Henry Adams’ request for office
allocation.

Sincerely

ot m\pgob
Martha Thompson '

President
San Francisco Design Center

Cc:

President, Myrna Melgar

Vice President, Joel Koppel
Commissioner Frank Fung
Commissioner Millicent A. Johnson
Commissioner Kathrin Moore
Commissioner Dennis Richards
Commissioner Sue Diamond
Commission Secretary, Jonas P. lonin
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REUBEN, JUNIUS & ROSE. ..~

John Kevlin
jkevlin@reubenlaw.com

November 21, 2019

Delivered Via Hand Delivery & E-Mail

President Myrna Melgar

San Francisco Planning Commission
c/o Monica Giacomucci

San Francisco Planning Division
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400

San Francisco, CA 94103
Monica.Giacomucci@sfgov.org

Re: 2 Henry Adams Street
Planning Case No.: 2013.1593PRJ
Hearing Date: December 5, 2019
Our File No.: 10909.01

Dear President Melgar and Commissioners:

This office represents RREEF America REIT II Corp. YYYY (“Project Sponsor”) owner
of the property at 2 Henry Adams Street (the “Property”). The Property is improved with a historic
5-story brick and timber building built in 1915, known as the Dunham, Carrigan & Hayden
Building, Landmark Building No. 283. Project Sponsor proposes significant renovation and life-
safety upgrades to the Landmark Building, creation of a new outdoor pedestrian plaza with kiosk
on the north side of the Landmark Building, and conversion on the fourth and fifth floors of a
cumulative total of 49,999 square feet of production, distribution, and repair (“PDR”’) showroom
to office use (the “Project”).!

The Project requires a Conditional Use Authorization and Office Allocation for the change
of use from PDR showroom to office use in a Landmark Building.

We look forward to presenting the Project to the Commission on December 5.

! The initial Office Allocation Supplemental Application sought conversion on the fifth floor of 49,364 square feet of
PDR showroom to office use. Since the filing of the Office Allocation Supplemental Application, the Project Sponsor
has identified a tenant for the prospective office space. That tenant has been working through their permit process this
fall. As aresult, the Project Sponsor has determined it would like to increase the requested conversion to 49,999 square

feet of office use allocated on the fourth and fifth floors.
San Francisco Office Oakland Office
One Bush Street, Suite 600, San Francisco, CA 94104 827 Broadway, 2" Floor, Oakland, CA 94607

tel: 415-567-9000 | fax: 415-399-9480 tel: 510-527-5589 www.reubenlaw.com





President Melgar and Commissioners
Planning Commission

November 21, 2019

Page 2 of 4

A. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Currently, all five floors of the Landmark Building are designated as PDR showroom use.
The Project would allow mixed-use, i.e., PDR and office uses, on the fourth and fifth floors with
the first three floors remaining PDR use. The office allocation on the fourth and fifth floors,
pursuant to Planning Code Section 210.3B, would allow the flexibility needed to ensure long-term
preservation of the Landmark Building. A single tenant is proposing to use both the fourth and
fifth floors including the PDR space as laboratory, which is principally permitted, and the
prospective office space. Project Plans are attached as Exhibit A.

The Project proposes a renovation to the Landmark Building, making it safer and more
useful to future tenants. The Project calls for life-safety upgrades and renovations to the exterior
and interior core, and shell remodel. A Historic Structures Report has been prepared by a licensed
historic architect who meets the Secretary of Interior’s Professional Qualification Standards. And
a qualified architectural preservationist will be overseeing the implementation of the renovations.
On November 20, 2019, the Historic Preservation Commission determined the Project meets the
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties, including the
Guidelines for Rehabilitation. The proposed renovation includes:

e Historic Fagade Renovation. Cosmetic and weather proofing repair of the Landmark
Building, including repointing of bricks, new coping, and flashings.

e Re-Roofing. The entire building requires a new roof.

e Bulkhead Conservation. Repairing and/or replacing several bulkheads on the building,
needing restoration.

e Window Replacement. Replacement of the storefront with new windows to replicate that
of the historic window materials and profiles.

e FElevator Upgrades. The two existing passenger elevators will be modernized to increase
speed and efficiency; the freight elevator will undergo full modernization.

Though the building has been maintained, it needs upgrading. These upgrades will result
in real, significant improvements to the integrity of the Landmark Building and will provide greater
protection of this historic resource. The cost of implementing these upgrades is extensive, and
such work would not be feasible without the additional renovations and change of use proposed.

B. COMMUNITY BENEFITS

In addition to upgrading the Property, the Project would provide a range of public benefits
to the community, including:

REUBEN, JUNlUS & ROSE LLP www.reubenlaw.com
Users/kimberlysmith/Library/Containers/com.apple.mail/Data/Library/Mail Downloads/34732573-5BA0-4AD3-90B7-846A8099CBCA/2 Henry Adams - Ltr. Brief
to Planning Commission (2019.11.21).docxy

Deleted
"| Adams - 1
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President Melgar and Commissioners
Planning Commission
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Page 3 of 4

e Public Open Space. Creating approximately 4,878 square feet of attractively landscaped,
publicly-accessible open space in the form of an outdoor pedestrian plaza on the north side
of the Landmark Building with a new retail kiosk.

e Neighborhood Serving Retail. The new kiosk in the outdoor plaza is intended to host a
future quick-service coffee and snack vendor that will serve local residents and visitors.

e Ground Floor Restaurant. Base building accommodations for a future ground floor
restaurant adjacent to north entrance lobby, includes MEP stub-outs and kitchen shell space
for future restaurant use that will serve local residents.

e Substantial Streetscape Improvements. Providing numerous streetscape improvements
over approximately 1,051 linear feet along the entire block bounded by Henry Adams,
Division, Vermont, and Alameda Streets, and planting new street trees. Proposed
streetscape improvements would create a more welcoming and safer environment for local
residents.

e Improves Neighborhood Safety. New exterior site and security lighting and architectural
building facade lighting included in the Project will activate the sidewalks during the
nighttime hours and generally increase the safety of the neighborhood.

e Bolster Social Services. The Project will contribute funding for child care, public transit,
and affordable housing through various applicable impact fees, including the Child Care
Fee, Transit Impact Development Fee, and the Jobs-Housing Linkage Fee.

C. REQUIRED ENTITLEMENTS: CHANGE OF USE AND OFFICE ALLOCATION

The Project requires Commission approval of (1) a Conditional Use Authorization for
office use in a Landmark Building pursuant to Planning Code Sections 210.3B and 303; and (2)
Office Allocation for 49,999 square feet pursuant to Planning Code Section 321.

The Project’s change of use of 49,999 square feet of PDR showroom to office use, and
corresponding office allocation, is necessary to conduct the much-needed rehabilitation and life-
safety upgrades outlined above. Other than a seismic upgrade in 2000, no major upgrade of the
Landmark Building has been conducted in recent memory.

The renovation would be financed by the tenancies allowed under more flexible zoning
controls. The proposed office use would be compatible with the PDR showroom uses on the lower
floors. Office use does not generate excessive noise, heat, or other forms of pollution/disturbances
like industrial uses do, which are principally permitted at the Property. No existing PDR showroom
tenants will be displaced due to the Project as the space proposed to be converted is vacant and
became so as a result of natural attrition and the expiration of existing leases.

REUBEN, JUNlUS & ROSE LLP www.reubenlaw.com
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President Melgar and Commissioners
Planning Commission
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D. CONCLUSION

The Project has been thoughtfully designed to ensure compatibility with the historic
Landmark Building, and will provide numerous public benefits. The Project significantly improves
the Landmark Building by renovating the exterior fagade while modernizing its operation to ensure
its use and maintenance in the future. For these reasons and those listed in the applications, we
urge you to approve the requested Conditional Use and Office Allocation applications.

Thank you for your consideration.

Very truly yours,

REUBEN, JUNIUS & ROSE, LLP
John Kevlin

Enclosures:
Exhibit A — Project Plans

cc: Vice President Joel Koppel
Commissioner Frank S. Fung
Commissioner Milicent A. Johnson
Commissioner Kathrin Moore
Commissioner Dennis Richards
Jonas P. Ionin, Commission Secretary
Sean Murphy, Client (via e-mail only sean@pacificdevelopment.com)

Deleted
"| Adams - 1
(2019.11.
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

Subject: FW: SF Heritage comments re Power Station Project - Final Project Documents

Date: Friday, January 17, 2020 1:20:00 PM

Attachments: SF Heritage comments re Power Station Project - Final Project Documents ....pdf

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

From: Francis, John (ECN) <john.francis@sfgov.org>

Sent: Friday, January 17, 2020 1:04 PM

To: lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>

Subject: RE: SF Heritage comments re Power Station Project - Final Project Documents

Attached here.

John M. Francis

Senior Planner & Urban Designer
Citywide Planning Division

San Francisco Planning Department
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400

San Francisco, CA 94103

Direct: 415.575.9147

sfplanning.org

From: lonin, Jonas (CPC)

Sent: Friday, January 17, 2020 12:28 PM

To: Francis, John (ECN) <john.francis@sfgov.org>

Subject: RE: SF Heritage comments re Power Station Project - Final Project Documents

| don't see an attachment.

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
mailto:john.francis@sfgov.org
mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/

E w BIEIRITAGIE, - wwesheritageory | 3 izancisco, ca ssios | & NS 3000

January 16, 2020

Myrna Melgar, President

San Francisco Planning Commission

Attn: John Francis, Senior Planner and Urban Designer
San Francisco Planning Department

1650 Mission Street, Suite 400

San Francisco, CA 94103

Email: johnfrancis@sfgov.org

RE: Potrero Power Station Mixed-Use Development Project: Final EIR,
Development Agreement, Design for Development Guidelines

Dear President Melgar and Members of the Commission:

On behalf of San Francisco Heritage, thank you for the opportunity to further comment on the
Potrero Power Station Mixed-Used Development Project. Over the past two years, Heritage's
staff and board have been deeply engaged in reviewing the proposed project, including a
productive dialogue with the project sponsor, community stakeholders, and the city on how to
address historic preservation issues. Heritage appreciates the sponsor’s creativity and
collaboration in addressing many of our priority concerns in the final development plan. We
are especially pleased that both the Boiler Stack and Station A will be preserved as
prominent landmarks in the Power Station project, with additional policies and incentives in
the Design for Development Guidelines (D4D) and Development Agreement encouraging
reuse and interpretation of Unit 3, the Gate House, and other historic features.

Although major progress has been made since publication of the Draft EIR, Heritage requests
additional revisions to the project documents to assure appropriate treatment and protection
of the few historic resources that will remain at the Power Station site.

A.  The city should require permanent or temporary stabilization of Station A
within a specific time period

The awesome size, scale, and evolution of Station A—including several accretions and
subtractions over time—best tell the messy, layered industrial history of Potrero Point.
Heritage has long championed its preservation as a centerpiece of the Power Station
development. The partial ruins of Station A make it a uniquely challenging and inspiring
candidate for creative reuse. At the request of Heritage and the local community, the project
sponsor hosted a public design charrette in June 2019 to present possible design concepts
for Station A, ultimately leading to the sponsor’s current commitment to preserve and expand
the former Turbine Hall.





Given the extraordinary vulnerability and significance of Station A, Heritage supports
extraordinary regulatory and financial incentives (i.e. Prop M allocation, Mills Act) to spur
permanent construction and seismic strengthening at the earliest opportunity. We
understand that the sponsor intends to seek a Prop M office space allocation for Station A for
the early phases of development. In addition, the Development Agreement includes special
exemptions to enable Station A to qualify for Mills Act property tax relief.

Recognizing that the construction timeline is far from assured, there must be a backstop in
place to ensure that Station A is stabilized within a discreet timeframe. To safeguard against
protracted languishment, Heritage urges the city to mandate mothballing and temporary
shoring of Station A if permanent construction does not proceed within the first two phases of
development. The purpose and extent of stabilization measures should be based in part on
National Park Service guidelines for mothballing historic buildings as well as the pre-
construction survey for the Station A vibration monitoring program.

There is an analogous precedent for this approach within the Pier 70 Historic Core. In 2011,
the Port Commission authorized a contract for temporary shoring of the Union Iron Works
Machine Shop (Building 113/114) to “reduce the risk of potential failure of the masonry walls
and collapse...while the Port seeks a development partner to undertake the necessary
building rehabilitation.” Similar in size to Station A, the 1886 Machine Shop building was
heavily dilapidated and had been red tagged for many years. Ultimately, however, temporary
shoring measures were not implemented because Orton Development and the Port initiated
permanent seismic strengthening during the first phase of construction. This award-winning
adaptive reuse project reopened as office and light-industrial space in 2018.

B. Mills Act property tax abatement should be made contingent on City Landmark
designation of Station A and/or Unit 3

Section 7.5 of the Development Agreement stipulates that the project sponsor and the city
will “use good faith efforts to pursue the approval of a Mills Act contract” for Station A and
Unit 3, which would significantly reduce annual property taxes over the contact term. The city
has agreed to waive the $5 million cap on property valuation for Mills Act eligibility, as well as
the maximum amount of tax revenue loss that may result from a Mills Act contract, “so long
as the term of any such Mills Act contract does not exceed twenty (20) years.”

Given the urgency and complexity of these preservation projects, Heritage supports a time-
limited exemption from the Mills Act cap for Station A and Unit 3, on the express condition
that both properties will be designated as City Landmarks and subject to final design

1 See “Preservation Brief 31: Mothballing Historic Buildings” (National Park Service) and Section
14.28 of the Development Agreement. Some mothballing measures in Preservation Brief 31 would not
apply to Station A (e.g. making the roof watertight, providing adequate ventilation to the interior, etc.).





approval by the Historic Preservation Commission (HPC).2 The city’s Mills Act ordinance
requires the HPC to certify that all work complies with the Secretary of the Interior’s
Standards for Treatment of Historic Properties.2 To this end, the Development Agreement
should be amended to clarify that the project sponsor will nominate Station A and/or Unit 3
for City Landmark designation if and when they apply for any Mills Act contract/s.

At Heritage’s request, the D4D includes a new appendix listing all character-defining features
for Station A, Unit 3, and other historic resources on the project site.* HPC review of plans for
Station A and Unit 3 will be essential to ensure the compatibility of proposed additions and
preservation of character-defining features. Station A, in particular, presents novel and
difficult questions regarding how the Secretary’s Standards should be applied to a partial
ruin. Because Mills Act properties are justifiably subject to heightened scrutiny, the minimum
preservation requirements for Station A in the D4D will likely be insufficient to qualify for a
Mills Act contract. Heritage is committed to continuing to work with the project sponsor and
the city to achieve the appropriate balance between preservation, adaptive reuse, and
expansion of both Station A and Unit 3.

C. The potential “Above-grade pedestrian connection” between Station A and Block
11 should be subject to a public design review process

“To facilitate preservation of Station A,” Section 6.14.7 of the D4D authorizes the Planning
Director to unilaterally approve an “above-grade pedestrian connection between Station A
and Block 11.” This outsized appendage to Station A would be up to 85 feet wide, 30 feet tall
(two stories), and 60 feet long, providing an additional 10,000 square feet of programmable
space that will cast a shadow on Power Station Park below.5 Heritage believes that this so-
called “pedestrian connection” is highly incompatible with the sponsor’s desire to reimagine
Station A as an elegant melding of old and new. (Alas, there are no renderings of the
“pedestrian connection” in the D4D; nor was it included among concepts presented at the
public design charrette.) Heritage urges the Planning Commission to eliminate the
“pedestrian connection” altogether or, at minimum, retain final approval authority over the
design. As explained above, HPC approval would also be required if the sponsor seeks a Mills
Act contract for Station A.6

2 Under the local Mills Act ordinance, a “qualified historical property...has submitted a complete
application for... or has been listed or designated” as a City Landmark or in the National Register of
Historic Places or California Register of Historical Resources. (Admin. Code, Sec. 71.2.)

3 “A historical property contract shall contain,” inter alia, “[t]he owner's commitment and obligation to
preserve, rehabilitate, restore and maintain the property in accordance with...the Secretary of the
Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties.” (Admin. Code, Sec. 71.5.)

4 Appendix F: Historic Resource Evaluation, Part 2 Excerpt (Character-Defining Features).

5 As currently written, the D4D would allow the pedestrian connection to penetrate Station A’s historic
east facade.

6 In 2015, the HPC unanimously approved the 35-foot-long “Twitter skybridge” between the rear, non-
historic elevation of 1355 Market and the ninth floor of One 10th Street to the south.
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Thank you, again, for the opportunity to comment on the Potrero Power Station Mixed-Used
Development Project. Should you have questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to
contact me directly at mbuhler@sfheritage.org or 415/441-3000 x15.

Sincerely,

7
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Mike Buhler
President & CEO

cc: San Francisco Planning Commission
San Francisco Historic Preservation Commission
Enriqgue Landa, Associate Capital
Jon Lau, OEWD






From: Francis, John (ECN) <john.francis@sfgov.org>

Sent: Friday, January 17, 2020 10:30 AM

To: Mike Buhler <Mbuhler@sfheritage.org>

Cc: Lau, Jon (ECN) <jon.lau@sfgov.org>; Enrique Landa <e5@associatecapital.com>; lonin, Jonas
(CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; Woody LaBounty <wlabounty@sfheritage.org>; Alison Heath
<alisonlheath@gmail.com>; Switzky, Joshua (CPC) <joshua.switzky@sfgov.org>; Compliance, PPS
(ECN) <pps_compliance.ecn@sfgov.org>

Subject: RE: SF Heritage comments re Power Station Project - Final Project Documents

Hi Mike,

Confirming receipt of the SF Heritage letter (and subsequently updated drafts). Unfortunately the
Planning Commission Secretary’s Office has a hard noontime Thursday deadline for submitting fully
printed packets for transmittal to the Planning Commissioners, which means that all attachments
have to be appropriately cited in the submittal documents and printed earlier on Thursday morning.
As such, we were not able to include the SF Heritage comment letter with the packet, which we
received it after noon; however, we will forward it via email to all of the Commissioners directly.
Additionally we will mention it in our presentation to the Commission on 1/30 and, if you’d like, can
also submit it with next week’s Commission packet so the Commissioners have a hard copy before
the 1/30 hearing. Let me know if you have any questions.

Best,
John

John M. Francis

Senior Planner & Urban Designer
Citywide Planning Division

San Francisco Planning Department
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400

San Francisco, CA 94103

Direct: 415.575.9147

sfplanning.org

From: Mike Buhler [mailto:MBuhler@sfheritage.org]
Sent: Thursday, January 16, 2020 12:05 PM

To: Francis, John (ECN) <john.francis@sfgov.org>

Cc: Lau, Jon (ECN) <jon.lau@sfgov.org>; Enrique Landa <e5@associatecapital.com>; lonin, Jonas
(CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; Woody LaBounty <wlabounty@sfheritage.org>; Alison Heath
<alisonlheath@gmail.com>

Subject: SF Heritage comments re Power Station Project - Final Project Documents

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Good afternoon, John. Attached please find Heritage’s comments on the final project

documents for the Potrero Power Station Mixed-Use Development Project. Please include
th
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them in the packet for the upcoming Planning Commission hearing on January 30 .

Please don’t hesitate to contact me at 415/441-3000 x15 should you have any
guestions.

Thank you,
Mike
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Mike Buhler
President & CEO

SAN FRANCISCO HERITAGE
HAAS-LILIENTHAL HOUSE
2007 FRANKLIN STREET
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94109
W: 415.441.3000 x15

M: 510.282.1290

www.sfheritage.org
mbuhler@sftheritage.org

Dick Bright
Orchestra
Cocktails
Dinner

Live
and
Silent Auction

| sfheritage.org/soiree
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

Subject: FW: 617 Sanchez DR - request for inclusion in staff report

Date: Friday, January 17, 2020 1:19:35 PM

Attachments: 617 Sanchez St DR Jan 16.doc

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

Sent: Friday, January 17, 2020 1:10 PM

To: lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY
<CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org>

Subject: FW: 617 Sanchez DR - request for inclusion in staff report

Ms. Hestor,
Unfortunately, the deadline for material to be included in the published packets was last Thursday. |
will forward this to the Commission Secretary to distribute to the commissioners.

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

Sent: Thursday, January 16, 2020 12:17 PM

To: Winslow, David (CPC) <david.winslow @sfgov.org>

Cc: Ajello Hoagland, Linda (CPC) <linda.ajellohoagland@sfgov.org>; Benafsha Irani
<birani@hotmail.com>; Arnie Lerner <arnie@lernerarch.com>; Sue Hestor <hestor@earthlink.net>

Subject: 617 Sanchez DR - request for inclusion in staff report

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.
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617 Sanchez Street - 1/23/19 Planning Commission


SUBMISSION by DR Requester Benafsha Irani

Since 1999 Benafsha Irani has owned the house at 619 Sanchez Street, immediately adjacent to 617 Sanchez Street.  That 2-story 619 Sanchez house was built in 1907 at the FRONT of its lot which slopes down to the rear/east.  

The existing 1 1/2 story house at 617 Sanchez Street was also built in 1907 at REAR of that lot which slopes downhill to east.  At front of 617 Sanchez lot is a one story carport.

Proposed 617 Sanchez project demolishes the existing 1000 sf house and carport structure and erects a 4-story 4,149 sf house at front and highest part of 617 Sanchez lot.  Immediately adjacent to modest 619 Sanchez house which has been at front of lot since 1907.

At the request of Ms Benafshi Mr. Winslow is including September 2018 Historical Resource Evaluation (HRE)  for 617 Sanchez Street in staff report.  The photos and Sanborn maps in the HRE provide important information on development history and setting of 617 Sanchez and its relation to surrounding properties on this extremely sloped hill.
  

In the midst of Christmas holidays developer sent email requesting meeting with Ms. Irani.
  On 1/3/20 I asked for full-size copies of needed plan sheets of project plans to prepare for meeting sponsor had requested.  We were finally get those copies on 1/7/20 so that  Ms Irani and her architectural adviser would be able to have a productive conversation with developer.

On 10/24 planner had suggested that developer's architect schedule a meeting with DR requester.  Even though developer delayed making that request until Christmas holidays - with family obligations for Ms. Irani - she remains willing to schedule a time to meet after 1/23 that works with the schedules of Mr. Winslow, developer's team, and Ms Irani's consultants.  


Sue Hestor

Attorney for Benafsha Irani


870 Market St #1128


hestor@earthlink.net


415 846 1021 


�  617 Sanchez HRE pages 4 and 6 show mid-lot outdoor kitchen structure. It was demolished immediately after issuance  of HRE.  The 10/16/18 Site Survey in 617 Sanchez project  plans also incorrectly includes  that structure.  DBI permit for demolition of structure shows structure had been completely removed by 10/23/18.







�  This is 2nd year in row that developer has scheduled/attempted meetings over Christmas holidays.  Notice of Pre-Application meeting was sent on 12/24/18 when Ms Irani was out of state with her family.  Pre-app meeting was held Saturday 1/5/19.  Permits were filed for proposed  617 Sanchez project on 1/7/19.  








Please include this one page letter from DR requester Benafsha Irani in staff report
for 617 Sanchez Street

Thank you.

Sue Hestor



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

To: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC); Weissglass, David (CPC)
Subject: FW: Letter Opposing Equinox Permit

Date: Friday, January 17, 2020 12:18:30 PM
Attachments: Oppose Equinox Spa Permit[19824].pdf

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

From: Carlos Bocanegra <cebocanegra@dons.usfca.edu>

Sent: Thursday, January 16, 2020 12:27 PM

To: Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Melgar, Myrna (CPC)
<myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC)
<frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Johnson, Milicent (CPC) <milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin
(CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Richards, Dennis (CPC) <dennis.richards@sfgov.org>; lonin, Jonas
(CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>

Cc: Guled Muse <gmuse3412@gmail.com>; Diana Flores <dflores@dscs.org>; Laura Valdez
<laura@dscs.org>

Subject: Fwd: Letter Opposing Equinox Permit

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Good Afternoon Commissioners,

Please find the attached letter from Dolores Street Community Services supporting United to Save
the Mission's position to deny the discretionary spa permit the company Equinox will be seeking
from you today. Please reach out should you have any questions. Thank you.

Best Regards.
Carlos Bocanegra
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January 16, 2020

President Myrna Melgar and Planning Commissioners
#1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 400
San Francisco, CA 94102

Re: Case No. 2019-001694CUA 1500 Mission Street

Dear President and Members of the Planning Commission:

We are writing on behalf of Dolores Street Community Services to express our support for
United to Save the Mission motion to denying the Equinox approval to add massage use at 1500
Mission St.

Equinox is a “luxury gym” seeking a permit in an area, which serves as the fulcrum and connection
point for the Mission, SOMA, and Tenderloin communities; multi-ethnic neighborhoods devastated by
gentrification and displacement. Vulnerable communities depend on businesses to be strong of spirit,
uplift their needs, and create opportunity for them to thrive. This proposed project and its additional
massage use approval will only further contribute to the continued hardships that residents face by
making their neighborhood less hospitable and more unwelcoming. After representatives the
surrounding communities spoke to the Equinox team, it has become clear that there is no meaningful
offer of health or other benefits to surrounding working-class neighborhood residents that would merit
the City of San Francisco granting a discretionary approval of a massage use at this location.

When asked about the potential to collaborate with local communities groups to assure working-class
individuals and families would have the opportunity for access to the gym, they declined to explore the
option. The Equinox team has offered no meaningful equitable ideas for how to be a good neighbor.

Deny Equinox” approval request and reinforce this Commission’s expectation that businesses such as
these collaborate with our local communities in a meaningful and sincere way. Thank you.

Sincerely,

Diana R. Flores

Director of Community Engagement and Organizing Programs
Dolores Street Community Services

938 Valencia Street, San Francisco, CA 94110

T: (415)282-6209 ext 154 | F: (415)282-2826






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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SPEAKER NANCY PELOSI LAUNCH SF COUNTS, SAN
FRANCISCO’S CENSUS 2020 CAMPAIGN

Date: Friday, January 17, 2020 12:08:38 PM

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

Sent: Friday, January 17, 2020 9:47 AM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SPEAKER NANCY PELOSI LAUNCH SF
COUNTS, SAN FRANCISCO’S CENSUS 2020 CAMPAIGN

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, January 17, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

##% PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SPEAKER NANCY PELOSI
LAUNCH SF COUNTS, SAN FRANCISCO’S CENSUS 2020
CAMPAIGN

Official 2020 Census Day is April 1. Starting in mid-March, San Franciscans will receive
communications from the Census Bureau and should respond promptly online, by mail, or by
phone.

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Speaker Nancy Pelosi today hosted an
event in City Hall to celebrate the launch of SF Counts, San Francisco’s Census 2020
Campaign. They were joined by Assessor-Recorder Carmen Chu, the Office of Civic
Engagement and Immigrant Affairs, and community organizations. Mayor Breed and Speaker

lst

Pelosi encouraged attendees to be prepared for the official Census Day on April 1°" and to

respond to the Census Bureau’s communications.

“It is critical that we have an accurate and complete count of everyone living in San Francisco
during the 2020 Census,” said Mayor Breed. “The Census impacts our economic and political
future and helps make sure we get our fair share of federal dollars, which helps us support our
community and provide everything from housing and health care, to senior centers, schools,
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and meal programs.”

“The Census is a pillar of our democracy, enshrined in our Constitution to ensure that all
people are equally counted and represented,” said Speaker Nancy Pelosi. “Ensuring a fair and
accurate count is essential to protecting vulnerable and traditionally undercounted
communities who are often marginalized and most in need. With the launch of SF Counts, we
are working to make sure that the 2020 Census captures the full beauty and diversity that
makes our city strong and vibrant, and guarantees that San Francisco receives the resources
and representation it deserves.”

“We know that our immigrant families, homeless population, and low income communities
are amongst the hardest to count,” said Assessor Carmen Chu. “Let’s make sure we’re not
short-changed. Remember, for every person we miss we lose $2,000 per year for the next ten
years!”

“The 2020 Census will have a significant impact on San Francisco’s budget for key priorities
and how San Francisco is represented in federal and state government,” said City
Administrator Naomi M. Kelly. “We’ve invested in nonprofit community partners to ensure
that every San Franciscan is counted and that our City gets the resources we need to address
the critical challenges we face.”

“We are honored to partner with an amazing network of community, labor, arts and faith
based partners to bring the 2020 Census to the people,” said Adrienne Pon, Executive
Director, Office of Civic Engagement and Immigrant Affairs and SF Counts. “Every person
matters and has the right to participate.”

Every ten years, the United States conducts a census, with the goal of counting every person
living in the United States once and in the right place. The official 2020 Census Day is April
Ist. In mid-March, households will begin receiving official Census Bureau mail with
information about how to respond to the 2020 Census. Generally, respondents can complete
the census online, by phone, or by mail.

The data from the census is used in a variety of ways, from the federal to the local level. The
results of the census are used to reapportion the House of Representatives, determining how
many seats each state gets. After each census, state officials redraw the boundaries of the
congressional and state legislative districts in their states to account for population shifts. The
distribution of federal funds is informed by the results of the census. For each person counted
in San Francisco, $2,000 will go back into the community each year over the next ten years for
programs and services like childcare and senior centers, nutrition and meals programs,
schools, libraries, hospitals, transportation, and other social services.

SF Counts is the City’s coordinated grassroots effort to ensure that every person in San
Francisco is included and accurately counted in the 2020 Census with the help of broad
network of community, arts, civic, labor, education, government, and faith-based
organizations.

Led by the City Administrator’s Office of Civic Engagement and Immigrant Affairs (OCEIA),
the SF Counts campaign is a multilingual, multicultural outreach and education campaign to
inform and motivate San Francisco residents to complete the census. SF Counts partners
include the San Francisco 2020 Census Complete Count Committee, arts coalition leader



Art+Action, hundreds of community non-profit organizations, and elected officials and City
agencies. Together, SF Counts partners are working to reach every part of the City, remove
barriers to participation, and motivate residents to complete the census online beginning in
March. With an investment of $2.5 million from the City’s General Fund and a grant from the
State of California, the SF Counts campaign will bring the 2020 Census to San Francisco for
the largest mass mobilization effort in a decade.

There are many challenges to a complete 2020 Census count. This year will be the first all-
digital census since the census was first conducted in 1790. While this may make it easier for
some to complete the census, many people lack access to the internet or smart phones to
complete the census. In addition, there has always been a historic undercount of children,
people living in unconventional dwellings or experiencing homelessness, low-income areas,
communities of color, immigrants, and people who do not speak English as a primary
language. SF Counts has strategies in place to ensure these “hard to count” populations are
included in the census and has a plan to assist people who may not be able to complete the
census online.

Although there will not be a citizenship question to the 2020 Census, the Trump
Administration’s efforts to add one left many people feeling distrustful of the census process.
However, it is against the law for the Census Bureau to release responses in any way that
could identify participants and their households. By law, responses cannot be used against
participants and can only be used to produce statistics.

“An accurate census count is crucial to upholding our democracy and ensuring all
communities get resources they need,” said Assemblymember David Chiu (D-San Francisco).
“Census participation benefits our local neighborhoods, makes our democracy stronger, and
cannot be used for immigration or law enforcement purposes. I encourage all Californians to
get counted.”

“San Francisco is a city that cares for all its residents,” said Mario Paz, Executive Director,
Good Samaritan Family Resource Center. “We understand what is at stake in the 2020 Census.
Please join us as—together—we stand to be counted.”

“San Francisco was the only county in the State that achieved a total count for the 2010
Census,” said Anni Chung, President and CEP of Self Help for the Elderly. “All of us on the
San Francisco Complete Count Committee will be working closely with OCEIA to ensure
everyone is counted in San Francisco for the 2020 Census.”

SF Counts is currently hiring staff who will help make sure everyone in San Francisco is
counted. If you are interested in applying to work for SF Counts, please visit: sf.gov/get-

census-job.

For more information about the Census and SF Counts, please visit: www.sfcounts.org or
sf.gov/departments/office-civic-engagement-and-immigrant-affairs/census-2020

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

Subject: FW: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON TERENCE HALLINAN
Date: Friday, January 17, 2020 12:08:21 PM

Attachments: 01.17.20 Terrance Hallinan.pdf

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

Sent: Friday, January 17, 2020 11:16 AM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON TERENCE HALLINAN

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, January 17, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

wx% STATEMENT #**
MAYOR LONDON BREED ON TERENCE HALLINAN

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today issued the following statement
regarding the passing of former San Francisco District Attorney Terence Hallinan:

“I am saddened to hear of the passing of Terence Hallinan. His storied legal career was
intertwined with so much of our great city’s history, and he was a dedicated public servant,
both as a member of the Board of Supervisors and as District Attorney. He was outspoken and
fierce in his pursuit of justice, his defense of those in need, and his love for this City. Terence
was, simply put, a true San Francisco legend. My thoughts and sympathies are with his family
and loved ones.”

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
the passing of former San Francisco District Attorney Terence Hallinan:

“l am saddened to hear of the passing of Terence Hallinan. His storied legal career was
intertwined with so much of our great city’s history, and he was a dedicated public servant, both
as a member of the Board of Supervisors and as District Attorney. He was outspoken and fierce
in his pursuit of justice, his defense of those in need, and his love for this City. Terence was,
simply put, a true San Francisco legend. My thoughts and sympathies are with his family and
loved ones.”

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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** PANEL OF EXPERTS FROM UC SAN FRANCISCO AND UC BERKELEY COMPLETES
REVIEW OF RADIATION TESTING PROCEDURES AT HUNTERS POINT SHIPYARD

Date: Friday, January 17, 2020 12:08:10 PM

Attachments: 01.17.20 Hunters Point Shipyard.pdf

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

Sent: Friday, January 17, 2020 11:02 AM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** PANEL OF EXPERTS FROM UC SAN FRANCISCO AND UC BERKELEY
COMPLETES REVIEW OF RADIATION TESTING PROCEDURES AT HUNTERS POINT SHIPYARD

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, January 17, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
PANEL OF EXPERTS FROM UC SAN FRANCISCO AND
UC BERKELEY COMPLETES REVIEW OF RADIATION
TESTING PROCEDURES AT HUNTERS POINT SHIPYARD

Review found that the State’s scanning of Parcel A was appropriate as a health and safety
survey and the Navy’s planned approach to retesting Parcel G is appropriate, pending U.S.
EPA’s approval

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, City Attorney Dennis Herrera, and
Supervisor Shamann Walton today received the findings from University of California,

San Francisco (UCSF) and University of California, Berkeley experts regarding their review
of the radiation testing procedures used at the Hunters Point Shipyard. The Shipyard is the
future site of over 4,800 homes, as well as 4.3 million square feet of office and research and
development space, 258 acres of open space, and artist, retail, and community spaces.

In response to a request by the Mayor, the City Attorney, and Supervisor Walton, the panel of
UC experts independently evaluated the appropriateness of the testing protocols for Parcels A
and G at Hunters Point Shipyard. The report concludes that the California Department of
Public Health’s (CDPH) health and safety scan on Parcel A was appropriate as a health and
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

Review found that the State’s scanning of Parcel A was appropriate as a health and safety survey
and the Navy’s planned approach to retesting Parcel G is appropriate, pending U.S. EPA’s
approval

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, City Attorney Dennis Herrera, and Supervisor
Shamann Walton today received the findings from University of California, San Francisco
(UCSF) and University of California, Berkeley experts regarding their review of the radiation
testing procedures used at the Hunters Point Shipyard. The Shipyard is the future site of over
4,800 homes, as well as 4.3 million square feet of office and research and development space,
258 acres of open space, and artist, retail, and community spaces.

In response to a request by the Mayor, the City Attorney, and Supervisor Walton, the panel of
UC experts independently evaluated the appropriateness of the testing protocols for Parcels A
and G at Hunters Point Shipyard. The report concludes that the California Department of Public
Health’s (CDPH) health and safety scan on Parcel A was appropriate as a health and safety
survey. The report also concludes that the Navy’s partial Work Plan and proposed procedures for
the retest of Parcel G are appropriate, as long as the final plan meets the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency’s (EPA) approval. The report further recommends that any determination as
to the appropriate development on Parcel G not be made until all of the retesting data are
available for review.

The report can be viewed at www.ucsf.edu/news/2020/01/416471/ucsf-releases-report-hunters-
point-naval-shipyard-testing-protocols. Supervisor Walton will host a community meeting to
discuss the report on Tuesday, January 28th, 2020, at 7:00pm at 451 Galvez Avenue,

San Francisco, CA 94124. UC experts will be available to answer questions about the report.

Mayor Breed, City Attorney Herrera, and Supervisor Walton stated:

“To address concerns and questions from the community regarding the testing conducted at the
Shipyard, we asked UC San Francisco and UC Berkeley to conduct an impartial analysis of the
procedures for Parcels A and G. Nothing is more important than the health and safety of the
people living in the Bayview and Hunters Point, and this community deserves transparency. We
greatly appreciate the work of experts from both UCSF and UC Berkeley to conduct a thorough
and independent scientific review of CDPH’s procedures for Parcel A and the Navy’s cleanup
plans for the rest of the shipyard. The next step in this process is to make sure the residents of the

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

area are informed about the findings from this report and that everyone has an opportunity to
hear directly from the experts at UCSF and UC Berkeley about their findings.”

In April of last year, Mayor Breed, City Attorney Herrera, and Supervisor Walton announced
that experts from UCSF and UC Berkeley would conduct an independent and objective review of
the radiation testing procedures used at the Hunters Point Shipyard. The goal of this review was
to determine if the radiation testing procedures established by state and federal regulatory
agencies at the Hunters Point Shipyard were appropriate and sufficient.

UC researchers conducted interviews with different entities including the EPA, the United States
Navy, CDPH, San Francisco Department of Public Health (SFDPH), individual experts,
community members and environmental advocates. The UC researchers also participated in a
community listening session coordinated by Supervisor Walton and the Hunters Point Shipyard
Citizen’s Advisory Committee to hear directly from residents and community members.

All inquiries regarding specifics about the independent review should be made to Laura
Kurtzman at Laura.Kurtzman@ucsf.edu.

BACKGROUND ON THE HUNTERS POINT SHIPYARD

The Hunters Point Shipyard is composed of approximately 496 acres along the southeastern
waterfront of San Francisco that will be developed in two distinct phases. At full build-out, both
phases of Hunters Point Shipyard will consist of approximately 4,882 units of housing (Shipyard
Phase 1: 1,428 housing units; Shipyard Phase 2: 3,454 housing units), 4.3 million square feet of
office and research and development space, 258 acres of open space, and artist, retail, and
community spaces.

The Hunters Point Shipyard is divided into different parcels that are grouped into two separate
development projects: Shipyard Phase 1, also referred to as Parcel A, consisting of two sub-
parcels, Parcel A-1 and Parcel A-2. Shipyard Phase 2 includes all remaining Shipyard land.

Shipyard Phase 1 is not part of the federal Superfund site, and has been confirmed by the EPA to
be safe for people to live and work. In response to community concerns, the City, federal and
state regulatory agencies requested that the CDPH conduct a radiological survey of Shipyard
Phase 1. In 2018, CDPH performed a radiological health and safety scan of Parcel A and
concluded that it did not pose radiological health or safety hazards. The scope of that work is part
of this independent review.

The land in Phase 2 is an environmental “Superfund” site that required extensive clean-up by the
Navy. Under state and federal law, a number of regulatory agencies provide oversight of the
clean-up of the Hunters Point Shipyard including the EPA and two departments within the
California Environmental Protection Agency: the Department of Toxics Substances Control and
the San Francisco Bay Area Regional Water Quality Control Board. The City, through the
SFDPH, also closely monitors the Navy cleanup. A portion of Shipyard Phase 2 land is now the
subject of an investigation into fraud committed by a former Navy contractor, which the Navy
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hired to test the Shipyard Phase 2 parcels after the Navy completed its environmental clean-up
work.

The Navy has agreed to re-test portions of Shipyard Phase 2 land where the former contractor
performed work. Parcel G is one of several parcels in Shipyard Phase 2 that is owned by the
Navy and will be the first parcel to be retested. The Navy, EPA and other regulators must
finalize a Work Plan for each parcel prior to retesting. The Navy has issued a draft Work Plan for
how retesting will happen on Parcel G. The Navy has hired new companies to re-test Shipyard
Phase 2 land and to provide additional oversight. The effectiveness of the protocol that is being
proposed by the Navy and the EPA is part of this independent review.

To date, 439 units have been built with another 66 currently under construction at Shipyard
Phase 1. No development is currently occurring on any of Shipyard Phase 2 parcels, and
development will not occur until a thorough re-testing of the Shipyard Phase 2 parcels is
complete and is determined by the regulatory agencies to be safe. Though the Master Developer
has paused all development of Shipyard Phase 2, pre-development work is currently underway at
Candlestick Point. Once completed, Shipyard Phase 2 will have 3,454 new housing units and
Candlestick Point will have 7,218 new units. Of the 12,100 total housing units, approximately
32% will be affordable. In Candlestick Point, 337 replacement and new affordable housing units
in Alice Griffith have been built and are occupied.

HiH
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safety survey. The report also concludes that the Navy’s partial Work Plan and proposed
procedures for the retest of Parcel G are appropriate, as long as the final plan meets the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA) approval. The report further recommends that any
determination as to the appropriate development on Parcel G not be made until all of the
retesting data are available for review.

The report can be viewed at www.ucsf.edu/news/2020/01/416471/ucsf-releases-report-

hunters-point-naval-shipyard-testing-protocols. Supervisor Walton will host a community
meeting to discuss the report on Tuesday, January 28th, 2020, at 7:00pm at 451 Galvez

Avenue, San Francisco, CA 94124. UC experts will be available to answer questions about the
report.

Mayor Breed, City Attorney Herrera, and Supervisor Walton stated:

“To address concerns and questions from the community regarding the testing conducted at
the Shipyard, we asked UC San Francisco and UC Berkeley to conduct an impartial analysis
of the procedures for Parcels A and G. Nothing is more important than the health and safety of
the people living in the Bayview and Hunters Point, and this community deserves
transparency. We greatly appreciate the work of experts from both UCSF and UC Berkeley to
conduct a thorough and independent scientific review of CDPH’s procedures for Parcel A and
the Navy’s cleanup plans for the rest of the shipyard. The next step in this process is to make
sure the residents of the area are informed about the findings from this report and that
everyone has an opportunity to hear directly from the experts at UCSF and UC Berkeley about
their findings.”

In April of last year, Mayor Breed, City Attorney Herrera, and Supervisor Walton announced
that experts from UCSF and UC Berkeley would conduct an independent and objective review
of the radiation testing procedures used at the Hunters Point Shipyard. The goal of this review
was to determine if the radiation testing procedures established by state and federal regulatory
agencies at the Hunters Point Shipyard were appropriate and sufficient.

UC researchers conducted interviews with different entities including the EPA, the United
States Navy, CDPH, San Francisco Department of Public Health (SFDPH), individual experts,
community members and environmental advocates. The UC researchers also participated in a
community listening session coordinated by Supervisor Walton and the Hunters Point
Shipyard Citizen’s Advisory Committee to hear directly from residents and community
members.

All inquiries regarding specifics about the independent review should be made to Laura
Kurtzman at Laura. Kurtzman(@ucsf.edu.

BACKGR D ON THE HUNTERS POINT SHIPYARD

The Hunters Point Shipyard is composed of approximately 496 acres along the southeastern
waterfront of San Francisco that will be developed in two distinct phases. At full build-out,
both phases of Hunters Point Shipyard will consist of approximately 4,882 units of housing
(Shipyard Phase 1: 1,428 housing units; Shipyard Phase 2: 3,454 housing units), 4.3 million
square feet of office and research and development space, 258 acres of open space, and artist,
retail, and community spaces.

The Hunters Point Shipyard is divided into different parcels that are grouped into two separate


https://www.ucsf.edu/news/2020/01/416471/ucsf-releases-report-hunters-point-naval-shipyard-testing-protocols
https://www.ucsf.edu/news/2020/01/416471/ucsf-releases-report-hunters-point-naval-shipyard-testing-protocols
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development projects: Shipyard Phase 1, also referred to as Parcel A, consisting of two sub-
parcels, Parcel A-1 and Parcel A-2. Shipyard Phase 2 includes all remaining Shipyard land.

Shipyard Phase 1 is not part of the federal Superfund site, and has been confirmed by the EPA
to be safe for people to live and work. In response to community concerns, the City, federal
and state regulatory agencies requested that the CDPH conduct a radiological survey of
Shipyard Phase 1. In 2018, CDPH performed a radiological health and safety scan of Parcel A
and concluded that it did not pose radiological health or safety hazards. The scope of that work
is part of this independent review.

The land in Phase 2 is an environmental “Superfund” site that required extensive clean-up by
the Navy. Under state and federal law, a number of regulatory agencies provide oversight of
the clean-up of the Hunters Point Shipyard including the EPA and two departments within the
California Environmental Protection Agency: the Department of Toxics Substances Control
and the San Francisco Bay Area Regional Water Quality Control Board. The City, through the
SFDPH, also closely monitors the Navy cleanup. A portion of Shipyard Phase 2 land is now
the subject of an investigation into fraud committed by a former Navy contractor, which the
Navy hired to test the Shipyard Phase 2 parcels after the Navy completed its environmental
clean-up work.

The Navy has agreed to re-test portions of Shipyard Phase 2 land where the former contractor
performed work. Parcel G is one of several parcels in Shipyard Phase 2 that is owned by the
Navy and will be the first parcel to be retested. The Navy, EPA and other regulators must
finalize a Work Plan for each parcel prior to retesting. The Navy has issued a draft Work Plan
for how retesting will happen on Parcel G. The Navy has hired new companies to re-test
Shipyard Phase 2 land and to provide additional oversight. The effectiveness of the protocol
that is being proposed by the Navy and the EPA is part of this independent review.

To date, 439 units have been built with another 66 currently under construction at Shipyard
Phase 1. No development is currently occurring on any of Shipyard Phase 2 parcels, and
development will not occur until a thorough re-testing of the Shipyard Phase 2 parcels is
complete and is determined by the regulatory agencies to be safe. Though the Master
Developer has paused all development of Shipyard Phase 2, pre-development work is
currently underway at Candlestick Point. Once completed, Shipyard Phase 2 will have 3,454
new housing units and Candlestick Point will have 7,218 new units. Of the 12,100 total
housing units, approximately 32% will be affordable. In Candlestick Point, 337 replacement
and new affordable housing units in Alice Griffith have been built and are occupied.

HitH



RECEIVED
San Francisco Planning Deptartment
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400 JAN 22 200
San Francisco, CA 94103
CITY & COUNTY OF S.E
January 15, 2020 PLAING DEPARTMENT o

Dear Planning Commissioners,

We are writing to request the Planning Commission deny the application for a Conditional Use
Authorization at 313 Ivy Street (Cannabis Retail: Fig and Thistle Apothecary). Our district
already has enough cannabis dispensaries to serve the neighborhood and surrounding areas, the
applicant’s comments are in conflict with San Francisco’s Planning Code and General Plan, and
the proposed business location is not designed to handle the added traffic.

Conflicts with San Francisco’s Planning Code and General Plan

According to the San Francisco Planning Code, Sec. 761, the Hayes-Gough Neighborhood
Commercial Transit District “contains a limited range of retail commercial activity, which
primarily caters to the immediate need of the neighborhood. The few comparison goods that it
does provide attract clientele from a wider area outside its neighborhood, mostly the Performing
Arts and Civic Center workers and visitors.” The city planners recognize visitors are coming to
the Hayes Valley area to enjoy concerts and shows, popular restaurants and bars, and fine retail
shops; they are not coming to purchase cannabis products.

San Francisco’s General Plan recognizes the importance of strong neighborhood commercial
districts that not only bring money to the city but provide jobs to SF residents. One could argue
that a marijuana dispensary would discourage visitors, especially those with children, from
supporting Hayes Valley restaurants and shops before or after a performance or event. Even a
perceived threat of possible harm would deter people from frequenting areas with cannabis
shops. Also, the proposed change at the location from a wine bar to a marijuana dispensary
would not remove a vacant storefront as the applicant stated in their Conditional Use
Authorization form since they would take over a space currently occupied. The project would
also not generate any new jobs - the current wine bar staff would be replaced by the new
employees.

Community Qutreach and Education Concerns

The applicant states they want to work “on outreach and education to the community about the
positive and medicinal uses of cannabis.” The conditional use authorization is requesting
permission to open a recreational cannabis store and therefore no one should be making any
medical claims or giving medical advice. Plus, in order to truly educate the community about
cannabis products, you must discuss the positive and negative effects of the drug.



Detrimental to the Safety. Convenience and General Welfare of Residents and Visitors

Traffic issues are also a concern. Ivy is a narrow, one-way street that has no parking meters and
just a few restricted parking spaces on one side. Customers who want to just quickly run in or
pickup an online order will have to pull up on the sidewalk, block a driveway, or double park
which will completely block the street inconveniencing residents, backing up traffic onto Gough,
and creating a dangerous situation for pedestrians.

There are many conflicting studies concerning crime in neighborhoods with cannabis stores.
However, even those studies that do not find an increase in violent crimes do show a link
between marijuana dispensaries and an increase in property crimes, particularly in adjacent areas
(University of California, Riverside study, Ohio State University study) and The Criminogenic
Effect of Marijuana Dispensaries in Denver, Colorado: A Microsynthetic Control Quasi-
Experiment and Cost-Benefit Analysis paper also found “street segments with a recreational
marijuana dispensary experienced a statistically significant increase in the level of property
crime relative to controls.” Our neighborhood already has problems with vandalism, theft, and
auto break-ins; the addition of a marijuana dispensary will just add to existing problems.

Not Necessary or Desirable for the Neighborhood

Hayes Valley does not need a marijuana dispensary. Anyone wanting to obtain cannabis
products today can easily purchase them through any of the 77 permitted cannabis retail
locations in the city with over half offering delivery service (data from SF Office of Cannabis
website). Plus, there are another 180+ proposed cannabis retail locations that are waiting for a
permanent permit (data from SF Office of Cannabis website). In the Hayes Valley area, there are
currently seven recreational and medical dispensaries that are less than a 15-minute walk from
the neighborhood. Plus, District 5 which includes Hayes Valley, already has three cannabis
storefronts (data from SF Office of Cannabis website). With one more shop, District 5 would
claim the third spot for San Francisco districts with the most cannabis dispensaries.

The Hayes Valley Neighborhood Association (HVNA) describes Hayes Valley as, “home to
hundreds of families who contribute to the fabric of our vibrant community, and our goal is to
make Hayes Valley the best place in the City to raise a family.” Furthermore, the HVNA
website’s future goals include “encouraging local businesses to hire neighborhood youth for
temporary jobs and internships, and encouraging more neighborhood-serving businesses, such as
hardware stores, shoe repair shops, laundromats and others, to locate in the many new retail
locations opening in Hayes Valley.” Permitting an adult-only marijuana dispensary does not
serve any of these HVNA goals. In addition, Hayes Valley is the home to many schools,
organizations (Boys & Girls Club and Seesaw), and activities (Patricia’s Green playground and
the Proxy) that cater to children and their families. Given that some of these organizations and
activities are less than 600 feet from 313 Ivy, many families and children will pass by the
proposed site on a daily basis.



Our residence has a pedestrian and garage entrance on Ivy Street - both are used daily. The
approval of this application would not only negatively affect us as immediate neighbors of the
site, but would also be in conflict with the goals of the Hayes Valley community and the city of
San Francisco. A cannabis dispensary does not benefit Hayes Valley in any way and could
actually threaten the wonderful community we have now.

Sincerely,

Mary & Joe



